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TO OUR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

REGENCY ISA GOOD COMPANY

AND All THE CRITICAL ELEMENtS

FOR US TO BE GREAT COMPANY

ARE IN PLACE WE HAVE SET

DETERMINED COURSE TO MAKE

OUR VISION REALITY

OBVIOUSLY 2009 15 YEAR WERE GLAD

IN MANY WAYS TO HAVE BEHIND US BUT

ITS FITTING THAT WE BEGIN BY BRIEFLY

ADDRESSING THE DIFFICULTIES WE ENCOUNTERED

HOW THEY AFFECTED OUR BUSINESS AND

MORE IMPORTANTLY THE ACTIONS WE TOOK

IN RESPONSE

Ulce many odier bisnessS last year Regency was engulfed ManeamkrecSOnOflIlStOlkPrOfJOflloIt

yftnpnmmReSth%Mndmbefeflt5hfldnIacth0wISPtheexteM

w1aworsSlg economy and tbg mailuis Nevertheless we now

recognIze we Id nmsuf IcleMly antkate how deeply and rapkllysnothhmdamelalsulowbuiwss



After 10 consecudve years of annual growth in excess of 2.5% sammproperty Net Operating Income NOl in

2009 was down 6.7% resulting from lower occupancy rents and bad debts As evidenced by the extended

amount of time forecasted to achieve 95% occupancy and the related stabilized returns on invested capdal being

compressed to 7.1% Regencys developments were hit particularly hard by the recession During the year

$132 million of impairments were recorded on land developments and operating properties The impact

from impairments negative NOl growth and the effect of the two equity offerings combined to reduce Funds from

Operations FF0 to $1.10 per diluted share or $268 on recurring basis After substantially outperforming the

average for shopping center REiT5 for the prior threm fivm and temyear periods Regencys total shareholder

return was negative 20% well below that of most of our peers

All that said Regency Centers emerged from 2009 with much to be proud of Last years annual report was

entitled Built to Last and 2009 truly tested that concept Built to last means built to withstand adversity and

in the past year Regency took crucial steps to secure our strong foundation and made considerable progress

positioning Regency for prosperous future We were able to bolster our balance sheet and increase our liquidity

reorganize the company and greatly intensify our leasing efforts while at the same time capitalizing on

major compelling investment opportunity

The adjustments we were able to make are evidence of the underlying resilience of our balance sheet operating

portfolio and management team We were also able to draw upon the enduring relationships we have built on

years of trust and wellconceived business practices We look with pride and gratitude to the business partners
and

constituents who are so vitally important to us our employees our tenants our cminvestment partners our banks

and most importantly our shareholders Combined these assets with real intrinsic value allowed us to refine our



business plan to secure capital and to set course to emerge from these difficult times as an even stronger more

disciplined and better-positioned enterprise To that end in 2009

We raised more than billion dollars of capital through combination of two common stock offerings

mortgage financings contributions to co-investment partnerships and property sales We further augmented

our cash position with reduction in the common dividend and major pullback in development As

result of these efforts we closed 2009 with much-improved financial ratios approximately $100 million

in cash zero outstanding on more than $100 million in lines of credit and $235 million of additional equity

capital that will be funded during 2010

BWLT TO LAST MEANS BWLT

FIHSTAND ADVERSFFY

We established new co-investment partnerships one with Global Retail Investors LIC GRI joint venture

between the California Public Employees Retirement System CaIPERS and First Washington Realty Inc and one

with USAA These two partnerships further expanded and solidified Regencys access to reliable sources of capital

By facilitating Macquarie Countrywides MCW sale of its partnership interest to GRI we were able to

negotiate and exercise an option to increase our ownership in the partnership This transaction together with the

purchase of two centers in partnership with Publix represents an investment of approximately $250 million

in irreplaceable assets at extremely favorable pricing

We also heightened our risk management efforts and financial controls In light of the unexpected increase

in receivables last year we added more than adequate reserves to cover potential bad debts In addition we

placed more emphasis on recurring earnings by excluding more volatile income such as development profits

in setting targets for financial performance and ratios particularly fixed charge coverage and debt-to-EBIDTA

REFOCUSING AND REENERGIZING OUR ORGANIZATION

When it became clear that the downturn was even more dramatic than we anticipated we reacted decisively and

thoughtfully to enhance the organizational architecture Beginning in late 2008 and in 2009 we substantially

reduced the size of our workforce The decision which resulted in more than 30% reduction in force was

painful yet necessary we bid farewell to longtime colleagues and friends Our company is now properly sized

both to operate efficiently in the current business climate but also to profit from distress in the market and

improved conditions when they arise In particular while our new development activities have slowed

significantly we have maintained an experienced team of professionals with the capabilities to create value

in the existing portfolio and when prudent with new compelling future opportunities



RGENY NER

During the process of assessing our overall staffing needs we also carefully evaluated our organizational

structure We recognized that the times demand more focused and team-oriented approach to our business

than ever before In addition to making significant efficiency process and functional improvements in the

accounting and analysis segments of our finance department we also instituted new more responsive

organizational structure in the field creating three regional profit centers Regency is extremely fortunate

to have three talented and experienced executives Mac Chandler John Delatour and Jim Thompson

to lead the unified operations and investment aspects of the business in the three regions The regions are

staffed by highly skilled cross-functional teams that are able to focus more closely on creating value through

leasing asset management and investment activities in their markets

THE ADJUSTMENTS WE WERE

ABLE TO KE ARE EVWEN

We believe this new structure is already producing results Our field operations report that the highly collaborative

nature of this effort has played role in the uptick in leasing activities we experienced in the latter part of 2009

fact we ended the year easng more than mllhon square feet of space and renewing amost4 mifflon

square feet This success leads us to believe that our new structure also will help us meet the goals weve set for

ourselves in 2010 The team is right-sized focused and energized

An important side benefit to the collaborative organizational architecture has been the reinforcement of Regencys

special culture And in that regard would be remiss if did not express my sincere and heartfelt gratitude

to my friend Mary Lou Fiala for her tremendous contributions to making Regency the wonderful company it is

want to thank her for all she has meant to us and given to this company

Regency is indeed blessed to have Brian Smith our President and Chief Operating Officer Brian who has been

my trusted colleague for more than 10 years is bright experienced and an exceptional leader He knows the

shopping center business Regency and our culture and is dedicated to working with me and our leadership team

to transform Regency from really good company into great company

Entering 2010 Regency enters renewed its commitment to the things that have brought us so much success over

the years high-quality portfolio of shopping centers that are primarily grocery-anchored and that produce

reliable growth in NOI strong balance sheet that will enable us to withstand future crises and capitalize on

opportunities to grow and talented and energized management team with industry-leading operating systems

and value-added development capabilities



While we are proud of the foundation we have in place we recognize that we must better leverage our

strengths to produce the quality of returns that our shareholders expect and deserve In particular we have

established goal of long-term growth in per share net asset value and recurring FF0 of 5% or more and compound

annual total shareholder return of at least 10% as well as return that is above the average of our peers in the

shopping center sector

To make these goals reality we are undertaking five strategies that during the next five years we believe will

result in meaningful NOl growth and improvements in the quality of our portfolio our investment program and

the strength of the balance sheet

At the center of our efforts is an intense focus on attaining an occupancy level of 95% iti both the operating

and development portfolios Our Premier Customer Initiative now model for the industry will be an

important tool in this effort We will go the extra mile to make sure our centers look better than those of

the competition taking full advantage of the considerable opportunity to offer tenants in other centers the

opportunity to upgrade to Regency center while replacing some of our weaker tenants with better

operators Our current leasing momentum notwithstanding we recognize that it will take several years to

achieve our primary NOI growth objective However once our tenants start to benefit from real recovery

and as we rebuild occupancy to 95% Regency should begin to realize NOl performance commensurate with

our historic levels

At the same time we plan to continue to improve the overall
quality of our portfolio its net asset value

and the reliability of the underlying operating income by selling properties and recycling that capital into

superior assets shopping centers in markets with sustainable competitive advantages and better prospects

for NOI growth

WE REOGNZED THAT THE fiMES

DE MOR USED AND

We also will continue to use our unique combination of development capabilities market presence and

anchor relationships to invest in value-added opportunities These investments will take the form of

purchases from distressed owners redevelopments within our existing portfolio the conversion of the

480 acres of land we own into sales and developments and well-conceived new developments Our

investments will be rigorously underwritten have strong anchor sponsorship demonstrated demand for

limited side shops and out parcels and attractive risk-adjusted returns and margins model for these new

developments is Seminole Shoppes an infill development where Publix is relocating an ultra-successful

store and demand for the side-shop space is well in excess of the modest amount being built
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While we are now comfortable with Regencys sound financial condition during the next five years we will

cost-effectively and opportunistically further strengthen our balance sheet and maintain access to reliable

sources of capital Growing NOl and the
resulting free cash flow selling assets utilizing co-investment

partnerships and executing in way that is consistent with building intrinsic value will remain essential

components of Regencys capital markets strategy to improve our key financial ratios

Finally we will endeavor to keep what we consider to be the best management team in the industry energized

and focused on our strategic goals Compensation programs will continue to be constructed to align

management with these goals and the creation of shareholder value Additional improvement in operating

efficiencies remains critical concurrent objective

As we look forward we expect to continue to be tested by business conditions With most economists forecasting

unemployment to linger for some time near its 26-year high we are conservative in our views on th strength

of any recovery At the same time we are hopeful that the early signs of an economic recovery portend more

favorable operating environment in the not-too-distant future However regardless of where we are in the economic

cycle Regency is now poised to thriveby meeting the vital objectives for our existing asset base capitalizing on

dislocation among weaker owners and developers and providing for the ongoing expansion needs for our valued

customers the leading shopping center retailers ln sum the coming months will present significant challenges

but also opportunities to realize substantial value by increasing occupancy in existing assets and from making new

investments in properties well suited to our core competencies

We have grown and prospered in similar situations and believe we have never been so well positioned to do so

againin partnership with our dedicated employees our tenants our investment partners and our shareholders

Our roots our heritage and our values are strong They endure And they will
carry us through these times

allowing us to prosper in the better times that lie ahead and to achieve our vision of building great company on

rock-solid foundation

Sincerely yours

tIARUN STEt4 JR

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth Selected Financial Data for Regency on historical basis for the five years ended December31 2009 This historical Selected Financial Data has

been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements as reclassified for discontinued operations This information should be read in
conjunction

with the consolidated

financial statements of Regency Centers Corporation and Regency Centers including the related notes thereto and Managements Discussion and
Analysis

of the Financial

Condition and Results of Operations

REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION

in thousands except per share data number of properties

and ratio of earnings to fixed charges 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Operating Data

Revenues 489232 495895 436006 405480 374112

Operating expenses 308019 277710 247912 232988 199642

Otherexpense income 193479 103907 30174 13748 83123

Income loss before equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships 12266 114278 157920 158744 91347

Equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships 26373 5292 18093 2580 2907

Income loss from continuing operations 38639 119570 176013 161324 88440

Income loss from discontinued operations 5896 21951 34003 68651 70651

Net income loss 32743 141521 210016 229975 159091

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 3961 5333 6365 11464 11351

Net income loss attributable to controlling interests 36704 136188 203651 218511 147740

Preferred stock dividends 19675 19675 19675 19675 16744

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 56379 116513 183976 198836 130996

Income
per common share diluted

Income loss attributable continuing operations 0.82 1.35 2.16 1.89 093

Net income loss for common stockholders 0.74 1.66 2.65 2.89 2.00

Other Information

Common dividends declared
per

share 2.11 2.90 2.64 2.38 2.20

Common stock
outstanding including exchangeable operating partnership units 82008 70505 70112 69759 69218

Combined Basis gross leasable area GLA 44972 49645 51107 47187 46243

Combined Basis number of
properties

owned 400 440 451 405 393

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.0 1.6 2.0 2.0 1.8

Balance Sheet Data

Real estate investments before accumulated depreciation $4259990 4425895 4367191 3870629 3744429

Total assets 3973806 4142375 4114773 3643546 3587976

Total debt 1886380 2135571 2007975 1575386 1613942

Total liabilities 2030412 2380093 2194244 1734572 1739225

Noncontrolling interests 68227 65421 77468 83020 87305

Stockholders equity 1875167 1696861 1843061 1825954 1761446
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REGENCY CENTERS Li

in thousands except for per unit data number of properties

and ratio of earnings to fixed charges 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Operating Data

Revenues 489232 495895 436006 405480 374112

Operating expenses 308019 277710 247912 232988 199642

Other expense income 193479 103907 30174 13748 83123

Income loss before equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships 12266 114278 157920 158744 91347

Equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships 26373 5292 18093 2580 2907

Income loss from continuing operations 38639 119570 176013 161324 88440

Income loss from discontinued operations 5896 21951 34003 68651 70651

Net income loss 32743 141521 210016 229975 159091

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 452 701 990 4863 263

Net income loss attributable to controlling interests 33195 140820 209026 225112 158828

Preferred unit distributions 23400 23400 23400 23400 24849

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders 56595 117420 185626 201 71 133979

Income per common unit diluted

Income loss attributable continuing operations 0.82 1.35 2.16 1.89 0.93

Net income loss for common unit holders 0.74 1.66 2.65 2.89 2.00

Other Information

Distributions
per

unit 2.11 2.90 2.64 2.38 2.20

Common units outstanding 82008 70505 70112 69759 69218

Preferred units outstanding 500 500 500 500 1040

Combined Basis gross leasable area GLA 44972 49645 51107 47187 46243

Combined Basis number of properties owned 400 440 451 405 393

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.0 1.6 2.0 2.0 1.8

Balance Sheet Data

Real estate investments before accumulated depreciation $4259990 4425895 4367191 3870629 3744429

Total assets 3973806 4142375 4114773 3643546 3587976

Total debt 1886380 2135571 2007975 1575386 1613942

Total liabilities 2030412 2380093 2194244 1734572 1739225

Noncontrolling interests 11748 7980 18391 17797 11089

Partners capital 1931646 1754302 1902138 1891177 1837662
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information the following information contains forward-looking
statements as defined under federal securities laws These forward-looking statements

include statements about anticipated changes in our revenues the size of our development program earnings per share and unit returns and portfolio value and expectations

about our liquidity These statements are based on current expectations estimates and projections about the industry and markets in which Regency Centers Corporation the

Parent Company and Regency Centers L.P the Operating Partnership collectively Regency or the Company operate and managements beliefs and assumptions

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ

materially from those expressed or implied by such statements Such risks and uncertainties include but are not limited to changes in national and local economic conditions

including the impact of slowing economy financial difficulties of tenants competitive
market conditions including timing

and
pricing

of acquisitions and sales of properties
and

out-parcels changes in expected leasing activity and market rents timing
of development starts and sales of properties

and out-parcels meeting development schedules our

inability to exercise voting
control over the co-investment partnerships through which we own or develop many of our properties weather consequences of any armed conflict or

terrorist attack against the United States and the ability to obtain governmental approvals The following discussion should be read in
conjunction

with the accompanying

Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto of Regency Centers Corporation
and Regency Centers L.P appearing elsewhere herein

OVERVIEW OF OUR STRATEGY

The Parent Company began its
operations as Real Estate Investment Trust REIT in 1993 and is the managing general partner

in the Operating Partnership Our key strategic

goals are focused on total share and unit holder return in excess of peer indices and sustaining growth in net asset value and earnings We will achieve these goals through

owning operating and investing
in high-quality portfolio of primarily grocery-anchored shopping centers that are tenanted by market-dominant grocers category-leading

anchors specialty retailers and restaurants located in areas with above average household incomes and population densities All of our operating investing and financing

activities are performed through the Operating Partnership its wholly-owned subsidiaries and through its investments in real estate partnerships with third parties also referred

to as co-investment partnerships or joint ventures The Parent Company currently owns 99% of the outstanding common partnership
units of the Operating Partnership

Because of our structure and certain public debt financing the Operating Partnership is also registrant

At December31 2009 we directly owned 216 shopping centers the Consolidated Properties located in 23 states representing
23.0 million square feet of gross leasable

area GLA Our cost of these shopping centers and those under development is $3.9 billion before depreciation Through co-investment partnerships we own partial

ownership interests in 184 shopping centers the Unconsolidated Properties located in 25 states and the District of Columbia representing 22.0 million square feet of GLA

Our investment in the partnerships that own the Unconsolidated Properties is $326.2 million Certain portfolio
information described below is presented on Combined Basis

which is total of the Consolidated Properties and the Unconsolidated Properties for our Consolidated Properties only
and for the Unconsolidated Properties

that we own

through co-investment partnerships We believe that presenting the information under these methods provides more complete understanding of the properties
that we

wholly-own versus those that we indirectly own through entities we do not control but for which we provide asset management property management leasing investing and

financing services The shopping center portfolio that we manage on Combined Basis represents 400 shopping centers located in 28 states and the District of Columbia and

contains 45.0 million square feet of GLA

We earn revenues and generate cash flow by leasing space in our shopping centers to grocery stores major retail anchors side-shop retailers and restaurants including ground

leasing or selling building pads out-parcels to these same types of tenants Historically we have experienced growth in revenues by increasing occupancy and rental rates in

our existing shopping centers and by acquiring and developing new shopping centers Our shopping centers generate substantial daily traffic by conveniently offering necessities

and services This
high

traffic generates increased sales thereby driving higher occupancy and rental-rate growth which we expect will provide
sustained growth in earnings per

share and unit and net asset value over the long term

We seek range of
strong national regional and local specialty retailers for the same reason that we choose to anchor our centers with leading grocers and major retailers who

provide mix of goods and services that meet consumer needs We have created formal partnering process the Premier Customer Initiative PCI to promote mutually

beneficial relationships
with our side-shop retailers The objective

of PCI is for us to build base of non-anchor tenants who represent the best-in-class operators
in their

respective merchandising categories Such retailers reinforce the consumer appeal and other strengths
of centers anchor help grow and stabilize centers occupancy

reduce re-leasing downtime reduce tenant turnover and yield higher sustainable rents

The recession that ended in 2009 had significant negative impact on our 2009 operating results During 2009 we experienced less tenant demand for vacant space as well as

higher level of retail store closings although the rate of closure appears to be slowing Our rent collection losses increased in most of our shopping centers and markets as we

experienced higher
level of tenants defaulting on their leases result of lower retail sales These factors contributed to decline in our occupancy percentages new leasing

rental rates and rental revenues At December31 2009 our operating portfolio of shopping centers including our pro-rata
share of our co-investment partnerships were 93.1%

leased as compared to 93.8% at the end of 2008 and 95.0% leased at the end of 2007 Increasing occupancy in our shopping centers to historical levels of 95% is key

objective of our strategic plan that should generate substantial growth in our future earnings and net asset value but will likely require
several years to accomplish

We continue to closely monitor tenants who have co-tenancy clauses in their lease agreements These tenants are typically located in larger format community shopping centers

that contain multiple anchor tenants whose leases contain these types of clauses Co-tenancy clauses have several variants they may allow tenant to postpone store opening



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANRAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

if certain other tenants tail to open their store they may allow tenant the opportunity to close their store prior to lease expiration if another tenant closes their store prior to

lease
expiration or more commonly they may allow tenant to pay reduced levels of rent until certain number of tenants open their stores within the same shopping center

As the weak economy continues to depress retail sales we could experience further reductions in rent and occupancy related to tenants exercising their co-tenancy clauses

During 2009 we experienced higher tenant default rate as compared to previous years due to national decline in retail sales These defaults were primarily local tenants

which are generally defined as tenants operating five or fewer stores such as restaurants fitness centers dry cleaners and
tanning salons We are closely monitoring the

operating performance collections and sales of all of the tenants in our shopping centers especially those tenants operating retail formats that are experiencing significant

changes in competition business practice reductions in sales and store closings in other locations We expect that as the current economy remains weak additional retailers

will announce store closings and/or bankruptcies that could negatively impact our shopping centers

We grow our shopping center portfolio through acquisitions of operating centers and shopping center development We will continue to use our unique combination of

development capabilities market presence and anchor relationships to invest in value-added opportunities sourced from distressed owners the redevelopment of existing

centers developing land that we already own and other opportunities Development is customer driven meaning we generally have an executed lease from the anchor before

we start construction Developments serve the growth needs of our anchors and specialty retailers resulting
in modern shopping centers with long-term anchor leases that

produce aifractive returns on our invested capital This development process typically requires three to five years from initial land or redevelopment acquisition through

construction lease-up and stabilization of rental income but can take longer depending upon tenant demand for new stores and the size of the project

In the near term fewer new store openings by retailers are resulting in reduced demand for new retail space and causing corresponding reductions in new leasing rental rates

and development pre-leasing As result we have scaled back our development program by decreasing the number of new projects started phasing existing developments that

lack retail demand and decreasing overhead costs through reductions in force Although our development program will continue to play part of our long term business

strategy new development projects will be rigorously evaluated in regard to the cost and availability of
capital visibility of tenant demand to achieve stabilized occupancy and

sufficient investment returns

We strive to maintain conservative
capital structure We will continue to cost effectively and opportunistically strengthen our balance sheet which should allow us to access

various sources of capital to fund our future commitments We endeavor to continue improving our key financial ratios and to maintain high percentage of unencumbered

assets 81.6% of our consolidated real estate assets at December 31 2009 are unencumbered Such assets allow us to access the secured and unsecured debt markets and

maintain significant availability on our $71 38 million line of credit commitment which had no outstanding balance at December31 2009 Our debt to asset ratio before the

effect of accumulated depreciation including our pro-rata share of the debt and assets of joint ventures is 45.9% at December31 2009 which is favorably lower than our ratio

at December31 2008 of 50.0% If we were to repay portion of our outstanding debt with our available cash balances our current debt to asset ratio would fall to 44.9% at

December 31 2009 For the year ended 2009 our coverage ratio with our pro-rata share of our partnerships declined to 2.0 times as compared to 2.4 times in 2008 directly

related to reduction in our EBITDA Earnings Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization which was negatively impacted by the recent recession We define our

Coverage ratio as EBITDA divided by the sum of the gross interest and scheduled mortgage principal paid to our lenders plus dividends paid to our preferred stockholders During

2009 Standard and Poors
Rating Services lowered our corporate credit rating and senior unsecured debt

rating from BBB to 8BB primarily due to the decline in our Coverage

ratio and
negative

retail outlook We plan to grow EBITDA through growth in net operating income by returning the occupancy percentages in our shopping centers back to

historic levels and by acquiring or developing shopping centers which in combination with conservative
capital structure should favorably impact our Coverage ratio on long-

term basis

Capital recycling involves contributing shopping centers to co-investment partnerships and culling non-strategic assets from our real estate portfolio and selling those in the open

market These sales proceeds are either reserved for future capital commitments related to in process development redevelopments or debt maturities or re-deployed into even

higher-quality new developments or acquisitions that will generate sustainable revenue growth and attractive returns To the extent that we are unable to generate capital in

excess of our current commitments we will reduce our new investment activity accordingly

Co-investment
partnerships provide us with reliable capital source for shopping center acquisitions as well as the

opportunity to earn fees for asset management property

management and other
investing

and
financing services As asset manager we are engaged by our partners to apply similar operating investment and capital strategies to the

portfolios owned by the co-investment
partnerships as those applied to the portfolio that we wholly-own Co-investment

partnerships grow their shopping center investments

through acquisitions from third parties or direct purchases from us Although selling properties to co-investment
partnerships reduces our direct ownership interest it provides

source of capital that further strengthens our balance sheet while we continue to share to the extent of our ownership interest in the risks and rewards of shopping centers that

meet our high quality standards and long-term investment strategy

Our co-investment partnerships have significant levels of debt that mature through 2012 and are subject to significant borrowing risks if the capital markets again become

unavailable as they were during the recent recession As result of the declines in commercial real estate values over the past 18 months the refinancing of maturing loans will

require us and our joint venture partners to each contribute our respective pro-rata share of capital to the joint ventures in order to reduce the amount of borrowing to acceptable

loan to value levels which we expect will be
required for new financings While we have to date successfully refinanced our maturing loans the weak U.S economy may hinder

our ability to access capital including access by our joint venture partners or to obtain future financing to fund maturing debt While we believe that our joint venture partners

have sufficient
capital or access thereto for these future capital requirements we can provide no assurance that the weak economy will not inhibit their ability to access capital

and meet their future funding commitments The impact to the Company of co-investment partner defaulting on its share of capital call is discussed below under Liquidity

and Capital Resources

REGENCY CENTERS 2009 ANNUAL REPORT 14



SHOPPING CENTER PORTFOLIO

The following tables summarize general information related to our shopping center portfolio which we use to evaluate and monitor our performance

Number of Propertiesad

Number of Propertiesbd

Number of Propertiescd

Properties
in Developmenta

Properties
in Developmentb

Properties
in Developmentc

Gross Leasable Areas

Gross Leasable Areab

Gross Leasable AreaC

Leased Operating and Developmenta

Leased Operating and Developmentb

Leased Operating and Developmentc

Leased operatinga

Leased operatingb

Leased Operatingc

Combined Basis includes properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnershipsl

Cnnsolidated Properties excludes properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnerships

ci Unconsolidated Properties only properties owned by unconsolidated co-investment partnerships

dl Includes Properties in Development

Combined Properties includes Consolidated Properties
and Unconsolidated Properties

Regency Pro-rata includes Consolidated Properties and Regencys pro-rata share of the Unconsolidated Properties

Ic Excludes 604 Combined Properties and 332 Regency Pro-rafa SF of leases under month to month rental agreements or leases in prncess
of renewal

DECEMBER31 DECEMBER31

2009 2008

40 45

39 44

49644545

24176536

25468009

92.3%

902%

94.3%

440

224

216

400

216

184

44971962

22965276

22006686

92.1%

9LO%

93.2%

93.2%

93.2%

93.3%

94.1%

93.7%

94.4%

We seek to reduce our operating and leasing risks through diversification which we achieve by geographically diversifying our shopping centers avoiding dependence on any

single property market or tenant and owning portion of our shopping centers through co-investment partnerships

The following table summarizes our four largest tenants each of which is grocery tenant occupying the shopping centers at December31 2009

PERCENTAGE OF PERCENTAGE OF

NUMBER OF COMPANY ANNUALIZED

sTOREsa OWNED GLAb BASE RENTb
GROCERY ANCHOR

Kroger
55 8.0% 4.9%

Publix
55 6.9% 4.2%

Safeway
61 5.8% 3.7%

Super Valu
31 3.2% 2.5%

For the Combined Properties including stores owned by grocery
anchors that are allached to our centers

GLA and annualized base rent include the Consolidated Properties plus Regencys pro-rata share of the Unconsolidated Properties Regency Pro-rata

The following table summarizes leasing activity in square feet SF for the year ended December31 2009 for the Combined Properties and Regency Pro-rata GLA in

thousands

COMBINED OF REGENCY OF

pROPERTIESa GLA PRORATAb GLA

Leasing Activity

New Leases Signed 1442 3.2% 1056 3.7%

Existing Leases Renewed 3889 8.6% 2241 7.9%

Total Leasing Activity
5331 11.8% 3297 11.6%

Leases Moved Out 2042 -4.5% 1382 -4.9%

New Leases less MoveoUts 600 -1.3% 326 -1.1%

Rental Rate Growth -2.0% -2.7%

Leases Expiring in 201 0C 3894 9.6% 2404 9.6%

Leases Expiring
in 2011 4298 10.6% 2865 11.5%

Leases Expiring
in 2012 5092 12.6% 3305 13.2%
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Although base rent is supported by long-term lease contracts tenants who file bankruptcy are given the right to cancel any or all of their leases and close related stores or

continue to operate In the event that tenant with significant number of leases in our shopping centers files bankruptcy and cancels its leases we could experience

significant reduction in our revenues and tenant receivables We are closely monitoring industry trends and sales data to help us identify declines in retail categories or tenants

who might be experiencing financial difficulties as result of slowing sales lack of credit changes in retail formats or increased competition As result of our findings we may

reduce new leasing suspend leasing or curtail the allowance for the construction of leasehold improvements within certain retail category or to specific retailer

As of December31 2009 we had 82 video rental stores occupying our shopping centers on Combined Basis that represent $6.7 million of annual base rent on pro-rata

basis Blockbuster Video represents the majority of our video rental leases with 71 stores and annual base rent of $5.7 million or 1.4% of our annualized base rent including our

pro-rata share of 28 stores in the Unconsolidated Properties Blockbuster has announced publicly
that it will close many of its stores and we expect that

during
2010 they will

close some of the stores that they occupy in our shopping centers Movie Gallery/Hollywood Video filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on February 2010 We currently

have four Movie Gallery/Hollywood Video stores occupying our shopping centers and we anticipate that these stores could close during 2010 The base rent associated with

these four stores is insignificant to our annual base rent on pro-rata basis

During 2009 EJs Shoes Eddie Bauer Bi-Lo Supermarkets Ritz Camera/\Nolf Camera/Boaters World the Walking Company and Max Ermas each filed for Chapter 11

bankruptcy protection and lnkStop filed for Chapter bankruptcy liquidation Of these 22 leases six leases have been assumed and 14 leases have been rejected The

combined annual base rent on pro-rata basis associated with these leases is approximately $1.3 million or less than 1% of our annual base rent on pro-rata basis

In January and February 2010 Fills Enterprises Inc doing business as Daphnes Cafe along with Pizzeria Uno and Hollywood Video/Movie Gallery filed for Chapter 11

bankruptcy protection Of these 20 leases none have been assumed and 11 leases have been rejected The combined annual base rent on pro-rata basis associated with

these leases is approximately $1.4 million or less than 1% of our annual base rent on pro-rata basis

We continue to monitor and communicate with those tenants who have announced store closings or are experiencing financial distress We expect as the weak economy

continues additional retailers will announce store closings and/or bankruptcies that could negatively impact our shopping centers While retail sales remain depressed we could

experience further reductions in rent and occupancy related to tenants exercising their co-tenancy clauses as discussed previously However we are not currently aware of the

pending bankruptcy or announced store closings of any tenants in our shopping centers beyond those described above that would individually cause material reduction in our

revenues and no tenant represents more tharl 5% of our annual base rent on pro-rata basis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our Parent Company has no capital commitments other than its guarantees of the commitments of our Operating Partnership which are discussed further below under

Contractual Obligations The Parent Company will from time to time access the capital markets for the purpose of issuing new equity and will simultaneously contribute all of the

offering proceeds to the Operating Partnership
in exchange for additional

partnership units Any new debt is issued by our Operating Partnership or by our co-investment

partnerships Accordingly the discussion below regarding liquidity and capital resources is presented on consolidated basis for the Company The following table summarizes

net cash flows related to operating investing
and

financing
activities of the Company for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Net cash provided by operating activities 193862 219169 218167

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 45729 05775 412161

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 161647 11 0529 178616

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 77944 2865 5378

During 2009 we completed the following capital sourcing transactions

On
April 24 2009 we completed public offering

of 10.0 million common shares at $32.50 per share resulting in proceeds of $31 0.9 million net of issuance costs

portion
of which was used to fully repay the Companys $1 80.0 million balance on its line of credit and fund construction costs

On
July 2009 we closed on mortgage loans of $1 06.0 million secured by eight wholly-owned properties the Allianz Loan Additionally during 2009 our co-investment

partnerships closed on $348.3 million of mortgage loans for which our pro-rata share based upon our partnership ownership interests was $77.2 million

On October 27 2009 we finalized the formation of new co-investment partnership with the United Services Automobile Association the USM partnership in which we

have 20% ownership interest During 2009 we sold eight operating properties to the LJSM partnership for $133.9 million providing us with net proceeds of $1 03.3

million

On December 2009 we completed public offering of 8000000 common shares at $30.75 per share which will result in net proceeds of $235.8 net of issuance costs

at future settlement date expected to occur no later than 2011 In connection with this offering we entered into forward sale agreements with affiliates of J.P Morgan

Securities Inc and Wells Fargo Securities LLC as forward purchasers We intend to use the proceeds once settled to repay debt of the Operating Partnership This offering

also included an over-allotment option of 1200000 shares which closed simultaneously with the offering providing us with additional net proceeds of $35.4 million
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On December 31 2009 our cash balance was $99.5 million We operate our business such that we expect net cash provided by operating activities in combination with

proceeds generated from gains realized on sales of development properties and land will provide the necessary funds to pay our scheduled mortgage loan principal payments

capital expenditures necessary to maintain our shopping centers and distributions to our share and unit holders Net cash provided by operating activities plus gains from the

sale of development properties
and land of $5.8 million $34.3 million and $63.9 million totaled $199.7 million $253.5 million and $282.1 million for the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively During the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 we incurred capital expenditures to maintain our shopping

centers of $14.4 million $15.4 million and $1 5.1 million we paid scheduled principal payments of $5.2 million $4.8 million and $4.5 million and we paid distributions of

$183.1 million $222.9 million and $204.3 million respectively During 2009 these expenditures and distributions exceeded our cash provided by operating activities and gains

by $3.0 million due to decline in our revenues and gains which is discussed further below under Results from Operations Our Board of Directors anticipated these declines

and accordingly reduced our quarterly
dividend to $04625 per

share and unit beginning in May 2009 from the previous $0725 paid in March 2009 Our dividend distribution

policy is set by our Board of Directors who continuously
review our financial results and make decisions

they
believe prudent about distribution rates We plan to continue paying

an aggregate amount of distributions to our stock and unit holders that at minimum meet the requirements to continue qualifying as REIT for Federal income tax purposes

Commitments available to us under our Operating Partnerships unsecured line of credit the Line and
revolving

credit
facility

total $713.8 million As of February 26 2010

we had no balance outstanding on the Line or the revolving credit facility The Line is available to us through January2011 at which time we have the option to extend $600.0

million of the commitment to January 2012 Based upon our on-going discussions with our Line banks we believe we will be able to successfully negotiate
and extend the Line

at commitment level sufficient to meet our working capital and investment needs when it matures

We currently estimate that we will
require approximately $916.1 million through 2012

primarily
to repay $624.7 million of maturing debt complete in-process developments

and to fund our pro-rata
share of estimated capital contributions to our co-investment partnerships for repayment of debt Included in these capital requirements are $584.0

million of unsecured public
debt as further described below under Notes Payable which we intend to repay at maturity from the proceeds of new unsecured issues To the extent

that issuing
unsecured debt is cost prohibitive or unavailable we believe that we have sufficient unsecured assets available for secured mortgage financing whose proceeds

could be used to repay the unsecured debt at maturity When necessary the Line is available to fund our capital needs Also as mentioned previously we will receive $235.8

million of net proceeds once we settle the 8.0 million common share forward equity offering in the future

At December 31 2009 we had 40 properties under construction or undergoing major renovations on Combined Basis which when completed will represent net investment

of $820.7 million affer projected sales of adjacent land and out-parcels This compares to 45 properties that were under construction at December31 2008 representing an

investment of $993.2 million upon completion We estimate that we will earn an average return on investment from our current development projects of 6.6% when completed

and
fully

leased Average returns have declined over previous years primarily as result of longer lease up periods and reduced market rental rates Costs necessary to

complete the current development projects
net of reimbursements and projected land sales are estimated to be approximately $34.1 million

Our
joint ventures have $1.3 billion of secured mortgage loans and credit lines maturing through 2012 We believe that in order to refinance the maturing joint venture loans

we along with our joint venture partners will be required to contribute our pro-rata share of the capital necessary to reduce the amount of borrowings to acceptable loan to

value levels required for this type of financing We currently estimate that we will contribute approximately $206.4 million to our joint
ventures through 2012 for our pro-rata

share of the repayment of maturing debt net of the proceeds from new debt issues and we estimate our joint venture partners
will contribute $304.8 million for their share

more detailed loan maturity schedule is included below under Notes Payable

We believe that our joint venture partners are financially
sound and have sufficient

capital or access thereto to fund future capital requirements We communicate with our

co-investment partners regularly regarding the operating and capital budgets of our co-investment partnerships and believe that we will successfully complete the refinancing of

our joint venture debt as it matures In the event that co-investment partner was unable to fund its share of the capital requirements of the co-investment partnership we

would have the
right

but not the
obligation

to loan the defaulting partner the amount of its capital call at an interest rate at the lesser of prime plus pre-defined spread or the

maximum rate allowed by law decision to loan to defaulting joint venture partner which would be secured by the defaulting partners partnership interest would be based

on the fair value of the co-investment partnership assets our joint venture partners financial health and would be subject to an evaluation of our own capital commitments and

sources to fund those commitments Alternatively should we determine that our joint venture partners will not have sufficient capital to meet future capital needs we could

trigger liquidation of the partnership For the co-investment partnerships that have distribution-in-kind 01K provisions and own multiple properties liquidation of the

co-investment partnership could be completed by either DIK of the properties to each joint venture partner in proportion to its partnership interest open market sale or

combination of both methods Our co-investment partnership properties have been financed with non-recourse loans that represent 99% of the total debt of the co-investment

partnerships at December31 2009 including lines of credit We and our partners have no guarantees related to these loans In those co-investment partnerships which have

DIK
provisions

if we trigger liquidation by distribution in kind each partner would receive title to properties selected in rotation process for distribution and would assume any

related loans secured by the properties distributed The loan agreements generally provide for assumption by either joint venture partner after obtaining any required lender

consent We would only be responsible for those loans we assume through the DIK and only to the extent of the value of the property we receive since after assumption through

the DIK the loans would remain non-recourse We also have 50% investment interest in
single asset joint

venture with an $8.5 million loan which contains guarantees from

each partner limited however to their respective
interest

Our preferred stock and preferred units though callable by us are not redeemable in cash at the option
of the holders
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Although common or preferred equity
raised iii the public markets by the Parent Company is an option to fund future

capital needs access to these markets could be limited at

times During 2009 we successfully completed $607.9 million of common stock offerings
When conditions for the issuance of equity are acceptable we will evaluate issuing

equity to fund new acquisition opportunities fund new developments or repay maturing debt At December31 2009 the Parent Company and the Operating Partnership each

had
existing

shelf registration statements available for the issuance of new equity or debt securities respectively

INVESTMENTS IN REAL ESTATE PARTNERSHIPS

We account for certain investments in real estate partnerships using the equity method We have determined that these investments are not variable interest entities and do not

require
consolidation under Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 810 and therefore are subject to the voting interest

model in determining our basis of accounting Major decisions including property acquisitions not meeting pre-established
investment criteria dispositions financings annual

budgets and dissolution of the
joint

ventures are subject to the approval of all partners

Recognition of gains from sales to co-investment partnerships is recorded on only that portion of the sales not attributable to our ownership interest unless there are certain

provisions in the partnership agreement which allow the Company unilateral right to initiate DIK upon liquidation as described further below under our Critical Accounting

Policies and Note 1b Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in our Consolidated Financial Statements each included herein The presence of such DIK provisions requires

that we apply more restrictive method of gain recognition Restricted Gain Method on sales of
properties to these co-investment partnerships This method considers our

potential ability to receive property through 01K on which partial gain has been recognized and ensures maximum gain deferral upon sale to co-investment partnership

containing these unilateral 01K rights DIK-JV

The
operations

and
gains

related to properties sold to our investments in real estate partnerships are not classified as discontinued operations because we continue to provide to

these shopping centers property management services under market rate agreements with our co-investment partnerships For those properties acquired by the joint venture

from unrelated parties we are required to contribute our pro-rata share based on our ownership interest of the purchase price to the co-investment partnerships

At December31 2009 we had investments in real estate partnerships of $326.2 million The following table is summary of unconsolidated combined assets and liabilities of

these co-investment
partnerships

and our pro-rata share see note below at December31 2009 and 2008 dollars
in thousands

2009 2008

Numberof Joint Ventures 18 19

Regencys Ownership 16.35%-50% 16.35%-50%

Number of Properties
184 216

Combined Assets 4185181 4862730

Combined Liabilities 2644948 2973410

Combined Equity 1540233 1889320

Regencys Share ofa

Assets 998960 1171218

Liabilities 623884 705452

lal Pro-rata financial information is not and is not intended to be presentation in accordance With U.S generally accepted accounting principles However management believes that providing sach information is

aseful to investors in assessing the impact of its investments in real estate partnership activities on the operations of Regency which includes sach items on single line presentation ander the equity method in its

consolidated financial statements

Investments in real estate partnerships are primarily composed of co-investment partnerships in which we currently
invest with four co-investment

partners
and an open-end real

estate fund Regency Retail Partners or the Fund as further described below In addition to earning our pro-rata
share of net income or loss

including impairments in each

of these co-investment partnerships we received market-based fees for asset management disposition property management leasing investment and
financing

services of

$29.1 million $31.6 million and $28.3 million and transaction fees of $7.8 million $23.7 million and $4.0 million for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively
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Our investments in real estate partnerships as of December 31 2009 and 2008 consist of the following in thousands

OWNERSHIP 2009 2008

Macquarie CountryWide-Regency MCWR l1
11137

Macquarie CountryWide Direct MCWR l1
3760

Macquarie CountryWide-Regency II MCWR ll2 25.00% 154350 197602

Macquarie CountryWide-Regency Ill MCWR III 24.95% 351 623

Macquarie CountryWide-Regency-DESCO MCWR-DESCO 16.35% 24374 21924
Columbia Regency Retail Partners Columbia 20.00% 28347 29704
Columbia Regency Partners II Columbia II 20.00% 11202 12858
Cameron Village LLC Cameron 30.00% 18285 19479

RegCal RegCal 25.00% 12863 13766

Regency Retail Partners the Fund 20.00% 22114 23838
US Regency Retail USAA 20.01% 5111
Other investments in real estate partnerships 50.00% 49215 48717

Total
$326212 383408

At December31 2008 the Companys ownership interest in MCWR was 25.00% The liqsidation of MCWR was completed in 2009

12 At December31 2008 the Companys ownership interest in MCWR II was 24.95%

Investments in real estate partnerships are reported net of deferred
gains of $52.0 million and $88.3 million at December31 2009 and December31 2008 respectively

Cumulative deferred
gain amounts related to each co-investment

partnership are described below

We co-invest with the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund OPERF in three co-investment partnerships two of which we have ownership interests of 20% Columbia
and Columbia II and one in which we have an ownership interest of 30% Cameron Our investment in the three co-investment partnerships with OPERF totals $57.8 million

and represents 1.5% of our total assets at December31 2009 At December31 2009 the Columbia co-investment
partnerships

had total assets of $743.3 million and net

income of $5.4 million for the year ended Our share of Columbias total assets was $1 60.5 million which represents 4.0% of our total assets

As of December31 2009 Columbia owned 14 shopping centers had total assets of $320.4 million and net income of $6.7 million for the year ended The partnership

agreement has unilateral right to elect to dissolve the
partnership and receive DIK upon liquidation therefore we have applied the Restricted Gain Method to determine the

amount of
gain that we recognize on property sales to Columbia During 2009 we did not sell any properties to Columbia Since the inception of Columbia in 2001 we have

recognized gain of $2.0 million on partial sales to Columbia and deferred gain of $4.3 million In December 2008 we earned and recognized $19.7 million Portfolio Incentive

Return fee from OPERF based on Columbia ls out performance of the cumulative National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries NCREIF index since the inception of

the
partnership and hurdle rate as outlined in the

partnership agreement We collected this fee in full in April 2009

As of December31 2009 Columbia II owned 16 shopping centers had total assets of $313.3 million and net income of approximately $1 59000 for the year ended The

partnership agreement has unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive DIK upon liquidation therefore we have applied the Restricted Gain Method to

determine the amount of gain that we recognize on property sales to Columbia II During 2009 we did not sell any properties to Columbia II Since the
inception of Columbia II in

2004 we have recognized gain of $9.1 million on partial sales to Columbia II and deferred
gain

of $1 5.7 million

As of December31 2009 Cameron owned one shopping center had total assets of $109.6 million and net loss of $1.4 million for the year ended The
partnership

agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that would require us to apply the Restricted Gain Method Since the
inception of Cameron in 2004 we have not sold any

properties to Cameron

We co-invest with the California State Teachers Retirement System CaISTRS in joint venture RegCaI in which we have 25% ownership interest As of December31

2009 RegCal owned seven shopping centers had total assets of $155.1 million and net income of approximately $493000 for the year ended Our share of RegCaIs total

assets was $38.8 million which
represents .0% of our total assets The partnership agreement has unilateral right to elect to dissolve the

partnership and receive DIK upon

liquidation therefore we have applied the Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount of
gain that we recognize on property sales to RegCaI During 2009 we did not sell

any properties to RegCal Since the inception of RegCaI in 2004 we have recognized gain of $10.1 million on partial sales to RegCal and deferred
gain of $3.4 million

We co-invest with Macquarie CountryWide Trust of Australia MCW as the only other partner in three co-investment partnerships one in which we had an ownership interest

of 25% MCWR which was liquidated during 2009 as discussed below one in which we have an ownership interest of 24.95% MCWR Ill and one in which we have an

ownership interest of 16.35% MCWR-DESCO Our investment in the three co-investment partnerships with MCW totals $24.7 million and represents less than 1% of our

total assets at December31 2009 The MCW co-investment partnerships had total assets of $447.1 million and net loss of approximately $91 5000 for the year ended Our

share of the co-investment partnerships total assets was $78.8 million which represents 2.0% of our total assets

On January 14 2009 under the terms of the MCWR
partnership agreement MCW elected to dissolve the partnership During 2009 we completed the

liquidation of the

partnership through 01K which provided for distribution of the properties to each partner under an alternating selection process in proportion to the value of each partners

respective capital account in the
partnership as of the date of liquidation The total fair value of the properties was $467.3 million net of debt based on third

party appraisals As

result of the liquidation MCW received 34 properties and we received six properties through the DIK The six properties the Company received had fair value of $131.9
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million net of debt which represents return of our investment and $1 3.1 million promote which was not recognized in net income in accordance with the Restricted Gain

Method Consistent with the Restricted Gain Method the properties
that we received in liquidation were recorded at the net carrying value of our investment of $29.9 million

which is net of deferred gain previously
recorded of $40.8 million As result no gain or loss was recognized on the dissolution During 2009 MCWR sold one shopping center

to third party for $7.8 million and recognized gain of $3.7 million

As of December31 2009 MCWR Ill owned four shopping centers had total assets of $65.1 million and net loss of approximately $436000 for the year ended Effective

January 2010 the partnership agreement was amended to include unilateral right to elect to dissolve the
partnership

and receive 01K upon liquidation therefore we will

apply the Restricted Gain Method if additional properties are sold to MCWR Ill on or after January 2010 Accordingly we will recognize gains on such future sales only when

such gains
exceed amounts required to be deferred under the Restricted Gain Method During 2009 we did not sell any properties to MCWR Ill Since the inception of MCWR Ill

in 2005 we have recognized gain of $14.1 rrlillion on partial sales to MCWR Ill and deferred gain of $4.7 million

As of December 31 2009 MCWR-DESCO owned 32 shopping centers had total assets of $382.1 million and recorded net loss of $5.3 million for the year ended The

partnership agreement does not contain any 01K provisions
that would require us to apply

the Restricted Gain Method Since the inception of MCWR-DESCO in 2007 we have

not sold any properties
to MCWR-DESCO

We co-invest with MCW and Global Retail Investors LLC GRI joint venture between the California Public Employees Retirement System CaIPERS and an affiliate of First

Washington Realty Inc in one co-investment partnership
in which we have an ownership interest of 25% MCWR II Our investment in MCWR II totals $1 54.4 million and

represents 3.9% of our total assets at December 31 2009

On July 17 2009 we announced that MCW had agreed to sell 60% of its
partnership

interest in MCWR II to GRI in two closings The initial closing was completed on July 31

2009 with MOW selling 45% of its 75% interest to GRI As part of the closing we acquired Macquarie-Regency Management LLCs US Manager 0.1% ownership of MCWR

II US Manager was owned 50/50 by us and an affiliate of Macquarie Bank Limited The transaction increased our ownership in MCWR II to 25% from 24.95% At the initial

closing we received disposition
fee of $7.8 million from MCW equal to 1% of the gross sales price paid by GRI At the second closing SRI will acquire from MOW an

incremental 15% interest increasing
its total ownership in MCWR II to 60% We expect this to occur during 2010 once the existing mortgage lenders consent to the transaction

We will retain asset management property management and leasing responsibilities
For our ongoing services we are to receive an additional disposition

fee from MOW equal

to 1% of the gross sales price paid by GRI at future closings As part
of the agreement we negotiated two separate options to acquire additional interests in the partnership less

discount of 7.7% If both options were exercised we would acquire
15% interest in MCWR II increasing our total ownership to 40% In November 2009 we exercised our two

options to acquire the additional 15% interest in MCWR II Closing
is contingent upon obtaining lender consents and is expected in early 2010 We funded the purchase price of

$16.0 million on December 23 2009 which will be held in escrow until closing

As of December31 2009 MCWR II owned 86 shopping centers had total assets of $2.2 billion and net loss of $112.4 million for the year ended The net loss was primarily

related to the provision for impairment recorded during 2009 as result of MOWS decision to sell its interest in MCWR II which resulted in change in holding period
for certain

properties
As part of the sale negotiations tile joint venture identified 14 properties

that it would target for sale over the next three years These properties were previously

expected to be held and used long term and this change in the properties holding periods resulted in provision
for impairment of $104.4 million Effective January 2010

the partnership agreement was amended to include unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive DIK upon liquidation therefore we will apply the Restricted

Gain Method if additional properties are sold to MCWR Ii on or after January 2010 Accordingly we will recognize gains on such future sales only when such gains
exceed

amounts required to be deferred under the Restricted Gain Method During 2009 we did not sell any properties to MCWR II Since the inception of MCWR II in 2005 we have

recognized gain of $2.3 million on partial
sales to MCWR II and deferred gain

of approximately $766000

We co-invest with Regency Retail Partners the Fund an open-ended infinite life investment fund in which we have an ownership interest of 20% As of December31 2009

the Fund owned nine shopping centers had total assets of $367.4 million and recorded net loss of $3.4 million for the year ended Our share of the Funds total assets was

$73.4 million which represents 1.8% of our total assets The partnership agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that would require us to apply
the Restricted Gain

Method During 2009 we did not sell any properties to the Fund Since the inception of the Fund in 2006 we have recognized gains of $71.6 million on partial sales to the Fund

and deferred gains of $1 7.9 million

On October 27 2009 we finalized the formation of new real estate partnership US Regency Retail LLC with United Services Automobile Association the USM

partnership in which we have an ownership interest of 20.01% and sold seven shopping centers to the real estate partnership One additional property was sold to the USM

partnership on November 2009 The eight properties were sold for $133.9 million and net proceeds from the sale to the Company were $103.4 million The partnership

agreement has unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership and receive 01K upon liquidation therefore we applied the Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount

of gain recognized We recognized gain of $19.1 million and deferred gain of $8.1 million on these partial
sales to the USM partnership

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

We have debt obligations related to our mortgage loans unsecured notes and our Unsecured credit facilities as described further below We have shopping centers that are

subject to non-cancelable long-term ground leases where third party owns and has leased the underlying land to us to construct and/or operate shopping center In addition

we have non-cancelable operating leases pertaining to office space from which we conduct our business The table excludes reserves for approximately $3.2 million related to

environmental remediation as discussed below under Environmental Matters as the timing
of the remediation is not currently known The table also excludes obligations related

to construction or development contracts because payments are only due upon satisfactory performance under the contract
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The following table of Contractual Obligations summarizes our debt maturities including interest excluding recorded debt premiums or discounts that are not obligations and

our obligations under non-cancelable
operating

and ground leases as of December31 2009 including our pro-rata share of
obligations within co-investment partnerships

excluding interest in thousands

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

BEYOND

YEARS TOTAL2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Notes Payable

Regencyl $280083 316704 344807 93822 241097 1120511 2397024

RegencysshareofJV2 160173 112037 61551 8982 21540 220159 584442

Operating Leases

Regency 4990 4898 4612 4405 3465 8113 30483

Regencys share of JV

Ground Leases

Regency 2108 2123 2211 2521 2525 110475 121963

Regencys share of JV 204 204 204 204 204 7255 8275

Total $447558 435966 413385 109934 268831 1466513 3142187

Amounts include interest payments

Amounts exclude interest payments

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not have off-balance sheet arrangements financings or other
relationships with other unconsolidated entities other than our co-investment partnerships or other

persons also known as variable interest entities not previously discussed

NOTES PAYABLE

The Line commitment is
currently $600.0 million under an agreement with Wells Fargo Bank and syndicate of other banks that matures in February 2011 with one-year

extension at our option We have the
right to expand the Line commitment by an additional $150.0 million

subject to additional lender syndication The Line has current

interest rate of LIBOR plus 55 basis points and an annual facility fee of 15 basis points subject to
maintaining our corporate credit and senior unsecured ratings at BBB In April

2009 we paid down the Line balance to zero and there was no balance at December 31 2009 The balance on the Line was $70.0 million at December31 2008 with

contractual interest rate of .34% based on LIBOR
plus 40 basis points

During 2008 we entered into $341.5 million term loan facility the Term Facility under an agreement with Wells Fargo Bank and syndicate of other banks that matures in

February 2011 The Term Facility originally
included term loan of $227.7 million plus $113.8 million revolving credit

facility In December 2009 we paid off the balance of

the term loan and it is no longer available to us however the
revolving credit facility remains available to us at our discretion At December31 2009 and 2008 the balance on

the Term Facility was zero and $227.7 million respectively
At December31 2009 the revolving credit facility had variable interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 100 basis points

as compared to LIBOR plus 90 basis points at December 31 2008 and an annual facility fee of 20 basis points subject to maintaining our corporate credit and senior unsecured

ratings at BBB At December31 2008 the term loan had variable interest rate of 3.30% or LIBOR plus 105 basis points

On September 30 2009 Standard and Poors
Rating Services lowered our corporate credit

rating
and senior unsecured debt rating to BBB from BBB primarily related to the

reduction in our Coverage ratio in 2009 As result of this downgrade the interest rate on the Line increased to LIBOR
plus 55 basis points and the interest rate on the revolving

portion of the Term Facility increased to LIBOR
plus 100 basis points respectively effective October 2009

Including
both the Line commitment and the Term Facility collectively Unsecured credit

facilities we currently have $71 3.8 million of total capacity and the interest rate

spread paid is dependent upon our maintaining specific investment-grade ratings We are also
required to comply with certain financial covenants as defined in the Credit

Agreement such as Minimum Net Worth Ratio of Total Liabilities to Gross Asset Value GAV and Ratio of Recourse Secured Indebtedness to GAV Ratio of EBITDA to Fixed

Charges and other covenants customary with this type of unsecured financing As of December31 2009 management believes we are in compliance with all financial

covenants for our Unsecured credit facilities Our Unsecured credit facilities are used to finance the acquisition and development of real estate and for general working-capital

purposes

Notes payable consist of secured mortgage loans and unsecured public debt Mortgage loans may be prepaid but could be subject to yield maintenance premiums Mortgage

loans are generally due in monthly installments of principal and interest or interest only and mature over various terms through 2019 whereas interest on unsecured
public

debt is payable semi-annually and matures over various terms through 2017 We intend to repay mortgage loans at maturity with proceeds from similar new issues or from the

Line Fixed interest rates on mortgage notes payable range from 4.44% to 8.40% and average 6.63% During 2009 we completed the following financing transactions

On October 23 2009 we closed on an amendment on our only variable rate mortgage loan in the amount of $5.0 million with an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 350 basis

points originally maturing on October 2009 extending the loan
maturity to October 2014 with an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 380 basis points
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On September 2009 we closed on $1 0.7 million two-year construction loan for development project with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 300 basis points The balance

outstanding was approximately $992000 at December31 2009

On July 2009 we closed on mortgage loans of $106.0 million secured by eight properties with an interest rate of 7.75% and ten-year term

In conjunction with properties
distributed to us as part of the liquidation of MCWR we assumed four mortgage loans During January 2009 we assumed two mortgage loans

with carrying values of $17.0 million and $42.1 million with ten-year terms and interest rates of 6.13% and 6.38% respectively During December 2009 we assumed two

mortgage loans with carrying values of $4.5 million and $7.0 million maturing on May 2010 with interest rates of 4.44%

On August 18 2009 we completed cash tender offer and purchased $1 9.5 million in principal of our $150 million 8.45% unsecured notes due September 2010 and

$46.5 million in principal
of our $220 million 7.95% unsecured notes due January 15 2011 the Notes The total consideration paid for the Notes was $69.5 million or

$1035 per $1000 in
principal plus accrued and unpaid interest The payment was funded from available cash and we recorded loss of $2.7 million for this early

extinguishment of debt

Outstanding debt at December 31 2009 and 2008 consists of the following in thousands

2009 2008

Notes payable

Fixed rate mortgage loans
398820 235150

Variable rate mortgage loans 5596 5130

Fixed rate unsecured loans 1481964 597624

Total notes payable
1886380 1837904

Unsecured credit facilities
297667

Total
$1886380 2135571

At December31 2009 99.7% of our total debt had fixed interest rates compared with 85.8% at December31 2008 We intend to limit the percentage of variable interest

rate debt to be no more than 30% of total debt which we believe to be an acceptable risk Currently our variable rate debt represents
less than 1% of our total debt

The carrying
value of our variable rate notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities are based upon spread above LIBOR which is lower than the spreads available in

the current credit market causing the fair value of such variable rate debt to be below its carrying value The fair value of fixed rate loans are estimated using cash flows

discounted at current market rates available Ic us for debt with similar terms and maturities Fixed rate loans assumed in connection with real estate acquisitions are recorded in

the accompanying consolidated financial statements at fair value at the time of acquisition excluding those loans assumed in DIK
liquidations

which are assumed at carrying

value Based on the estimates used the fair value of notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities is approximately $1 .4 billion and $1.3 billion at December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively

As of December31 2009 scheduled principal repayments on notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities were as follows in thousands

SCHEDULED

PRINCIPAL MORTGAGE LOAN UNSECURED

PAYMENTS MATURITIES PUBLIC DEBTSCHEDULED PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS BY YEAR

2010 4986 28523 140461 173970

2011 4837 12268 193486 210591

2012 5105 250000 255105

2013 4979 16348 21327

2014 8168 11916 150000 170084

Beyond Years 8853 299280 750000 1058133

Unamortized debt discounts net 847 1983 2830

Total $36928 367488 1481964 1886380

TOTAL
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At December31 2009 our investments in real estate partnerships had notes payable of $2.5 billion maturing through 2028 of which 97.0% had weighted average fixed

interest rates of 5.6% The remaining notes payable had variable interest rates based on LIBOR plus spread in range of 145 to 150 basis points Our pro-rata share of these

loans was $585.5 million We and our partners have no guarantees related to these loans except for an $8.5 million loan related to our ownership interest in one single asset

real estate partnership where we are only responsible for our pro-rata share of the loan As of December31 2009 scheduled principal repayments on notes payable held by our

investments in real estate partnerships were as follows in thousands

SCHEDULED PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS BY YEAR

2010 3642 613310 26858 643810 160173
2011

3578 448787 452365 112037
2012 4396 244418 248814 61551
2013 4226 32447 36673 8982
2014 4213 77290 81503 21540

Beyond Years 25555 983875 1009430 220159

Unamortized debt premiums net
5333 5333 1030

Total
$45610 2405460 26858 2477928 585472

We are exposed to capital market risk such as changes in interest rates In order to manage the volatility related to interest rate risk we originate new debt with fixed interest

rates or we may enter into interest rate hedging arrangements We do not utilize derivative financial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes On March 10 2006 we

entered into four
forward-starting interest rate swaps totaling $396.7 million with fixed rates of 5.399% 5.415% 5.399% and 5.415% On April 16 2009 we paid $20.0

million to partially settle $106.0 million of the $396.7 million interest rate swaps in place to hedge the $1 06.0 million mortgage loan issued on July 2009 described

previously
For $90.7 million of the remaining Swaps we continue to expect to issue new secured or unsecured debt for term of to 12 years prior to July 2010 For

$200.0 million of the remaining Swaps we continue to expect to issue new debt for term of to 12
years during

the
period between March 31 2010 and March 31

2011 The fair value of these swaps was liability of $28.4 million at December31 2009 If we were to no longer expect to issue new debt within the terms and
periods

described above we would be required to immediately charge the change in the fair value of these Swaps to net income as well as all future changes in value During December

2009 following the successful completion of our 8.0 million share common stock offering discussed previously we revised our assumptions of future debt issues by delaying

portion of our expected issuances into 2011 Although we still expect to issue new debt within the time frames
originally contemplated the change in our issuance assumptions

caused
portion of our Swaps to become ineffective due to an over-hedged position and resulted in us recognizing loss on hedge ineffectiveness of $3.3 million The valuation

of these derivative instruments is determined
using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative

This
analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives including the period to maturity and uses observable market-based inputs including interest rate curves and

implied volatilities We incorporate credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both our nonpertormance risk and the respective counterpartys nonperformance risk in

the fair value measurements Although we have determined that the majority of the inputs used to value our derivatives fall within Level of the fair value hierarchy the credit

valuation adjustments associated with our derivatives utilize Level inputs such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of default by ourselves and our

counterparties

EQUITY AND CAPITAL

We have issued common and preferred stock from the Parent Company and common and preferred units from the Operating Partnership to fund our capital commitments and to

maintain conservative capital structure as described below

EQUITY OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The Series and preferred shares are perpetual are not convertible into common stock of the Parent Company and are redeemable at par upon our election beginning five

years
after the issuance date None of the terms of the preferred stock contain any unconditional obligations that would

require us to redeem the securities at any time or for any

purpose and we do not currently anticipate redeeming any preferred stock Terms and conditions of the three series of preferred stock outstanding as of December31 2009 are

summarized as follows

SHARES LIQUIDATION

OUTSTANDING PREFERENCE

TOTAL

SCHEDULED

PRINCIPAL

PAYMENTS

MORTGAGE LOAN

MATURITIES

UNSECURED

MATURITtES

REGENCYS

PRO-RATA

SHARE

SERIES

Series 3000000 75000000 7.45% 04/03/08

Series 5000000 125000000 7.25% 08/31/09

Series 3000000 75000000 6.70% 08/02/10

11000000 $275000000

DISTRIBUTION

RATE

CALLABLE

BY COMPANY
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Common Stock

On December 2009 the Parent Company completed public offering of 80 million common shares at $30.75 per
share which will result in net proceeds of $235.8 net of

issuance costs These shares are subject to the forward sale agreements described below This offering
also included an over-allotment option

of .2 million shares which

closed simultaneously for proceeds of $35.4 million

In connection with this offering the Parent Company entered into forward sale agreements with affiliates of J.P Morgan and Wells Fargo Securities as forward purchasers We

intend to use the proceeds upon settlement of the forward sale agreements to refinance debt maturing in 2010 which includes portion of our pro-rata
share of existing debt of

MCWR II as such
joint

venture debt matures and for general corporate purposes

On April 24 2009 the Parent Company completed public offering
of 10.0 million common shares at $32.50 per

share resulting in proceeds of $310.9 million net of issuance costs

The funds were used to pay-off the $180.0 million Line balance with the remaining funds retained for future working capital needs including repayment of maturing debt investments in

real estate partnership capital calls to the extent required based on our respective ownership interest in such partnership and costs to complete in-process development projects

Treasury Stock

On December31 2009 the Parent Company cancelled the 5661520 treasury
shares outstanding

Noncontrolling Interests of Preferred Units

We have issued Preferred Units through the Operating Partnership in various amounts since 1998 primarily to institutional investors in private placements Generally the

Preferred Units may be exchanged by the holders for Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock of the Parent Company after specified date at an exchange rate of one share for

one unit The Preferred Units of the Operating Partnership and the related Preferred Stock of the Parent Company are not convertible into common stock of the Parent Company

At December31 2009 and 2008 only the Series Preferred Units were outstanding with face value of $50.0 million and fixed distribution rate of 7.45% These Units could

be called by the Parent Company beginning September 29 2009 and have no stated maturity or mandatory redemption Included in the Series Preferred Units are original

issuance costs of approximately $842000 that will be expensed if they are redeemed in the future

Noncontrolling Interest of Exchangeable Operating Partnerships Units

As of December31 2009 and 2008 the Operating Partnership had 468211 limited Partnership Units outstanding that were not owned by the Parent Company representing

less than 1% of the outstanding Partnership
Units of the Operating Partnership The redemption value of the limited Partnership Units is based on the closing market price of the

Parent Companys common stock which was $35.06 and $46.70 per
share as of December31 2009 and 2008 respectively an aggregate redemption value of $16.4 million

and $21.9 million respectively

Noncontrolling Interests of Limited Partners Interest in Consolidated Partnerships

Limited partners
interests in consolidated partnerships not owned by us are classified as noncontrolling interests on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets Subject to certain

conditions and pursuant to the conditions of the agreement we have the right
but not the obligation to purchase the other members interest or sell our own interest in these

consolidated partnerships
At December31 2009 and 2008 the noncontrolling

interest in these consolidated partnerships was $11.7 million and $8.0 million respectively

CAPITAL OF THE OPERATING PARTNERSHIP

Preferred Units

The Series Preferred Units are owned by institutional investors At December 31 2009 and 2008 the face value of the Series Preferred Units was $50.0 million with fixed

distribution rate of 7.45% and recorded in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets net of original
issuance costs of approximately $842000 that will be expensed if

redeemed in the future See above for further discussion

Preferred Units of General Partner

The Parent Company as general partner owns corresponding Series and preferred unit interests Series and Preferred Units in the Operating Partnership See

above for further discussion

General Partner

As of December31 2009 the Parent Company as general partner owned approximately 99% or 81539296 of the total 82007507 Partnership
Units outstanding

Limited Partners

As of December31 2009 and 2008 the Operating Partnership
had 468211 limited Partnership

Units outstanding

Noncontrolling Interests of Limited Partners Interests in Consolidated Partnerships

See above for further discussion
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Knowledge about our accounting policies is necessary for complete understanding of our financial statements The
preparation

of our financial statements requires that we

make certain estimates that impact the balance of assets and liabilities at financial statement date and the reported amount of income and expenses during financial

reporting period These accounting estimates are based upon but not limited to our judgments about historical results current economic
activity

and
industry accounting

standards They are considered to be critical because of their significance to the financial statements and the
possibility

that future events may differ from those judgments or

that the use of different assumptions could result in materially different estimates We review these estimates on periodic
basis to ensure reasonableness however the

amounts we may ultimately realize could differ from such estimates

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable represent revenues recognized in our financial statements and include base rent percentage rent and

expense recoveries from tenants for common area maintenance costs insurance and real estate taxes We analyze tenant receivables historical bad debt levels customer

credit-worthiness and current economic trends when evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts Our reported net income loss is directly affected by our

estimate of the
recoverability

of accounts receivable

Recognition of Gains from the Sales of Real Estate Profits from sales of real estate are not recognized under the full accrual method by us unless sale is consummated the

buyers initial and continuing investment is adequate to demonstrate commitment to pay for the property receivable if applicable is not subject to future subordination we

have transferred to the buyer the usual risks and rewards of ownership and we do not have substantial continuing
involvement with the property

We sell shopping center properties to joint ventures in exchange for cash equal to the fair value of the percentage interest acquired by our partners We have accounted for those

sales as partial sales and recognized gains on those partial sales in the period the properties were sold to the extent of the percentage interest sold and in the case of certain

joint venture partnerships we apply more restrictive method of
recognizing gains as discussed further below The

gains
and operations associated with properties sold to

these joint venture partnerships are not classified as discontinued
operations

because we continue to partially own and manage these shopping centers

Certain DIK-JVs give either partner the unilateral right to elect to dissolve the joint venture partnership and upon such an election receive distribution in-kind of the assets of

the joint venture partnership equal to its respective ownership interests The liquidation provisions require that all of the
properties

owned by the
joint venture partnership

be

appraised to determine their respective and collective fair values As general rule if we initiate the
liquidation process our partner

has the
right to choose the first

property
that

it will receive in liquidation and we have the right to choose the next property
that we will receive in

liquidation
if our partner

initiates the
liquidation process the order of the

selection process is reversed The process then continues with
alternating

selection of
properties by each

partner
until the balance of each partners capital account on fair

value basis has been distributed After the final selection to the extent that the fair value of properties in the DIK-JV is not distributable in manner that equals the balance of

each partners capital account cash payment would be made to the other partner by the partner receiving fair value in excess of its capital account The
partners may also

elect to liquidate some or all of the properties through sales rather than through the DIK process

We have concluded that these DIK dissolution provisions constitute in-substance call/put options and represent form of continuing involvement with respect to property that we

sold to these
joint venture partnerships limiting our recognition of gain related to the partial sale This more restrictive method of gain recognition the Restricted Gain Method

considers our potential ability to receive
property through DIK on which partial gain has been recognized and ensures as discussed below maximum gain deferral upon sale

to DIK-JV We have applied the Restricted Gain Method to partial sales of property to joint venture partnerships that contain such unilateral DIK provisions

Profit shall be recognized by method determined by the nature and extent of the sellers continuing
involvement and the

profit recognized shall be reduced by the maximum

exposure to loss We have concluded that the Restricted Gain Method accomplishes this
objective

Under the Restricted Gain Method for purposes of gain deferral we consider the aggregate pool
of

properties
sold into the DIK-JV as well as the aggregate pool of properties

which will be distributed in the DIK process As result upon the sale of properties to DIK-JV we perform hypothetical DIK liquidation analysis assuming that we would

choose only those properties that we have sold to the DIK-JV in an amount equal to our capital account For purposes of
calculating

the
gain

to be deferred we assume that the

Company will select properties in 01K liquidation that would otherwise have generated the
highest gain to us when

originally
sold to the DIK-JV and include for such

determination the fair value in properties that could be received in excess of the Companys capital account The deferred
gain

to be recorded upon sale of property to

DIK-JV is calculated whenever property is sold to the DIK-JV by us During the
periods

when there are no property
sales to DIK-JV the deferred gain is not recalculated

Because the contingency associated with the possibility of receiving particular property back upon liquidation which forms the basis of the Restricted Gain Method is not

satisfied at the property level but at the aggregate level no gain is recognized on property sold by the DIK-JV to third party or received by us upon actual dissolution Instead

the property received upon actual dissolution is recorded at the carrying value of our investment in the DIK-JV on the date of dissolution reduced by the deferred gain

Capitalization
of Costs We

capitalize
the acquisition of land the construction of buildings and other specifically identifiable development costs incurred by recording them into

properties in development in our accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets In summary project changes from non-operating to operating when it is substantially completed

and held available for occupancy At that time costs are no longer capitalized
Other development costs include pre-development costs essential to the development of the

property as well as interest real estate taxes and direct employee costs incurred during
the development period Pre-development costs are incurred prior to land acquisition

during
the due diligence phase and include contract deposits legal engineering and other professional fees related to evaluating

the
feasibility

of developing shopping center

At December31 2009 and 2008 we capitalized pre-development costs of approximately $816000 and $7.7 million respectively
of which approximately $325000 and $2.3

million respectively were refundable contract deposits If we determine that the development of specific project undergoing due
diligence

is no longer probable we
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immediately expense all related capitalized pie-development costs not considered recoverable During the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 we expensed

pre-development costs of approximately $3.8 million $1 5.5 million and $5.3 million respectively recorded in other expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of

Operations Interest costs are capitalized into each development project
based on applying our weighted average borrowing rate to that portion of the actual development costs

expended We cease interest cost capitalization when the property is no longer being developed or is available for occupancy upon substantial completion of tenant

improvements but in no event would we capitalize interest on the
project beyond 12 months after substantial completion of the building shell During the years ended

December31 2009 2008 and 2007 we capitalized interest of $19.1 million $36.5 million and $35.4 million respectively on our development projects We have staff of

employees the Investment Group who support our development program All direct internal costs attributable to these development activities are capitalized as part of each

development project During the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 we capitalized $6.5 million $27.8 million and $39.0 million respectively of direct costs

incurred by the Investment Group The capitalization of costs is directly related to the actual level of development activity occurring As result of the current economic downturn

development activity slowed significantly during 2009 resulting in reduction in capitalized costs and corresponding increase in
general

and administrative expenses as

non-capitalized Investment Group costs were charged to earnings During 2009 we significantly
reduced our Investment Group staff to adjust to lower level of development

activity expected in the future as compared to periods prior to 2009 If accounting standards issued in the future were to limit the amount of internal costs that may be

capitalized we could incur additional increases in general and administrative expenses which would further reduce net income

Real Estate Acquisitions Upon acquisition of operating real estate properties we estimate the fair value of acquired tangible assets consisting of land building and

improvements and identity intangible assets and liabilities consisting of above- and below-market leases in-place leases and tenant relationships and assumed debt Based

on these estimates we allocate the purchase price to the applicable assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquireD We utilize methods

similar to those used by independent appraisers in estimating
the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities We evaluate the useful lives of amortizable intangible assets each

reporting period and account for any changes in estimated useful lives over the revised remaining useful life

Valuation of Real Estate Investments Our long-lived assets primarily real estate held for investment are carried at cost unless circumstances indicate that the carrying value of

the assets may not be recoverable We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate such an evaluation is warranted If we

determine that the carrying amount of property is not recoverable we write down the asset to fair value For
properties to be held and used for

long
term investment we

estimate undiscounted future cash flows over the expected investment term including
the estimated future value of the asset upon sale at the end of the investment period

Future value is generally determined by applying
market-based

capitalization
rate to the estimated future net operating income in the final year of the expected investment

term If after applying this method
property

is determined to be impaired we determine the provision for impairment based upon current market resale values through

comparable sales information and other market data if available or by applying
market capitalization rate to current estimated net operating income For properties held for

sale we estimate current market resale values through appraisal
less expected costs to sell loss in value of an investment under the equity method of accounting which is

other than temporary decline must be recognized in the
period

in which the loss occurs In the case of our investments in unconsolidated real estate partnerships we

calculate the present value of our investment by discounting estimated future cash flows over the expected term of the investment Methods of determining fair value can

fluctuate as result of number of factors including changes in the general economy of those markets in which we operate our estimated
holding period of the property tenant

credit quality and demand for new retail stores If as result of change in our strategy
for

specific property
which we own directly or through our co-investment partnerships

property previously classified as held and used is changed to held for sale or if its estimated holding period changes such change could cause us to determine that the

property is impaired and provision for impairment in relation to that property would be recorded by us either directly or through reduction of our equity
in income of real estate

partnerships

Discontinued Operations The application of current accounting principles that govern the classification of any of our properties as held-for-sale on the balance sheet or the

presentation of results of operations
and

gains on the sale of these
properties as discontinued requires management to make certain significant judgments We classity an

operating property or property in development as held-for-sale when we determine that the property is available for immediate sale in its present condition the property is

being actively marketed for sale and management believes it is probable that sale will be consummated within one year Given the nature of real estate sales contracts it is

not unusual for such contracts to allow contractual buyer due
diligence period to evaluate the

property
with the right to cancel the contract without any financial loss In

addition certain other matters critical to the final sale such as financing arrangements often remain pending even upon contract acceptance As result properties under

contract may not close within the expected time period or may not close at all Therefore any properties categorized as held-for-sale represent only those properties that

management has determined are likely to close within the requirements set forth above In order to determine if the results of operations and gain on sale should be reflected as

discontinued operations prior to the sale we evaluate the extent of involvement and significance of cash flows the sale will have with property after the sale Any property sold

in which we have significant continuing involvement or cash flows most often sales to co-investment
partnerships

in which we continue to manage the property is not

considered to be discontinued In addition any property which we sell to an unrelated third party but which we retain
property management function is not considered

discontinued Therefore only properties sold or to be sold to unrelated third
parties

where we will have no significant continuing
involvement or significant cash flows are

classified as discontinued and its operations including any mortgage interest and
gain on sale are reported

in discontinued
operations so that the operations are clearly

distinguished Prior periods are also reclassified to reflect the
operations

of these
properties as discontinued operations When we sell operating properties to our joint ventures

or to third parties and will have continuing involvement the operations and gains on sales are included in income from continuing operations If circumstances arise that

previously were considered unlikely and as result we decide not to sell
property previously

classified as held for sale the property is reclassified as held and used and is

measured individually at the lower of its carrying amount before the property was classified as held for sale adjusted
for any depreciation

and amortization expense that would

have been recognized had the property been continuously classified as held and used or ii the fair value at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell Any required

adjustment to the carrying amount of the property
reclassified as held and used is included in income from

continuing operations
in the period of the subsequent decision not to

sell If property is reclassified as held and used the results of operations
of the

property previously reported
in discontinued operations are reclassified and included in income

from continuing operations for all periods presented
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Investments in Real Estate Partnerships
In addition to owning real estate directly we invest in real estate through our co-investment partnerships As asset and property

manager we conduct the business of the Unconsolidated Properties held in the co-investment partnerships in the same way that we conduct the business of the Consolidated

Properties
that are wholly-owned therefore the Critical Accounting Policies as described are also applicable to our investments in the real estate partnerships We account for

all investments in which we do not have controlling financial ownership interest using the equity method We have determined that these investments are not variable interest

entities and do not require consolidation and therefore are subject to the voting interest model in determining our basis of accounting Decisions including property acquisitions

and dispositions financings certain leasing arrangements annual budgets and dissolution of the joint ventures are subject to the
approval

of all partners or in the case of the

Fund its advisory committee

Income Tax Status The prevailing assumption underlying
the operation of our business is that the Parent Company will continue to operate in order to quality as REIT as

defined under the Internal Revenue Code the Code The Parent Company is required to meet certain income and asset tests on periodic basis to ensure that it continues to

qualify as REIT As REIT the Parent Company is allowed to reduce taxable income by all or portion of its distributions to stockholders We evaluate the transactions that we

enter into and determine their impact on our REIT status Determining our taxable income calculating distributions and evaluating transactions requires us to make certain

judgments and estimates as to the positions we take in our interpretation of the Code Because many types of transactions are susceptible to varying interpretations under

federal and state income tax laws and regulations our positions are subject
to change at later date upon final determination by the taxing authorities however we reassess

such positions at each reporting period

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 201 0-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures 820 Improving Disclosures about Fair

Value Measurements ASU 2010-06 ASU 201 0-06 provides amendments to Subtopic 820-10 and
requires new disclosures for transfers in and out of Levels and and

activity in Level fair value measurements ASU 2010-06 also clarifies existing disclosure requirements for the level of disaggregation
for each class of assets and liabilities and

for the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value ASU 2010-06 is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual
periods ending after

December 15 2009 except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the roll forward of
activity

in Level fair value measurements which is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal years We adopted this ASU on December31 2009

In December 2009 the FASB issued ASU No 2009-17 Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises
Involved with Variable Interest Entities ASU 2009-1 ASU

2009-17 was issued to reflect the amendments from Statement 167 Amendments to FASB Interpretation No 46R as revision to FASB
Interpretation

No 46 Revised

December 2003 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities ASU 2009-17 changes how reporting entity determines when an entity that is insufficiently capitalized or is not

controlled through voting or similar rights should be consolidated The determination of whether reporting entity is required to consolidate another
entity

is based on among

other things the other entitys purpose and design and the reporting entitys ability to direct the activities of the other entity that most significantly impact the other
entitys

economic performance ASU 2009-17 was effective January 2010 and early application is not permitted We have evaluated the adoption of this ASU and it will not have an

effect on our results of
operations or financial position as we do not currently have any variable interests that we believe would require

consolidation

RESULTS FROM OPERATIONS

Comparison of the years ended December 31 2009 to 2008

At December31 2009 on Combined Basis we were operating or developing 400 shopping centers as compared to 440 shopping centers at December31 2008 The

decline in properties is related to the liquidation of the assets of MCWR where the properties were distributed through 01K to MCW and Regency and in which we received six

properties

We
identify our shopping centers as either properties in development or operating properties Properties in development are defined as properties

that are in the construction or

lease-up process and have not reached their initial full occupancy development property becomes an operating property at the earlier to occur of attaining 95% leased and

rent paying or four
years

from the start of site work regardless of the leased At December31 2009 on Combined Basis we had 40 development properties as compared

to 45
properties

at December31 2008

Our revenues decreased by $6.7 million or 1.3% to $489.2 million in 2009 as summarized in the following table in thousands

2009 2008 CHANGE

Minimum rent $345610 334509 11101

Percentage rent 3585 4258 673

Recoveries from tenants and other income 101748 101096 652

Management transaction and other fees 38289 56032 7743

Total revenues $489232 495895 6663

Our decline in revenues was related to one-time transaction fee earned and recognized in 2008 which is more fully described in the table and discussion below The increase

in minimum rent relates primarily to new properties
distributed to us as part of the MCWR 01K liquidation and new rent generated by the development properties In addition to
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collecting minimum rent from our tenants we also collect percentage rent from certain tenants based on their sales volumes which is lower than 2008 due to previous

percentage rent tenants renewing their leases upon expiration and converting their percentage rent to higher base rent Recoveries from tenants represent reimbursements from

tenants tor their
pro-rata

share of the operating maintenance and real estate tax expenses that we incur to operate our shopping centers Recoveries trom tenants were higher

in 2009 due to increases in our operating expenses but our recoveries as percentage of the expenses related only to our operating properties declined to 77.3% trom 83.0%

in 2008 as result of decline in our occupancy percentage and an increase in non-recoverable expenses

Our operating properties excluding those in development on pro-rata basis were 93.1% leased at December31 2009 as compared to 93.8% at the end ot 2008 Our

renewal rate of expiring leases was 74.7% tor the year ended but rental rates on leases executed during 2009 declined 2.7% as compared to the previous rental rates earned

on the same GLA under previous leases During 2008 our renewal rate was 79.5% and rental rates on leases executed grew by 10.6% Our lease renewal rates and rental

growth rates in 2009 were severely impacted by the recent recession We anticipate that occupancy levels in our operating properties could fluctuate between 90.0% and

92.5% during 2010 and average rental rates on leases executed in 2010 could decline by 2% to 8% both of which could result in reduced revenues through 2010

We earn fees at market-based rates for asset management disposition property management leasing acquisition and financing services that we provide to our

co-investment partnerships and third parties as follows in thousands

2009 2008 CHANGE

Asset management fees 9671 11673 2002

Property management tees 15031 16132 1101

Leasing commissions 4012 2363 1649

Transaction fees 9249 25155 5906

Other third party fees 326 709 383

$38289 56032 7743

Asset management fees which are tied to the value of the real estate we manage in the co-investment partnerships declined
during

2009 due to an overall decline in

commercial real estate values
during

the
past

18 months and also due to reduction in the number of
joint venture partnership properties we manage as result of the DIK

liquidation
of MCWR

Property management lees which are calculated based on percentage of revenues earned in the
joint venture partnerships declined as result of an

11 .6% decline in 2009
joint venture partnership revenues as compared to 2008 Leasing commissions were higher

in 2009 as we leased more space in 2009 as compared to

2008 however tenant moveouts on square foot basis outpaced new leasing during 2009 causing net decline in our occupancy rate The decrease in transaction fees

relates to $19.7 million Portfolio Incentive Return Fee earned and recognized in 2008 not recurring
in 2009 During 2009 we received $7.8 million disposition fee from MCW

in relation to MCWs partial sale of its investment in MCWR II to GRI

Our operating expenses increased by $30.3 million or 10.9% to $308.0 million in 2009 The following table summarizes our operating expenses in thousands

2009 2008 CHANGE

Operating maintenance and real estate taxes $119884 107652 12232

General and administrative 54136 49495 4641

Depreciation
and amortization 116924 104569 12355

Provision for doubtful accounts 8791 1170 7621

Other expenses net 8284 14824 6540

Total
operating expenses $308019 277710 30309

Increases in operating maintenance and real estate taxes along with depreciation and amortization expense are primarily related to the six
properties

distributed to us as part of

the MCWR DIK liquidation during 2009 not included in the 2008 amounts $111.3 million of recently completed developments commencing operations
in the current year and

general increases in expenses incurred by the operating properties General and administrative expense is 9.4%
higher

in 2009
primarily

related to $7.5 million in severance and

benetit payments associated with two reductions in force completed during 2009 offset by reductions in incentive compensation for not achieving targeted performance levels

During 2009 we increased the allowance for doubtful accounts to reserve for past due amounts reflecting to significantly higher tenant default rate on rental payments as

tenants struggled in period of much lower consumer spending The decline in other expenses is due to reduction in pre-acquisition development costs being written off as

result of much lower new development pursuit activity

The
following

table presents the change in interest expense from 2009 to 2008 in thousands

2009 2008 CHANGE

Interest on Unsecured credit facilities 5985 2655 6670

Interest on notes payable 126083 121335 4748

Capitalized
interest 19062 36510 7448

Interest income 3767 4696 929

$109239 92784 16455
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Interest on Unsecured credit facilities decreased by $6.7 million as result of lower average outstanding balances on our credit facilities in 2009 as compared to 2008 At

December31 2009 the balance of our Line was zero we had repaid the term loan portion of our unsecured Term
Facility

and we completed partial
tender offer of

outstanding unsecured debt Interest on notes payable increased as result of issuing $1 06.0 million secured mortgage loans in addition to four mortgage loans assumed as

part of the MCWR 01K liquidation Capitalized interest declined as in-process developments were completed during 2009 and new development activity declined

During 2009 we sold 18 out-parcels for net proceeds of $27.8 million and recognized gain
of approximately $219000 whereas during 2008 we sold 12 out-parcels for net

proceeds of $38.2 million and recognized gain of $1 .2 million During 2009 we also sold eight operating properties to the USM
partnership

for net proceeds of $1 03.3

million and recognized gains of $19.1 million recorded under the Restricted Gain Method During 2008 we sold four
properties to several

joint
ventures for net proceeds of

$110.5 million and recognized gains of $13.8 million recorded under the Restricted Gain Method

During the year ended December31 2009 we recorded
provision

for impairment of $104.4 million of which $93.7 million related to land held for future development or sale

During 2009 prospective
anchor tenant for several development sites expressed considerable uncertainty about the timing and location of future stores given the continuation

of the weak economy and reductions in consumer spending As result we reevaluated and reduced the probability of future development at these sites and accordingly

reduced our carrying value in the land parcels to estimated fair value Included in the impairment loss was $1 0.2 million provision related to operating properties that became

targeted
for sale in the near future which caused us to re-evaluate and reduce our expected holding periods for these assets and corresponding future cash flows We also

recorded reserve of $465000 on note receivable in default During the year ended December 31 2008 we recorded provision for impairment of $34.9 million of which

$7.2 million related to land held for future development or sale $20.6 million related to operating properties $1.1 million related to note receivable in default and $6.0 related

to our investment in real estate partnerships

Our equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships decreased by $31.7 million
during

2009 as follows in thousands

OWNERSHIP 2009 2008 CHANGE

Macquarie Countrywide-Regency MCWR l1 1207 488 719

Macquarie Countrywide Direct MCWR l1 697 697

Macquarie Countrywide-Regency II MCWR ll2 25.00% 28308 672 27636

Macquarie Countrywide-Regency Ill MCWR III
24.95% 150 203 53

Macquarie Countrywide-Regency-DESCO MCwR-DESCO 16.35% 883 823 60

Columbia Regency Retail Partners Columbia 20.00% 914 2105 1191

Columbia Regency Partners II Columbia II
20.00% 28 169 141

Cameron Village LLC Cameron 30.00% 436 65 371

RegCal LLC RegCal 25.00% 123 1678 1555

Regency Retail Partners the Fund 2000% 464 233 231

US Regency Retail LLC USM 20.01%

Other investments in real estate partnerships
50.00% 1302 1745 443

Total $26373 5292 31665

At Decewber 31 2008 the companys ownership interest in MCWR was 25.00% The liquidation of MCWR was complete effective December31 2009

21 At December 31 2008 the companys ownership interest in MCWR II was 24.95%

The decrease in our equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships
is

primarily
related to provision for impairment of $1 04.4 million recognized by MCWR II

associated with multiple shopping centers that became targeted
for sale in the near future Our pro-rata share of this provision for impairment was $26.1 million Excluding the

impairment the declines in revenues or losses incurred by our co-investment
partnerships were directly related to reductions in operating revenues as occupancy levels declined

in 2009 and to increased allowances for doubtful accounts as they also experienced significantly higher
tenant default rate during difficult economic environment

Income from discontinued operations was $5.9 million for the year ended December 31 2009 related to the operations of shopping centers sold or classified as held-for-sale in

2009 and 2008 whereas income from discontinued operations was $22.0 million for the year ended December31 2008 Income from discontinued operations for the year

ended December31 2009 includes gains from the sale of four properties in development for net proceeds of $29.8 million and gains of $5.6 million one operating property

which was sold for net proceeds of $1 9.5 million and gain of approximately $273000 and the
operations

of shopping centers sold or classified as held-for-sale in 2009 and

2008 Income from discontinued operations for the year ended December31 2008 includes
gains

from the sale of seven properties in development for net proceeds of $55.3

million and gains of $14.0 million three operating properties
which were sold for net proceeds of $30.9 million and gains of $3.5 million and the operations of shopping centers

sold or classified as held-for-sale in 2009 and 2008 If we sell property or classify property as held-for-sale we are required to reclassify its operations into discontinued

operations for all prior periods which results in reclassification of amounts previously reported as continuing operations into discontinued operations

Related to our Parent Companys results our net loss attributable to common stockholders for the year ended 2009 was $56.4 million decrease of $172.9 million as

compared with net income of $116.5 million in 2008 The decline in net income was primarily related to the $104.4 million provision for impairment recorded in 2009 our

$26.1 million pro-rata share of the provision
for impairment recorded by MCWR II and reduction in gains from the sale of real estate during

2009 as compared to 2008 Our

diluted net loss per share was $0.74 in 2009 as compared to diluted net income
per

share of $1.66 in 2008
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Related to our Operating Partnership results cur net loss attributable to common unit holders for the year ended 2009 was $56.6 million decrease $174.0 million as

compared with net income of $117.4 million in 2008 for the same reasons stated above Our diluted net loss per unit was $0.74 in 2009 as compared to net income per unit of

$1.66 in 2008

Comparison of the years ended December31 2008 to 2007

Our revenues increased by $59.9 million or 13.7% to $495.9 million in 2008 as summarized in the following table in thousands

2008 2007 CHANGE

Minimum rent $334509 308108 26401

Percentage rent 4258 4655 397

Recoveries from tenants and other income 101096 90179 10917

Management transaction and other fees 56032 33064 22968

Total revenues $495895 436006 59889

The increase in revenues was primarily related to higher minimum rent from growth in rental rates from the renewal of expiring leases or re-leasing vacant space in the

operating properties ii minimum rent generated from shopping center acquisitions in 2007 and iii recently completed shopping center developments commencing operations

in the current year Recoveries increased as result of an increase in our operating expenses The increase in management transaction and other fees is primarily related to

the recognition of $19.7 million Portfolio Incentive Return fee in December 2008 The fee was earned based upon Columbia outperforming the NCREIF index since the

inception of the partnership and hurdle rate outlined in the partnership agreement

Fees earned for asset management disposition property management leasing acquisition and financing services from our co-investment partnerships and third parties are

summarized as follows
in thousands

2008 2007 CHANGE

Asset management fees $11 673 11021 652

Property management fees 16132 13865 2267

Leasing commissions 2363 2319 44

Transaction fees 25155 5055 20100

Other third party fees 709 804 95

$56032 33064 22968

The increase in transaction fees of $20.1 million is related to the $19.7 million Portfolio Incentive Return fee discussed above Asset and property management fees increased

during 2008 as result of providing those management services to MCWR-DESCO for the entire year during
2008 as compared to only portion of 2007 when MCWR-DESCO

was formed

Our operating expenses increased by $29.8 million or 12.0% to $277.7 million in 2008 as summarized in the following table in thousands

2008 2007 CHANGE

Operating maintenance and real estate taxes $1 07652 97910 9742

General and administrative 49495 50580 1085
Depreciation and amortization 04569 89365 15204

Provision for doubtful accounts 1170 1170

Other expenses net 14824 10057 4767

Total operating expenses $277710 247912 29798

The increase in operating maintenance and real estate taxes was primarily due to new properties acquired during 2007
operating

for the entire year during 2008 recently

completed developments commencing operations during 2007 and to
general

increases in expenses incurred by the
operating properties On average approximately 79% of

these costs are recovered from our tenants through recoveries included in our revenues General and administrative expense declined as result of reducing incentive

compensation directly tied to performance targets
associated with reductions in new development and reduced

earning metrics both of which were directly impacted by the

economic downturn during 2008 During 2008 we also recorded restructuring charges of $2.4 million for employee severance and benefits related to employee reductions in

force The increase in
depreciation

and amortization expense is
primarily

related to acquisitions
in 2007

operating
for full year in 2008 and

recently completed developments

commencing operations
in the current year The increase in other expenses is related to expensing more pre-development costs in 2008 than in 2007

directly
related to

slowing development program due to the current economic environment
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The following table presents the change in interest expense from 2008 to 2007 in thousands

2008 2007 CHANGE

Interest on Unsecured credit facilities 2655 01 17 2538

Interest on notes payable 121335 11 0775 0560

Capitalized interest 36510 35424 1086
Interest income 4696 3079 1617

92784 82389 10395

Interest on Unsecured credit facilities increased during 2008 by $2.5 million due to the increase in the outstanding balance under the Unsecured credit facilities Interest

expense on notes payable increased
during

2008 by $10.6 million due to higher outstanding debt balances
including the issuance of $400.0 million of unsecured debt in

September 2007 the
acquisition

of shopping centers in 2007 and the mortgage debt placed on consolidated
joint venture in 2008 The higher development project costs also

resulted in an increase in
capitalized

interest

Gains on sale of real estate included in continuing operations were $20.3 million in 2008 as compared to $52.2 million in 2007 Included in 2008 gains are $5.3 million gain

from the sale of 12 out-parcels for net proceeds of $38.2 million $1.2 million
gain recognized on two out-parcels originally deferred at the time of sale and $1 3.8 million

gain net of the
greater

of our ownership interest or the
gain

deferral under the Restricted Gain Method described in our Critical Accounting Policies from the sale of four

properties in development to joint ventures for net proceeds of $110.5 million Included in 2007 gains are $7.2 million
gain

from the sale of 27 out-parcels for net proceeds of

$55.9 million $40.9 million gain from the sale of five properties in development to the Fund for net proceeds of $1 02.8 million $2.2 million
gain

related to the
partial

sale of

our interest in the Fund and $1.9 million gain from our share of contractual earn out payment related to property previously
sold to joint venture There were no property

sales to DIK-JVs in 2007

During 2008 we established
provision

for impairment of approximately $34.9 million $3.4 million of which was reclassed to discontinued operations when the property was

sold in 2009 Included in the
provision

is $27.8 million for estimated impairment losses on eight operating properties one large parcel of land held for future development along

with several smaller land out-parcels $6.0 million on two of our investments in real estate partnerships and $1.1 million related to note receivable

Our
equity

in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships decreased by $1 28 million
during 2008 as follows in thousands

OWNERSHIP 2008 2007 CHANGE

Macquarie CountryWide-Regency MCWR 25.00% 488 9871 9383

Macquarie CountryWide Direct MCWR 25.00% 697 457 240

Macquarie CountryWide-Regency II MCWR II 24.95% 672 3236 2564

Macquarie CountryWide-Regency Ill MCWR III 24.95% 203 67 136

Macquarie CountryWide-Regency-DESCO MCWR-DESCO 16.35% 823 465 358

Columbia Regency Retail Partners Columbia 20.00% 2105 2440 335

Columbia Regency Partners II Columbia II 20.00% 169 189 20
Cameron Village LLC Cameron 30.00% 65 74

RegCal RegCal 25.00% 1678 662 01

Regency Retail Partners the Fund 20.00% 233 326 559

Other investments in real estate partnerships 50.00% 1745 7856 6111

Total $5292 18093 12801

The decrease in our equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships is primarily related to higher gains recorded in 2007 from the sale of shopping centers sold

by MCWR as well as the sale of shopping center owned by joint venture classified above in other investments in real estate partnerships

Income from discontinued operations was $22.0 million for the year ended December31 2008 related to the sale of seven properties in development and three operating

properties sold to unrelated parties for net proceeds of $86.2 million including the operations of shopping centers sold or classified as held-for-sale in 2008 Income from

discontinued operations was $34.0 million for the year ended December31 2007 related to the sale of four properties in development and three operating properties to

unrelated parties for net proceeds of $112.3 million and including the operations of shopping centers sold or classified as held-for-sale in 2008 and 2007 In compliance with

Statement 144 if we sell property or classify property as held-for-sale we are required to reclassify its operations into discontinued operations for all prior periods which

results in reclassification of amounts previously reported as continuing operations into discontinued operations Our income from discontinued operations is shown net of

income taxes of $2.0 million for the year ended December 31 2007

Related to our Parent Companys results net income attributable to common stockholders for the year ended decreased $67.5 million to $116.5 million in 2008 as compared

with $1 84.0 million in 2007 primarily related to lower gains recognized from the sale of real estate and the provision
for impairment recorded in 2008 as discussed

previously

Diluted earnings per share was $1.66 in 2008 as compared to $2.65 in 2007
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Related to our Operating Partnerships results net income attributable to common unit holders for the year ended decreased $68.2 million to $117.4 million in 2008 as

compared with $1 85.6 million in 2007 for the reasons stated above Diluted earnings per unit was $1.66 in 2008 as compared to $2.65 in 2007

ENVIRONMENTAL MATIERS

We are subject to numerous environmental laws and
regulations as they apply to our shopping centers pertaining to chemicals used by the

dry cleaning industry the existence of

asbestos in older shopping centers and underground petroleum storage tanks We believe that the tenants who currently operate dry cleaning plants or gas stations do so in

accordance with current laws and regulations Generally we use all legal means to cause tenants to remove dry cleaning plants from our shopping centers or convert them to

non-chlorinated solvent systems Where available we have applied and been accepted into state-sponsored environmental programs We have blanket environmental

insurance policy that covers us against third-party
liabilities and remediation costs on shopping centers that currently have no known environmental contamination We have also

placed environmental insurance where possible on specific properties
with known contamination in order to mitigate our environmental risk We monitor the shopping centers

containing environmental issues and in certain cases voluntarily
remediate the sites We also have legal obligations to remediate certain sites and we are in the process of doing

so We estimate the cost associated with these legal obligations to be approximately $3.2 million all of which has been reserved We believe that the ultimate
disposition

of

currently known environmental matters will not have material effect on our financial position liquidity or operations however we can give no assurance that existing

environmental studies on our shopping centers have revealed all potential environmental liabilities that any previous owner occupant or tenant did not create any material

environmental condition not known to us that the current environmental condition of the shopping centers will not be affected by tenants and occupants by the condition of

nearby properties or by unrelated third parties or that changes in
applicable

environmental laws and regulations or their interpretation will not result in additional environmental

liability to us

INFLATION/DEFLATION

Inflation has been historically low and has had minimal impact on the operating performance of our shopping centers however more recent data suggests inflation will

eventually become greater concern as the economy begins to recover from the recent recession Substantially all of our long-term leases contain
provisions designed to

mitigate the adverse impact of inflation Such provisions
include clauses enabling us to receive percentage rent based on tenants gross sales which

generally
increase as prices

rise and/or escalation clauses which generally increase rental rates during the terms of the leases Such escalation clauses are often related to increases in the consumer price

index or similar inflation indices In addition many of our leases are for terms of less than ten years which permits us to seek increased rents upon re-rental at market rates

Most of our leases require tenants to pay their pro-rata share of operating expenses including common-area maintenance real estate taxes insurance and utilities thereby

reducing our exposure to increases in costs and operating expenses resulting
from inflation However during deflationary periods or periods of economic weakness minimum

rents and percentage rents will decline as the supply of available retail space exceeds demand and consumer spending declines Occupancy declines resulting
from weak

economic period will also likely result in lower recovery rates of our operating expenses
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

MARKET RISK

We are exposed to two significant components of interest rate risk Our Line commitment has variable interest rate that is based upon LIBOR plus spread of 55 basis points

and our revolving credit facility has variable interest rate based upon LIBOR plus spread of 100 basis points LIBOR rates charged on our Unsecured credit facilities change

monthly The spread on the Unsecured credit facilities is dependent upon maintaining specific credit ratings If our credit ratings are downgraded the spread on the Unsecured

credit facilities would increase resulting in higher interest costs We are also exposed to higher interest rates when we refinance our existing long-term fixed rate debt The

objective
of our interest rate risk management is to limit the impact of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs To achieve

these objectives we borrow primarily at fixed interest rates and may enter into derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps caps or treasury locks in order to

mitigate our interest rate risk on related financial instrument We do not enter into derivative or interest rate transactions for
speculative purposes

We have $375.2 million of fixed rate debt maturing in 2010 and 2011 that has weighted average fixed interest rate of 7.95% which includes $334.0 million of unsecured

long-term debt During 2006 we entered into four forward-starting interest rate swaps the Swaps totaling $396.7 million with fixed rates of 5.399% 5.415% 5399% and

5.415% We designated these Swaps as cash flow hedges to lock in the underlying treasury rates on $334.0 million of the financing expected to occur in 2010 and 2011 As

result of decline in 10 year Treasury interest rates since the inception of the Swaps the fair value of the Swaps as of December 31 2009 is reflected as liability
of $28.4

million in accompanying consolidated balance sheet It remains highly probable that the forecasted transactions will occur as projected at the inception of the Swaps and

therefore the change in fair value of the Swaps is reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income loss in the accompanying consolidated financial statements If we

were to no longer expect to issue debt as originally forecasted we would be required to immediately expense the change in fair value of the Swaps to net income including
all

future changes until settled During the year ended December31 2009 we had $3.3 million of hedge ineffectiveness recognized in earnings attributable to our revised

assumptions of future debt issues To the extent that future 10-year Treasury rates at the future settlement dates are higher
than current rates this liability will decline If

liability exists at the dates the Swaps are settled the liability will be amortized over the term of the respective debt issuances as additional interest expense in addition to the

stated interest rates on the new debt On April 16 2009 we paid $20.0 million to settle and partially settle $106.0 million of our $396.7 million of interest rate swaps in place

to hedge forecasted debt On July 2009 we closed on mortgage loans of $1 06.0 million secured by eight properties with an interest rate of 7.75% and 10-year term For

$90.7 million of the remaining Swaps we continue to expect to issue new secured or unsecured debt for term of to 12 years prior to July 2010 For $200.0 million of the

remaining Swaps we continue to expect to issue new debt for term of to 12 years during the period between March 31 2010 and March 31 2011 We continuously

monitor the capital markets and evaluate our ability to issue new debt to repay maturing debt or fund our commitments Based upon the current capital markets our current

credit ratings and the number of high quality
unencumbered properties that we own which could collateralize borrowings we expect that we will be able to successfully issue

new secured or unsecured debt to fund our obligations
An increase of 1.0% in the interest rate of new debt issued above that of maturing debt would result in additional

annual interest expense of $3.3 million subject to the impact of the annual amortization that would be incurred as result of settling the Swaps

Our interest rate risk is monitored using variety of techniques The table below presents the principal
cash flows in thousands weighted average interest rates of remaining

debt and the fair value of total debt in thousands as of December 31 2009 by year of expected maturity to evaluate the expected cash flows and sensitivity to interest rate

changes Although the average interest rate for variable rate debt is included in the table those rates represent rates that existed at December31 2009 and are subject to

change on monthly basis

The table incorporates only
those exposures that exist as of December31 2009 and does not consider exposures or positions that could arise after that date Since firm

commitments are not presented the table has limited predictive value As result our ultimate realized
gain or loss with respect to interest rate fluctuations will depend on the

exposures that arise during
the period our hedging strategies at that time and actual interest rates

FAIR

VALUE2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 THEREAFTER TOTAL

Fixed rate debt $173766 209395 254901 21123 166296 1058133 1883614 1433836

Average interest rate for all fixed rate debta 6.19% 5.96% 5.80% 5.78% 5.90% 6.26%

Variable rate LIBOR debt 204 1196 204 204 3788 5596 4573

Average interest rate for all variable rate debta 5.33% 5.80% 5.80% 5.80%

al Average interest rates at the end of each year presented

The fair value of total debt in the table above is $1.4 billion versus the face value of $1 .9 billion which suggests that as new debt is issued in the future to repay maturing debt

the cost of new debt issuances will be higher
than the current cost of existing debt
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Regency Centers Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Regency Centers Corporation and subsidiaries the Company as of December31 2009 and 2008 and the

related consolidated statements of operations equity and comprehensive income loss and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December31

2009 In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements we also have audited financial statement Schedule Ill These consolidated financial statements and

financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and

financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards
require

that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Regency Centers
Corporation and

subsidiaries as of December31 2009 and 2008 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December31

2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic

consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in note to the consolidated financial statements in 2009 the Company retrospectively changed its method of accounting for noncontrolling interests due to the

adoption of new accounting requirements

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Regency Centers Corporations internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated February 26 201 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting

LL7

February 26 2010

Jacksonville Florida

Certified Public Accountants
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Regency Centers Corporation

We have audited Regency Centers Corporations the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Regency Centers Corporations management is

responsible
for

maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial

reporting
based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting evaluating managements assessment testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company

and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material

effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future

periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion Regency Centers Corporation maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Regency Centers

Corporation and subsidiaries as of December31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations equity and comprehensive income loss and cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December31 2009 and the related financial statement schedule and our report dated February 26 2010 expressed

an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement schedule

LL1

February 26 2010

Jacksonville Florida

Certified Public Accountants
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Unit holders of Regency Centers and

the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Regency Centers Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Regency Centers and subsidiaries the Partnership as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the

related consolidated statements of operations changes in capital and comprehensive income loss and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended

December 31 2009 In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements we also have audited financial statement Schedule Ill These consolidated financial

statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Partnerships management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of Regency Centers L.P and subsidiaries as of

December31 2009 and 2008 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December31 2009 in conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting princples Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial

statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in note to the consolidated financial statements in 2009 the Company retrospectively changed its method of accounting for noncontrolling interests due to the

adoption
of new accounting requirements

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Regency Centers L.P.s internal control over

financial reporting as of December31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated February 26 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnerships internal control over

financial reporting

LCP

February 26 2010

Jacksonville Florida

Certified Public Accountants
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Unit holders of Regency Centers and

the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Regency Centers Corporation

We have audited Regency Centers L.P.s the Partnerships internal control over financial reporting as of December31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Regency Centers management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting

and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our
responsibility

is to express an opinion on the Partnerships internal control over financial reporting based

on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting evaluating managements assessment testing
and

evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit
provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding

the
reliability

of financial
reporting

and the preparation of

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial
reporting

includes those

policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company

and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition
of the companys assets that could have material

effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future

periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion Regency Centers L.P maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December31 2009 based on criteria

established in Internal Control
Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Regency Centers

and subsidiaries as of December31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in
capital

and comprehensive income loss and cash

flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December31 2009 and the related financial statement schedule and our report dated February 26 2010 expressed

an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and the related financial statement schedule

LCP

February 26 2010

Jacksonville Florida

Certified Public Accountants
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December31 2009 and 2008

in thousands except share data 2009 2008

Assets

Real estate investments at cost notes and 14
Land 975861 923062

Buildings
and improvements 2017843 1974093

Properties in development 920427 078885

3914131 3976040

Less accumulated depreciation 622163 554595

3291968 3421445

Operating properties held for sale net 19647 66447

Investments in real estate partnerships 326212 383408

Net real estate investments 3637827 3871300

Cash and cash equivalents 99477 21 533

Notes receivable note 37753 31438

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $6567 and $1837 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively 40871 46501

Straight line rent receivable net of reserve of $1899 at December31 2009 39292 37595

Other receivables note 19700

Deferred costs less accumulated amortization of $58861 and $51549 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively 58376 57477

Acquired lease intangible assets less accumulated amortization of $11632 and $11204 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

note 10007 12903

Other assets 50203 43928

Total assets $3973806 4142375

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

Notes payable note $1886380 1837904

Unsecured credit facilities note 297667

Accounts payable and other liabilities 99145 141395

Derivative instruments at fair value note 28363 83691

Acquired lease
intangible liabilities less accumulated accretion of $9715 and $8829 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

note 5896 7865

Tenants security and escrow deposits 10628 11571

Total liabilities 2030412 2380093

Commitments and contingencies notes 14 and 15

Equity

Stockholders equity notes 11 12 and

Preferred stock $01 par
value per share 30000000 shares authorized 11 000000 Series 3-5 shares issued and outstanding at

December31 2009 and 2008 with liquidation preferences of $25 per share 275000 275000

Common stock $01 par value per share 50000000 shares authorized 81539296 and 75634881 shares issued at

December31 2009 and 2008 respectively 815 756

Treasury stock at cost 5598211 shares held at December 31 2008 111414
Additional paid in capital 2022670 1778265

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 49973 90689
Distributions in excess of net income 373345 155057

Total stockholders equity 1875167 1696861

Noncontrolling interests

Series preferred units aggregate redemption value of $50000 at December31 2009 and 2008 49158 49158

Exchangeable operating partnership units aggregate redemption value of $16415 and $21865 at December31 2009 and 2008

respectively note 10 7321 8283

Limited partners interest in consolidated partnerships 11748 7980

Total noncontrolling interests 68227 65421

Total equity 1943394 1762282

Total liabilities and equity $3973806 41 42375

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands except per share data

Revenues

2009 2008 2007

Total revenues

Operating expenses

Depreciation and amortization 116924 104569 89365

Operating and maintenance 66061 59140 54095

General and administrative 54136 49495 50580

Real estate taxes 53823 48512 43815

Provision for doubtful accounts 8791 1170

Other expenses 8284 14824 0057

Total operating expenses 308019 277710 247912

Other expense income

Interest expense net of interest income of $3767 $4696 and $3079 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively 109239 92784 82389

Gain on sale of
operating properties

and
properties

in development 19357 20346 52215

Provision for impairment 97519 31469

Early extinguishment of debt 2784

Loss on derivative instruments note 3294

Total other expense income 193479 103907 30174

Income loss before equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships 12266 114278 157920

Equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships note 26373 5292 8093

Income loss from continuing operations 38639 119570 176013

Discontinued operations net note

Operating income loss from discontinued operations 61 4570 8718

Gain on sale of operating properties and properties in development 5835 7381 25285

Income loss from discontinued operations 5896 21951 34003

Net income loss 32743 141521 210016

Noncontrolling interests

Preferred units 3725 3725 3725
Exchangeable operating partnership units 216 907 1650
Limited partners interests in consolidated

partnerships 452 701 990

Net income attributable to controlling interests 3961 5333 6365

Net income loss attributable to controlling
interests 36704 136188 203651

Preferred stock dividends 19675 19675 19675

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 56379 116513 183976

Income loss per common share basic note

Continuing operations 0.82 1.35 2.16

Discontinued operations 0.08 0.31 0.49

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders per share 0.74 .66 2.65

Income loss per common share diluted note

Continuing operations 0.82 1.35 2.16

Discontinued operations 0.08 0.31 0.49

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders per share 0.74 1.66 2.65

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Minimum rent note 14

Percentage rent

Recoveries from tenants and other income

Management transaction and other fees

$345610 334509 308108

3585 4258 4655

101748 101096 90179

38289 56032 33064

489232 495895 436006
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

In thousands except per share data

Balance at December31 2006

Comprehensive Income note

Net income

Amortization of loss on derivative instruments

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income loss

Restricted stock issued net of amortization note 12

Common stock redeemed for taxes withheld for stock based compensation net

Common stock issued for dividend reinvestment plan

Tax benefit for issuance of stock options

Common stock issued for partnership units exchanged

Reallocation of limited partners interest

Contributions from partners

Distributions to partners

Cash dividends declared

Preferred stock/unit

Common stock/unit $2.64 per share

Balance at December31 2007

Comprehensive Income note

Net income

Amortization of loss on derivative instruments

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income loss

Restricted stock issued net of amortization note 12

Common stock redeemed for taxes withheld for stock based compensation net

Common stock issued for dividend reinvestment plan

Tax benefit for issuance of stock options

Common stock issued for
partnership

units exchanged

Reallocation of limited partners interest

Contributions from partners

Distributions to partners

Cash dividends declared

Preferred stock/unit

Common stock/unit $2.90 per share

Balance at December31 2008

Comprehensive Income note

Net income loss

Loss on settlement of derivative instruments

Amortization of loss on derivative instruments

Loss on derivative instruments

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income loss

Restricted stock issued net of amortization note

Common stock redeemed for taxes withheld for stock based compensation net

Common stock issued for dividend reinvestment plan

Tax benefit for issuance of stock options

Common stock issued for stock offerings net of issuance costs

Treasury stock cancellation

Contributions from partners

Distributions to partners

Cash dividends declared

Preferred stock/unit

Common stock/unit $2.11 per share

Balance at December 31 2009

17723

7813
4075

1909

8604

2419

8190

3659
4473

2285

232

464

5961

343

3222

552

345685

111358

PREFERRED

STOCK

$275000

ACCUMULATED

ADDITIONAL OTHER

TREASURY

STOCK

111414

PAID IN

CAPITAL

1744201

COMMON

STOCK

744

COMPREHENSIVE

LOSS

13061

1297

6858

$275000 752 111414 1766280 18622

1297

73364

$275000 756 111414 1778265 90689

19863
2292

3275

55012

112

56 111414

$275000 815 2022670 49973
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NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

LIMITED

EXCHANGEABLE PARTNERS

DISTRIBUTIONS TOTAL OPERATING INTEREST IN TOTAL

IN EXCESS OF STOCKHOLDERS PREFERRED PARTNERSHIP CONSOLIDATED NONCONTROLLING TOTAL

NET INCOME EQUITY UNITS UNITS PARTNERSHIPS INTERESTS EQUITY

69516 1825954 49158 16065 17797 83020 1908974

203651 203651 3725 1650 990 6365 210016

1297 1306

6858 47 47 6905

198090 6327 204417

17725 17725

7811 7811
4076 4076

1909 1909

8607 8607 8607
2419 2419 2419

4483 4483 4483

4879 4879 4879

19675 19675 3725 3725 23400
183395 183395 1570 1570 184965

68935 1843061 49158 9919 18391 77468 1920529

136188 136188 3725 907 701 5333 141521

1297 1306

73364 491 491 73855

64121 4851 68972

8193 8193

3659 3659
4474 4474

2285 2285

232 232 232
464 464 464

3157 3157 3157

14269 14269 14269

19675 19675 3725 3725 23400
202635 202635 1365 1365 204000

155057 1696861 49158 8283 7980 65421 1762282

36704 36704 3725 216 452 3961 32743
19863 114 114 19977

2292 13 13 2305

3275 19 19 3294

55012 316 316 55328

4012 4195 8207

5963 5963

343 343

3223 3223

552 552

345797 345797

4197 4197 4197

881 881 881

19675 19675 3725 3725 23400

161909 161909 980 980 162889

373345 1875167 49158 7321 11748 68227 1943394
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CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by operating
activities

Depreciation and amortization

Deferred loan cost and debt premium amortization

Above and below market lease intangibles amortization and accretion

Stock-based compensation net of capitalization

Equity
in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships

Net
gain on sale of properties

Provision for doubiful accounts

Provision for impairment

Early extinguishment of debt

Distribution of earnings from operations of investments in real estate partnerships

Settlement of derivative instruments

Loss on derivative instruments

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Straight-line rent receivables net

Other receivables

Deferred leasing costs

Other assets

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Tenants security and escrow deposits

2009 2008 2007

32743 141521 210016

117979 107846 93508

5822 4287 3249

1867 2376 1926
4668 5950 11572

26373 5292 18093

25192 37843 79627

9078 1197

104402 34855

2784

31252 30730 30547

19953
3294

2995 6621 5665

3959 3709 4375
19700 19700

9799 6734 8126
16493 12839 15861

18035 12423 2101

454 320 847

Net cash provided by operatirlg activities 193862 219169 218167

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of operating real estate 63117

Development of real estate including acquisition of land 142989 388783 619282

Proceeds from sale of real estate investments 180307 274417 270981

Collection of notes receivable 13572 28287 545

Investments in real estate partnerships 28709 48619 42660

Distributions received from investments in real estate partnerships 23548 28923 41372

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 45729 105775 412161

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from common stock issuance 345800 1020 2383

Distributions to limited partners in consolidated partnerships net 872 14134 4632

Distributions to exchangeable operating partnership unit holders 980 1363 572

Distributions to preferred unit holders 3725 3725 3725
Dividends paid to common stockholders 158690 198165 179325

Dividends paid to preferred stockholders 19675 19675 9675

Repayment of fixed rate unsecured notes 116053

Proceeds from issuance of fixed rate unsecured notes 398108

Repayment of proceeds from unsecured credit facilities 297667 89667 87000

Proceeds from notes payable 106992 62500

Repayment of notes payable 8056 19932 89719

Scheduled principal payments 5214 4806 4545

Payment of loan costs 1195 1916 5682

Payment of premium on tender offer 2312

Net cash used in provided by financing activities 161647 11 0529 178616

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 77944 2865 5378

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 21533 8668 34046

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 99477 21533 8668
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED
For the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands 2009 2008 2007

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest net of capitalized interest of $19062 $36510 and $35424 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively $112730 94632 82833

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions

Common stock issued for partnership units exchanged 232 8607

Real estate received through distribution in kind $100717

Mortgage loans assumed through distribution in kind 70541

Security deposits received through distribution in kind 265

Mortgage loans assumed for the acquisition of real estate 42272

Real estate contributed for investments in real estate partnerships 26410 6825 11007

Notes receivable taken in connection with sales of properties in development 11413 16294 25099

Change in fair value of derivative instruments 55328 73855 6905

Common stock issued for dividend reinvestment plan 3219 4470 4070

Stock-based compensation capitalized 1574 3606 7565

Contributions from limited partners in consolidated partnerships net 4188 3020 4237

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REGENCY CENTERS L.P

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December31 2009 and 2008

in thousands except unit data
2009 2008

Assets

Real estate investments at cost notes and 14
Land 975861 923062

Buildings and improvements 2017843 974093

Properties in development 920427 1078885

3914131 3976040

Less accumulated depreciation 622163 554595

3291968 3421445

Operating properties held for sale net 19647 66447

Investments in real estate partnerships
326212 383408

Net real estate investments 3637827 3871 300

Cash and cash equivalents
99477 21533

Notes receivable note 37753 31438

Accounts receivable net of allowance for douhiful accounts of $6567 and $1837 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively 40871 46501

Straight
line rent receivable net of reserve of $1899 at December 31 2009 39292 37595

Other receivables note 9700

Deferred costs less accumulated amortizatiorl of $58861 and $51549 at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively 58376 57477

Acquired lease intangible assets less accumulated amortization of $11632 and $11 204 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

note 10007 12903

Other assets 50203 43928

Total assets $3973806 41 42375

Liabilities and Capital

Liabilities

Notes payable note $1886380 1837904

Unsecured credit facilities note 297667

Accounts payable and other liabilities 99145 141395

Derivative instruments at fair value note 28363 83691

Acquired lease intangible liabilities less accumulated accretion of $9715 and $8829 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

note 5896 7865

Tenants security
and escrow deposits 10628 11571

Total liabilities 2030412 2380093

Commitments and contingencies notes 14 arId 15

Capital

Partners capital notes 11 12 and 13
Series preferred units par value $1 00 500000 units issued and outstanding at December31 2009 and 2008 49158 49158

Preferred units of general partner $01 par value
per unit 11 000000 units issued and outstanding at December31 2009 and

2008 liquidation preference of $25 per unit 275000 275000

General partner 81539296 and 70036670 units outstanding at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively 1650140 151 2550

Limited partners 468211 units outstanding at December 31 2009 and 2008 7321 8283

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 49973 90689

Total partners capital 1931646 1754302

Noncontrolling interests

Limited partners interest in consolidated partnerships 11748 7980

Total noncontrolling interests 11748 7980

Total capital 1943394 1762282

Total liabilities and capital $3973806 4142375

See accompanyisg notes to consolidated financial statements
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REGENCY CENTERS L.P

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the years
ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands except per unit data 2009 2008 2007

Revenues

Minimum rent note 14 $345610 334509 308108

Percentage rent 3585 4258 4655

Recoveries from tenants and other income 101748 101096 90179

Management transaction and other fees 38289 56032 33064

Total revenues 489232 495895 436006

Operating expenses

Depreciation and amortization 116924 104569 89365

Operating and maintenance 66061 59140 54095

General and administrative 54136 49495 50580

Real estate taxes 53823 48512 43815

Provision for doubtful accounts 8791 1170

Other expenses 8284 4824 0057

Total operating expenses 308019 277710 247912

Other expense income

Interest expense net of interest income of $3767 $4696 and $3079 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively 109239 92784 82389

Gain on sale of operating properties and properties in development 19357 20346 52215

Provision for impairment 97519 31469

Early extinguishment of debt 2784

Loss on derivative instruments note 3294

Total other expense income 193479 03907 30174

Income loss before equity
in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships 12266 114278 157920

Equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships note 26373 5292 18093

Income loss from continuing operations 38639 119570 176013

Discontinued operations net note

Operating income loss from discontinued operations
61 4570 8718

Gain on sale of operating properties
and

properties
in development 5835 17381 25285

Income loss from discontinued operations 5896 21951 34003

Net income loss 32743 141521 210016

Noncontrolling
interests

Limited partners interest in consolidated partnerships 452 701 990

Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 452 701 990

Net income attributable to controlling interests 33195 140820 209026

Preferred unit distributions 23400 23400 23400

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders 56595 117420 185626

Income loss per common unit basic note 13

Continuing operations 0.82 1.35 2.16

Discontinued operations
0.08 0.31 049

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders per unit 0.74 1.66 2.65

Income loss per common unit diluted note

Continuing operations 0.82 1.35 2.16

Discontinued
operations

0.08 0.31 0.49

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders per unit 0.74 1.66 2.65

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAAY DATA

REGENCY CENTERS L.P

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
For the

years
ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands PREFERRED UNITS

Balance at December31 2006

Comprehensive income note

Net income

Amortization of loss on derivative instruments

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income loss

Contributions from partners

Distributions to partners

Preferred unit distributions

Restricted stock issued by Parent Company net of

amortization note 12

Common units issued as result of common stock

issued by Parent Company net of repurchases

Common units exchanged for common stock If

Parent Company

Reallocation of limited partners interest

Balance at December 31 2007

Comprehensive income note

Net income

Amortization of loss on derivative instruments

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income loss

Contributions from partners

Distributions to partners

Preferred unit distributions

Restricted stock issued by Parent Company net of

amortization note 12

Common units issued as result of common stock

issued by Parent Company net of repurchases

Common units exchanged for common stock of

Parent Company

Reallocation of limited partners interest

Balance at December31 2008

Comprehensive income note

Net income loss

Loss on settlement of derivative instruments

Amortization of loss on derivative instruments

Loss on derivative instruments

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Total comprehensive income loss

Contributions from partners

Distributions to partners

Preferred unit distributions

Restricted stock issued by Parent Company net of

amortization note 12

Common units issued as result of common stock

issued by Parent Company net of repurchases

990 210016

1306

6905

204417

4483 4483

4879 189844

23400

701 141521

1306

73855

68972

3157

21 8269

23400

452 32743

19977

2305

3294

55328

8207

4197

163770

23400

5963 5963

GENERAL PARTNER

PREFERRED AND

COMMON UNITS

$49158

NONCONTROLLING

INTERESTS IN

ACCUMULATED LIMITED PARTNERS

OTHER TOTAL INTEREST IN

LIMITED COMPREHENSIVE PARTNERS CONSOLIDATED TOTAL

PARTNERS INCOME LOSS CAPITAL PARTNERSHIPS CAPITAL

1839015 16065

1650

47

1570

3725 203651

183395

3725 9675

17797 190897413061 1891177

209026

1297 1306

6858 6905

203427

184965

23400

17725

1826

17725

1826

8607 8607
2419 2419

17725

1826

18391 1920529$49158 1861683 9919 18622 1902138

3725 136188 907 140820

1297 1306

491 73364 73855

68271

202635 1365 204000

3725 19675 23400

8193 8193

3100 3100

232 232

464 464

3157

14269

8193

3100

90689 1754302$49158

3725

3725

7980 1762282

19863

2292

3275

55012

1787550 8283

36704 216

114
13

19

316

161909 980

19675

5963

349915

33195

19977

2305

3294

55328

7755

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

162889

23400

4197

881

349915 349915

Balance at December31 2009 $49158 1925140 7321 49973 1931646 11748 1943394
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REGENCY CENTERS LP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands 2009 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 32743 141521 210016

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 117979 107846 93508

Deferred loan cost and debt premium amortization 5822 4287 3249

Above and below market lease
intangibles

amortization and accretion 1867 2376 1926
Stock-based compensation net of capitalization 4668 5950 11572

Equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships 26373 5292 18093

Net gain on sale of properties 25192 37843 79627

Provision for doubtful accounts 9078 1197

Provision for impairment 104402 34855

Early extinguishment of debt 2784

Distribution of earnings from operations of investments in real estate partnerships 31252 30730 30547

Settlement of derivative instruments 19953

Loss on derivative instruments 3294

Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable 2995 6621 5665

Straight-line rent receivables net 3959 3709 4375
Other receivables 19700 19700

Deferred leasing costs 9799 6734 8126

Other assets 16493 12839 15861

Accounts payable and other liabilities 18035 12423 2101

Tenants security and escrow deposits 454 320 847

Net cash provided by operating activities 193862 219169 218167

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of operating real estate 63117

Development of real estate including acquisition of land 142989 388783 619282

Proceeds from sale of real estate investments 180307 274417 270981

Collection of notes receivable 13572 28287 545

Investments in real estate partnerships 28709 48619 42660

Distributions received from investments in real estate partnerships 23548 28923 41372

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 45729 05775 412161

Cash flows from financing activities

Net proceeds from Common Units issued as result of common stock issued by Parent Company 345800 020 2383

Distributions to limited
partners

in consolidated partnerships net 872 14134 4632

Distributions paid to preferred unit holders 159670 99528 80897

Cash distributions to partners 23400 23400 23400

Repayment of fixed rate unsecured notes 116053

Proceeds from issuance of fixed rate unsecured notes net 398108

Repayment proceeds from unsecured credit facilities 297667 89667 87000

Proceeds from notes payable 106992 62500

Repayment of notes payable 8056 19932 89719

Scheduled principal payments 5214 4806 4545

Payment of loan costs 1195 1916 5682

Payment of premium on tender offer 2312

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 161647 11 0529 178616

Net increase decrease in cash and cash
equivalents 77944 2865 15378

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 21533 8668 34046

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 99477 21533 8668
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

REGENCY CENTERS L.P

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED
For the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands 2009 2008 2007

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash
paid

for interest net of capitalized interest of $19062 $36510 and $35424 in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively $112730 94632 82833

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions

Parent common stock issued for
partnership

units exchanged 232 8607

Real estate received through distribution in kind $100717

Mortgage loans assumed through distribution in kind 70541

Security deposits received through distribution in kind 265

Mortgage loans assumed for the acquisition of real estate 42272

Real estate contributed for investments in real estate partnerships 26410 6825 11007

Notes receivable taken in connection with sales of properties in development 11413 6294 25099

Change in fair value of derivative instruments 55328 73855 6905

Common stock issued by Parent Company for dividend reinvestment plan 3219 4470 4070

Stock-based compensation capitalized 1574 3606 7565

Contributions from limited
partners

in consolidated partnerships net 4188 3020 4237

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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REGENCY CENTERS CORPORATION AND REGENCY CENTERS L.P

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

General

Regency Centers Corporation the Parent Company began its
operations as Real Estate Investment Trust REIT in 1993 and is the managing general partner of Regency

Centers the Operating Partnership The Parent Company currently owns approximately 99% of the outstanding common Partnership Units of the Operating Partnership

The Parent Company engages in the ownership management leasing acquisition and development of retail shopping centers through the Operating Partnership and has no

other assets or liabilities other than through its investment in the Operating Partnership At December31 2009 the Parent Company the Operating Partnership and their

controlled subsidiaries on consolidated basis the Company or Regency directly owned 216 retail shopping centers and held partial interests in an additional 184 retail

shopping centers through investments in real estate partnerships also referred to as joint ventures or real estate partnerships

Estimates Risks and Uncertainties

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles U.S GMP requires the Companys management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates The most significant estimates in the Companys

financial statements relate to the carrying
values of its investments in real estate including its shopping centers properties

in development and its investments in real estate

partnerships accounts receivable net and derivative instruments Each of these items could be significantly affected by the continued weak economy

Because of the adverse conditions that exist in the real estate markets as well as the credit and financial markets it is possible that the estimates and assumptions that have

been utilized in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements could change significantly Specifically as it relates to the Companys business the current weak

economic period is expected to result in higher level of retail store closings nationally which could reduce the demand for leasing space in the Companys shopping centers

and result in decline in occupancy and rental revenues in its real estate portfolio
The lack of available credit in the commercial real estate market is causing decline in the

values of commercial real estate nationally and the Companys ability to sell shopping centers to raise capital The reduction in the demand for new retail space and available

capital have caused the Company to significantly reduce its new shopping center development program until markets become less volatile

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company the Operating Partnership its wholly-owned subsidiaries and consolidated

partnerships in which the Company has controlling ownership interest All significant inter-company balances and transactions are eliminated in the consolidated financial

statements

Ownership of the Parent Company

The Parent Company has single
class of common stock outstanding and three series of preferred stock outstanding Series and Preferred Stock The dividends on

the Series and Preferred Stock are cumulative and payable in arrears on the last day of each calendar quarter The Parent Company owns corresponding Series and

preferred unit interests Series and Preferred Units in the Operating Partnership that entitle the Parent Company to income and distributions from the Operating

Partnership in amounts equal to the dividends
paid on the Parent Companys Series and Preferred Stock

Ownership of the Operating Partnership

The Operating Partnerships capital includes general
and limited common Partnership Units Series and Preferred Units owned by the Parent Company and Series

Preferred Units owned by institutional investors At December31 2009 the Parent Company owned approximately 99% or 81539296 of the total 82007507 Partnership

Units outstanding

Net income and distributions of the Operating Partnership are allocable first to the Preferred Units and the remaining amounts to the
general

and limited common Partnership

Units in accordance with their ownership percentages The Series and Preferred Units owned by the Parent Company are eliminated in consolidation in the accompanying

consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and are classified as preferred units of general partner in the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the

Operating Partnership

Investments in Real Estate Partnerships

Investments in real estate partnerships not controlled by the Company are accounted for under the equity method The Company has evaluated its investment in the real estate

partnerships
and has concluded that they are not variable interest entities Further the joint venture partners in the real estate partnerships

have significant ownership rights

including approval over operating budgets and strategic plans capital spending sale or financing and admission of new partners Upon formation of the joint ventures the

Company through the Operating Partnership also became the managing member responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the real estate partnerships In accordance with

the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 810 the Company evaluated its investment in each real estate partnership

and concluded that the other partners have substantive participating rights and therefore the Company has concluded that the equity
method of accounting is appropriate for
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these investments and they do not require consolidation Under the equity method of accounting investments in real estate partnerships are initially
recorded at cost

subsequently increased for additional contributions and allocations of income and reduced for distributions received and allocations of loss These investments are included in

the consolidated financial statements as investments in real estate partnerships

Noncontrolling Interests

The Company consolidates all entities in which it has
controlling

financial interest
controlling

financial interest is
typically attributable to the entity with majority voting

interest Noncontrolling interest is the portion of equity not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company Such
noncontrolling

interests are reported on the consolidated

balance sheets within equity or capital but separately from stockholders equity or partners capital On the consolidated statements of operations all of the revenues and

expenses from less-than-wholly-owned consolidated subsidiaries are reported
in net income loss including both the amounts attributable to the Company and noncontrolling

interests The amounts of consolidated net income loss attributable to the Company and to the
noncontrolling

interests are clearly identified on the accompanying Consolidated

Statements of Operations

Noncontrolling Interests of the Parent Company

The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company include the following ownership interests held by owners other than the Parent Company the preferred units in the

Operating Partnership held by third parties Series preferred units the limited Partnership Units in the Operating Partnership
held by third

parties Exchangeable operating

partnership units and the minority-owned interest held by third parties in consolidated partnerships Limited partners interests in consolidated partnerships The Parent

Company has included all of these noncontrolling interests in permanent equity separate from the Parent Companys stockholders equity in the accompanying Consolidated

Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Equity and Comprehensive Income Loss The
portion

of net income loss or comprehensive income loss attributable to these

noncontrolling interests is included in net income loss and comprehensive income loss in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated

Statements of Equity and Comprehensive Income Loss of the Parent Company

In accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 480 securities that are redeemable for cash or other assets at the option of the holder not solely within the control of the issuer are

classified as redeemable
noncontrolling

interests outside of permanent equity
in the consolidated balance sheets The Parent Company has evaluated the conditions as specified

under the FASB ASC Topic 480 as it relates to Preferred Units and exchangeable operating partnership units outstanding and concluded that it has the right to satisfy the

redemption requirements of the units by delivering unregistered preferred or common stock Each outstanding Preferred Unit and exchangeable operating partnership unit is

exchangeable for one share of preferred stock or common stock respectively and the unit holder cannot require redemption in cash or other assets Limited partners interests

in consolidated
partnerships are not redeemable by the holders The Parent Companys only asset is its investment in the Operating Partnership and therefore settlement in

shares would not be surrender of assets but contra-equity The Parent Company also evaluated its
fiduciary duties to itself its shareholders and as the managing general

partner of the Operating Partnership to the Operating Partnership and concluded its
fiduciary

duties are not in conflict with each other or the underlying agreements Therefore

the Parent Company classifies such units and interests as permanent equity
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Equity and

Comprehensive Income Loss

Noncontrolling Interests of the Operating Partnership

The Operating Partnership
has determined that Limited partners interest in consolidated partnerships are noncontrolling interests The Operating Partnership has included these

noncontrolling interests in permanent capital separate from partners capital in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Changes in

Capital and Comprehensive Income Loss The portion of net income loss or comprehensive income loss attributable to these noncontrolling interests is included in net income

loss and comprehensive income loss in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital and Comprehensive

Income Loss of the Operating Partnership

Revenues

The Company leases space to tenants under agreements with
varying terms Leases are accounted for as operating leases with minimum rent recognized on straight-line

basis

over the term of the lease
regardless

of when payments are due The Company estimates the collectibility of the accounts receivable related to base rents straight-line rents

expense reimbursements and other revenue taking
into consideration the Companys experience in the retail sector available internal and external tenant credit information

payment history industry trends tenant credit-worthiness and remaining lease terms In some cases primarily related to straight-line rents the ultimate collection of these

amounts are associated with increased rents to be collected in future years which extend beyond one year During 2009 the Company experienced significant increase in

tenant defaults as well as deterioration in tenant receivable collection rates as compared to historical collection rates As result the Company increased its allowance for

doubiful accounts to fully reserve for these
specifically identified tenant defaults and adjusted the collectibility rates used to estimate the allowance to reflect such deterioration in

collection rates During the
years

ended December31 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded provisions for doubiful accounts of $9.1 million and $1 .2 million respectively of

which approximately $287000 and $41000 respectively
is included in discontinued operations

The following table represents the components of accounts receivable net of allowance for doubiful accounts as of December 31 2009 and 2008 in the accompanying

Consolidated Balance Sheets in thousands

2009 2008

Tenant receivables $22395 20942

CAM and tax reimbursements 15099 15697

Other receivables 9944 11 699

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 6567 1837

Total $40871 46501
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Substantially all of the lease agreements with anchor tenants contain
provisions

that
provide

for additional rents based on tenants sales volume percentage rent and

reimbursement of the tenants share of real estate taxes insurance and common area maintenance CAM costs Percentage rents are recognized when the tenants achieve

the specified targets as defined in their lease agreements Recovery of real estate taxes insurance and CAM costs are recognized as the respective costs are incurred in

accordance with the lease agreements

As part of the leasing process the Company may provide the lessee with an allowance for the construction of leasehold improvements These leasehold improvements are

capitalized and recorded as tenant improvements and depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the improvements or the lease term If the allowance represents

payment for purpose other than funding leasehold improvements or in the event the Company is not considered the owner of the improvements the allowance is considered

to be lease incentive and is recognized over the lease term as reduction of minimum rent Factors considered during this evaluation include among other things who holds

legal title to the improvements as well as other controlling rights provided by the lease agreement and
provisions

for substantiation of such costs e.g unilateral control of the

tenant space during the build-out process Determination of the appropriate accounting for the payment of tenant allowance is made on lease-by-lease basis considering

the facts and circumstances of the individual tenant lease When the Company is the owner of the leasehold improvements recognition
of lease revenue commences when the

lessee is given possession of the leased space upon completion of tenant improvements However when the leasehold improvements are owned by the tenant the lease

inception date is the date the tenant obtains possession of the leased space for purposes of constructing its leasehold improvements

Profits from sales of real estate are not recognized under the full accrual method by the Company unless sale is consummated the buyers initial and continuing
investment is

adequate to demonstrate commitment to pay for the property the Companys receivable if applicable is not subject to future subordination the Company has transferred to

the buyer the usual risks and rewards of ownership and the Company does not have substantial
continuing

involvement with the property

The Company sells shopping center properties to joint ventures in exchange for cash equal to the fair value of the ownership interest of its partners The Company accounts for

those sales as partial sales and recognizes gains on those partial sales in the period the properties were sold to the extent of the percentage interest sold and in the case of

certain real estate partnerships applies more restrictive method of recognizing gains as discussed further below The gains and operations associated with
properties

sold to

these real estate partnerships are not classified as discontinued operations because the Company continues to partially own and manage these shopping centers

As of December31 2009 four of the Companys joint ventures DIK-JV give each partner the unilateral right to elect to dissolve the real estate partnership and upon such an

election receive distribution in-kind 01K of the assets of the real estate partnership equal to their respective capital account which could include properties the Company

previously sold to the real estate partnership The liquidation provisions require that all of the properties owned by the real estate partnership be appraised to determine their

respective fair values As general rule if the Company initiates the liquidation process its partner has the right to choose the first
property

that it will receive in
liquidation

with

the Company choosing the next property that it will receive in liquidation It the Companys partner initiates the liquidation process the order of the selection process is reversed

The process then continues with an alternating selection of properties by each partner until the balance of each partners capital account on fair value basis has been

distributed After the final selection to the extent that the fair value of properties in the DIK-JV are not distributable in manner that equals the balance of each partners capital

account cash payment would be made to the other partner by the partner receiving property distribution in excess of its capital account The partners may also elect to

liquidate some or all of the properties through sales rather than through the 01K process

The Company has concluded that these 01K dissolution provisions constitute in-substance call/put options and represent form of continuing involvement with respect to

property
that the Company has sold to these real estate partnerships limiting the Companys recognition of gain related to the partial sale This more restrictive method of gain

recognition Restricted Gain Method considers the Companys potential ability to receive property through 01K on which partial gain has been recognized and ensures as

discussed below maximum gain deferral upon sale to 01K-i The Company has applied the Restricted Gain Method to partial sales of property to real estate partnerships that

contain unilateral 01K provisions

Profit shall be recognized under method determined by the nature and extent of the sellers continuing involvement and the profit recognized shall be reduced by the maximum

exposure to loss The Company has concluded that the Restricted Gain Method accomplishes this objective

Under the Restricted Gain Method for purposes of
gain deferral the Company considers the aggregate pool of properties sold into the DIK-JV as well as the aggregate pool of

properties which will be distributed in the DIK process As result upon the sale of properties to DIK-JV the Company performs hypothetical 01K liquidation assuming that it

would choose only those properties
that it has sold to the DIK-JV in an amount equal to its capital account For purposes of calculating the gain to be deferred the Company

assumes that it will select properties
in 01K

liquidation
that would otherwise have generated the

highest gain
to the Company when originally sold to the DIK-JV The deferred

gain
recorded upon the sale of

property to DIK-JV is calculated whenever property is sold to the DIK-JV by the Company During the periods when there are no property

sales to DIK-JV the deferred
gain

is not recalculated

Because the contingency associated with the possibility
of

receiving particular property
back upon liquidation which forms the basis of the Restricted Gain Method is not

satisfied at the property level but at the aggregate level no gain
is recognized on property sold by the DIK-JV to third party or received by the Company upon actual

dissolution Instead the
property

received upon dissolution is recorded at the carrying value of the Companys investment in the DIK-JV on the date of dissolution reduced by the

deferred gain

The Company has been engaged under agreements with its joint venture partners to provide asset management property management leasing investing and financing

services for such
joint

ventures shopping centers The Company also receives transaction fees as contractually agreed upon with
joint venture which include fees such as

acquisition fees disposition fees promotes or earnouts The fees are market-based generally calculated as percentage of either revenues earned or the estimated values

of the
properties managed or the proceeds received and are recognized as services are rendered when fees due are determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured
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Real Estate Investments

Land buildings and improvements are recorded at cost All specifically identifiable costs related to development activities are capitalized into properties in development on the

accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets Properties in development are defined as properties that are in the construction or initial lease-up process and have not reached

their initial full occupancy In summary project changes from non-operating to operating when it iS Substantially completed and available for occupancy At that time costs are

no longer capitalized The capitalized costs include pre-development costs essential to the development of the property development costs construction costs interest costs

real estate taxes and allocated direct employee costs incurred during the period of development Interest costs are capitalized into each development project based on applying

the Companys weighted average borrowing rate to that portion of the actual development costs expended The Company ceases interest cost capitalization when the property is

no longer being developed or is available for occupancy upon substantial completion of tenant improvements but in no event would the Company capitalize interest on the

project beyond 12 months after substantial completion of the building shell

The
following

table
represents

the components of properties in development as of December31 2009 and 2008 in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets in

thousands

2009 2008

Construction in process $127376 338606

Construction complete and in lease-up 673052 548132

Land held for future development 119999 192147

Total $920427 1078885

Construction in process represents developments where the Company has not yet incurred at least 90% of the expected costs to complete Construction complete and in

lease-up represents developments where the Company has incurred at least 90% of the estimated costs to complete but is still completing lease-up and final tenant build out

Land held for future development represents projects not in construction but identified and available for future development if and when the market demand for new shopping

center exists

The Company incurs costs prior to land acquisition including contract deposits as well as legal engineering and other external
professional

fees related to evaluating
the

feasibility of developing shopping center These pre-development costs are included in properties in development in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets At

December31 2009 and 2008 the Company capitalized pre-development costs of approximately $81 6000 and $7.7 million respectively of which approximately $325000

and $2.3 million respectively were refundable deposits If the Company determines that the development of
particular shopping center is no longer probable any related

pre-development costs previously capitalized are immediately expensed in other expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations During the years ended

December31 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company expensed pre-development costs of $3.8 million $15.5 million and $5.3 million respectively
in other expenses in the

accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations

Maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are recorded in operating and maintenance expense

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of up to 40 years for buildings and improvements the shorter of the useful life or the lease

term for tenant improvements and three to seven years for furniture and equipment

The Company and the real estate partnerships allocate the purchase price of assets acquired net tangible and identifiable intangible assets and liabilities assumed based on

their relative fair values at the date of acquisition The Companys methodology for this allocation includes estimating an as-if vacant fair value of the physical property which

is allocated to land building and improvements The difference between the purchase price and the as-if vacant fair value is allocated to intangible assets There are three

categories of intangible assets considered value of in-place leases ii above and below-market value of in-place leases and iii customer relationship value

The value of in-place leases is estimated based on the value associated with the costs avoided in originating leases compared to the acquired in-place leases as well as the

value associated with lost rental and recovery revenue during the assumed lease-up period The value of in-place leases is recorded to amortization expense over the remaining

initial term of the respective leases

Above-market and below-market
in-place

lease values for acquired properties are recorded based on the present value of the difference between the contractual amounts to

be
paid pursuant to the

in-place
leases and

ii managements estimate of fair market lease rates for comparable in-place leases measured over period equal to the remaining

non-cancelable term of the lease The value If above-market leases is amortized as reduction of minimum rent over the remaining terms of the
respective

leases and the value

of below-market leases is accreted to minimLlm rent over the remaining terms of the respective leases including below-market renewal options if applicable If tenant

exercises an option to renew lease as per the lease agreement the Company capitalizes any related leasing commissions and recognizes any related option fees as agreed

upon The Company does not allocate value to customer relationship intangibles if it has pre-existing business relationships with the major retailers in the acquired property
since

they
do not provide

incremental value over the Companys existing relationships

The Company classifies an operating property or property in development as held-for-sale when the Company determines that the property is available for immediate sale in its

present condition the
property

is being actively
marketed for sale and management believes it is probable that sale will be consummated within one year Given the nature of

all real estate sales contracts it is not unusual for such contracts to allow prospective buyers period of time to evaluate the property prior to formal acceptance of the contract
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In addition certain other matters critical to the final sale such as financing arrangements often remain pending even upon contract acceptance As result properties under

contract may not close within the expected time period or may not close at all Therefore any properties categorized as held-for-sale represent only those properties that

management has determined are probable to close within the requirements set forth above Operating properties held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less

costs to sell The recording of depreciation and amortization expense is suspended during
the held-for-sale period If circumstances arise that previously were considered

unlikely and as result the Company decides not to sell property previously classified as held-for-sale the property is reclassified as held and used and is measured

individually at the lower of its carrying amount before the
property was classified as held-for-sale adjusted for any depreciation and amortization expense that would have

been recognized had the property been
continuously

classified as held and used or ii the fair value at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell Any required adjustment to

the
carrying

amount of the
property

reclassified as held and used is included in income from continuing operations in the period of the subsequent decision not to sell If

property is reclassified as held and used the results of
operations

of the
property previously reported in discontinued operations are reclassified and included in income from

continuing operations for all periods presented

When the Company sells
property or classifies

property as held-for-sale and will not have significant continuing involvement in the operation of the property the operations of

the property are eliminated from ongoing operations and classified in discontinued operations Its operations including any mortgage interest and gain on sale are reported in

discontinued operations so that the operations are clearly distinguished Prior periods are also reclassified to reflect the operations of the property as discontinued operations

When the Company sells an operating property to joint venture or to third party and will continue to manage the property the operations and gain on sale are included in

income from continuing operations

The Company reviews its real estate portfolio including
the

properties owned through real estate partnerships for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable For
properties to be held and used for long term investment the Company estimates undiscounted future cash flows

over the expected investment term including the estimated future value of the asset upon sale at the end of the investment period Future value is generally determined by

applying market-based capitalization rate to the estimated future net operating income in the final year of the expected investment term If after applying this method property

is determined to be impaired the Company determines the provision for impairment based upon applying market capitalization rate to current estimated net operating income

as if the sale were to occur immediately For
properties held-for-sale the Company estimates current resale values through appraisal information and other market data less

expected costs to sell These methods of determining fair value can fluctuate significantly as result of number of factors including changes in the
general economy for those

markets in which the Company operates the Companys estimated holding period of the property tenant credit
quality

and demand for new retail stores If as result of

change in the Companys strategy for specific property which the Company owns directly or through real estate partnerships property previously
classified as held and used

is changed to held-for-sale or if its estimated holding period changes such change could cause the Company to determine that the
property

is impaired and
provision for

impairment would be recorded by the Company either directly or through reduction of the Companys equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships During

the years ended December31 2009 and 2008 the Company established provision for impairment of $104.4 million and $34.9 million respectively of which $6.9 million

and $3.4 million respectively is included in discontinued operations See Note 10 for further discussion

loss in value of investments in real estate partnerships under the equity method of accounting other than temporary decline must be recognized in the period in which the

loss occurs To evaluate the Companys investment in real estate partnerships the Company calculates the fair value of the investment by discounting
estimated future cash

flows over the expected term of the investment During the year ended December31 2008 the Company established $6.0 million
provision

for impairment on two

investments in real estate partnerships as result of this evaluation

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Any instruments which have an original maturity of 90 days or less when purchased are considered cash equivalents At December31 2009 and 2008 $3.6 million and

$8.7 million respectively of cash was restricted through escrow agreements required
for development and certain mortgage loans

Notes Receivable

The Company records notes receivable at cost on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and interest income is accrued as earned and netted against interest expense

in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations If note receivable is past due meaning the debtor is past due per contractual obligations the Company ceases to

accrue interest However in the event the debtor subsequently becomes current the Company will resume accruing interest and record the interest income accordingly The

Company evaluates the collectibility of both interest and principal for all notes receivable to determine whether impairment exists
using

the present value of expected cash flows

discounted at the note receivables effective interest rate or alternatively at the observable market price of the loan or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral

dependent In the event the Company determines note receivable or portion thereof is considered uncollectible the Company records provision for impairment The

Company estimates the collectibility of notes receivable taking into consideration the Companys experience in the retail sector available internal and external credit information

payment history market and industry trends and debtor credit-worthiness During the years ended December31 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded
provision

for

impairment of approximately $465000 and $1.1 million respectively See Notes for further discussion

Deferred Costs

Deferred costs include leasing costs and loan costs net of accumulated amortization Such costs are amortized over the periods through lease
expiration or loan maturity

respectively If the lease is terminated early or if the loan is repaid prior to maturity the remaining leasing
costs or loan costs are written off Deferred

leasing costs consist of

internal and external commissions associated with leasing the Companys shopping centers Net deferred leasing costs were $49.9 million and $46.8 million at December31

2009 and 2008 respectively
Deferred loan costs consist of initial direct and incremental costs associated with

financing
activities Net deferred loan costs were $8.5 million

and $10.7 million at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively
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Derivative Financial Instruments

All derivative instruments whether designated in hedging relationships or not are recorded on the balance sheet at their fair values The accounting for changes in the fair value

of derivatives depends on the intended use of the derivative whether the Company has elected to designate derivative in hedging relationship and apply hedge accounting

and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary to apply hedge accounting Derivatives designated and qualifying as hedge of the exposure to changes

in the fair value of an asset liability or firm commitment attributable to particular risk such as interest rate risk are considered fair value hedges Derivatives designated and

qualifying as hedge of the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows or other types of forecasted transactions are considered cash flow hedges Hedge accounting

generally provides for the matching of the
timing

of
gain or loss recognition on the hedging instrument with the recognition

of the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or

liability attributable to the hedged risk in fair value hedge or the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transactions in cash flow hedge The Company may enter into

derivative contracts that are intended to economically hedge certain risks even though hedge accounting does not apply or the Company elects not to apply hedge accounting

The Companys use of derivative financial instruments is intended to mitigate its interest rate risk on related financial instrument or forecasted transaction through the use of

interest rate swaps the Swaps and the Company designates these interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges The
gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value of

derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges are recognized in other comprehensive income DCI while the ineffective portion of the derivatives change in fair value is

recognized in the income statement as loss on derivative instruments Upon the settlement of hedge gains and losses remaining in OCI are amortized over the underlying

term of the hedged transaction The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items as well as its risk management objectives

and strategies for undertaking various hedge Iransactions The Company assesses both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis whether the derivatives that are used

in hedging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows and/or forecasted cash flows of the hedged items

In assessing the valuation of the hedges the Company uses standard market conventions and techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis option pricing models and

termination costs at each balance sheet date All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value and such value may never actually be realized See

Notes and 10 for further discussion

The settlement of swap terminations are presented in cash flows provided by operating activities in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Income Taxes

The Parent Company believes it

qualifies
and intends to continue to qualify as REIT under the Internal Revenue Code the Code As REIT the Parent Company will

generally not be subject to federal income tax provided that distributions to its stockholders are at least equal to REIT taxable income Regency Realty Group Inc RRG
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Operating Partnership is Taxable REIT Subsidiary TRS as defined in Section 856l of the Code RAG is

subject to federal and state income

taxes and files separate tax returns As pass through entity the Operating Partnerships taxable income or loss is
reported by its partners of which the Parent Company as

general partner and 99% owner is allocated its
pro-rata

share of tax attributes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable to

differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured

using the enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which these temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled Deferred tax assets are evaluated to determine if

valuation allowance is required
and if based on available evidence it is more likely than not that all or some portion

of the asset will not be realized the Company records

valuation allowance

Earnings and profits
which determine the taxability of dividends to stockholders differs from net income reported for financial

reporting purposes primarily
because of

differences in depreciable
lives and cost bases of the operating properties as well as other timing differences See Note for further discussion

Tax positions are initially recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities Such tax

positions shall initially and subsequently be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with

the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the
position

and relevant facts The Company believes that it has appropriate support for the income tax positions
taken and to be

taken on its tax returns and that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on an assessment of many factors including past experience and

interpretations of tax laws applied to the facts of each matter

Earnings per Share and Unit

Basic earnings per share of common stock arid unit are computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares and units respectively outstanding during the

period Diluted earnings per share and unit reflect the conversion of obligations and the assumed exercises of securities including the effects of shares issuable under the

Companys share-based payment arrangemests if dilutive Dividends paid on the Companys share-based payment transactions are not participating
securities as they are

forfeitable See Note 13 for the calculation of earnings per
share EPS and earnings per unit EPU

Treasury Stock

Repurchases of the Parent Companys common stock are recorded at cost and are reflected as treasury stock in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Equity and

Comprehensive Income Loss of the Parent Company and in
general partner preferred and common units in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital

and Comprehensive Income Loss of the Operating Partnership Concurrent with stock repurchases by the Parent Company the Operating Partnership repurchases the same

amount of Partnership Units from the Parent Company

In December 2009 the Company cancelled all 5661520 shares classified as treasury shares As result additional paid-in capital was reduced by the amount in excess of the

stated value
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company grants stock-based compensation to its employees and directors When the Parent Company issues common shares as compensation it receives like number of

common units from the Operating Partnership The Company is committed to contribute to the Operating Partnership all proceeds from the exercise of stock options or other

share-based awards granted under the Parent Companys Long-Term Omnibus Plan the Plan Accordingly the Parent Companys ownership in the Operating Partnership will

increase based on the amount of proceeds contributed to the Operating Partnership for the common units it receives As result of the issuance of common units to the Parent

Company for stock-based compensation the Operating Partnership accounts for stock-based compensation in the same manner as the Parent Company

The Company recognizes stock-based compensation based on the
grant-date

fair value of the award and the cost of the stock-based compensation is expensed over the vesting

period See Note 12 for further discussion

Segment Reporting

The Companys business is investing in retail shopping centers through direct ownership or through joint ventures The Company actively manages its portfolio of retail shopping

centers and may from time to time make decisions to sell lower performing properties or developments not meeting its long-term investment objectives The proceeds from sales

are reinvested into
higher quality retail shopping centers through acquisitions or new developments which management believes will meet its expected rate of return It is

managements intent that all retail shopping centers will be owned or developed for investment purposes however the Company may decide to sell all or portion of

development upon completion The Companys revenues and net income are generated from the operation of its investment portfolio The Company also earns fees from third

parties
for services provided to manage and lease retail shopping centers owned through joint ventures

The Companys portfolio is located throughout the United States however management does not distinguish or group its
operations on geographical basis for purposes of

allocating resources or measuring performance The Company reviews operating and financial data for each property on an individual basis therefore the Company defines an

operating segment as its individual properties The individual properties have been aggregated into one reportable segment based upon their similarities with regard to both the

nature and economics of the centers tenants and operational processes as well as long-term average financial performance In addition no single tenant accounts for 5% or

more of revenue and none of the shopping centers are located outside the United States

Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity

The Company accounts for the fair value of noncontrolling interests in consolidated entities with specified termination dates in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 480 See Note

10 for further discussion

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

Fair value is market-based measurement not an entity-specific
measurement Therefore fair value measurement is determined based on the assumptions that market

participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
As basis for considering market participant assumptions in fair value measurements the Company uses fair value

hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from independent sources observable inputs that are classified within

Levels and of the hierarchy and the Companys own assumptions about market participant assumptions unobservable inputs classified within Level of the hierarchy The

three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows

Level Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access

Level 2Inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly

Level Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability which are typically
based on the Companys own assumptions as there is little if any related market activity

The Company also remeasures nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities initially measured at fair value in business combination or other new basis event at fair value in

subsequent periods See Note 10 for all fair value measurements of assets and liabilities made on recurring
and nonrecurring basis

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures 820 Improving Disclosures about Fair

Value Measurements ASU 2010-06 ASU 201 0-06 provides amendments to Subtopic 820-10 and requires new disclosures for transfers in and out of Levels and and

activity in Level fair value measurements ASU 2010-06 also clarifies existing disclosure requirements for the level of disaggregation for each class of assets and liabilities and

for the
inputs

and valuation techniques used to measure fair value ASU 2010-06 is effective for financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after

December 15 2009 except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the roll forward of activity in Level fair value measurements which is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods
within those fiscal years The Company adopted this ASU on December31 2009

In December 2009 the FASB issued ASU No 2009-17 Improvements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Entities ASU 2009-17 ASU

2009-17 was issued to reflect the amendments from Statement 167 Amendments to FASB Interpretation No 46R as revision to FASB Interpretation No 46 Revised

December 2003 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities ASU 2009-17 changes how reporting entity determines when an entity
that is insufficiently capitalized or is not

controlled through voting or similar rights should be consolidated The determination of whether reporting entity is required to consolidate another entity is based on among

other things the other entitys purpose and design and the reporting entitys ability to direct the activities of the other entity that most significantly impact the other entitys

economic performance ASU 2009-17 was effective January 2010 and early application
is not permitted The Company has evaluated the adoption of this ASU and it will not

have an effect on its results of operations or financial position as the Company does not currently have any variable interests that it believes would require consolidation
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Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2008 and 2007 amounts to conform to classifications adopted in 2009

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS

During 2009 and 2008 the Company did not have any acquisition activity other than through its investments in real estate partnerships

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company maintains conservative capital structure to fund its growth program without compromising its investment-grade ratings This approach is founded on self-

funding business model which utilizes center recycling as key component and requires ongoing monitoring of each center to ensure that it meets the Companys investment

standards This recycling strategy calls for the Company to sell non-strategic assets and re-deploy the proceeds into new high-qualitydevelopments and acquisitions that are

expected to generate sustainable revenue growth and more attractive returns

During the year ended December31 2009 the Company sold 100% of its ownership interest in one operating property and four properties in development for proceeds of

$73.0 million net of notes receivable taken by the Company of $20.4 million of which $8.9 million was subsequently paid in full in May 2009 The combined operating income

and gain on the sale of these properties and properties classified as held-for-sale were reclassified to discontinued operations The revenues from properties included in

discontinued operations were $8.7 million $16.4 million and $19.9 million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively The operating income and

gains on sales of properties included in discontinued operations are reported net of income taxes if the property is sold by the TRS During 2009 approximately $2.1 million of

income tait benefit was allocated to operating income loss from discontinued operations During 2007 approximately $85000 of income tax expense was allocated to

operating income loss from discontinued operations and $1 .9 million of income taxes was allocated to gain on sale of operating properties and properties in development

INVESTMENTS IN REAL ESTATE PARTNERSHIPS

The Companys investments in real estate partnerships were $326.2 million and $383.4 million at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively Net income or loss from these

real estate partnerships which includes all operating results including impairments and gains on sales of properties within the joint ventures is allocated to the Company in

accordance with the respective partnership agreements Such allocations of net income or loss are recorded in equity in income loss of investments in real estate partnerships

in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations The net difference between the carrying amount of these investments and the
underlying equity

in net assets was

$43.8 million and $77.3 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively For non-DIK-JVs the net difference is accreted to income and recorded in
equity

in income

loss of investments in real estate partnerships in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations over the expected useful lives of the
properties

and other
intangible

assets which range in lives from 10 to 40 years whereas for DIK-JVs the net difference is recognized at liquidation

Cash distribution of earnings from
operations

from investments in real estate partnerships are presented in cash flows
provided by operating activities in the accompanying

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Cash distributions from the sale of
property or loan proceeds received from the placement of debt on property included in

investments in real estate partnerships are presented in cash flows provided by investing
activities in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Investments in real estate partnerships are primarily composed of real estate partnerships
where the Company invests with four co-investment partners and an open-end real

estate fund Regency Retail Partners or the Fund as further described below In addition to earning
its

pro-rata share of net income or loss in each of these real estate

partnerships the Company received
recurring

market-based fees for asset management property management leasing investment and financing services of $29.1 million

$31.6 million and $28.3 million and transaction fees of $7.8 million $23.7 million and $4.0 million for the
years

ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Investments in real estate partnerships as of December31 2009 and 2008 consist of the
following in thousands

OWNERSHIP 2009 2008

Macquarie Countrywide-Regency MCWR l1 11137

Macquarie Countrywide Direct MCWR l1 3760

Macquarie Countrywide-Regency II MCWR ll2 25.00% 154350 97602

Macquarie Countrywide-Regency Ill MCWR III 24.95% 351 623

Macquarie Countrywide-Regency-DESCO MCwR-DESCO 16.35% 24374 21924

Columbia Regency Retail Partners Columbia 20.00% 28347 29704

Columbia Regency Partners II Columbia II 20.00% 11202 12858

Cameron
Village

LLC Cameron 30.00% 18285 19479

RegCal LLC RegCal 25.00% 12863 13766

Regency Retail Partners the Fund 20.00% 22114 23838

US Regency Retail LLC USM 20.01% 5111

Other investments in real estate partnerships 50.00% 49215 48717

Total $326212 383408

At December 31 2008 the Companys ownership interest in MCWR was 25.00% The liquidation of MCWR was completed in 2009

12 At December 31 2008 the Companys ownership interest in MCWR II was 24.95%
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Investments in real estate partnerships are reported net of deferred gains of $52.0 million and $88.3 million at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively Cumulative deferred

gain amounts related to each real estate partnership are described below

The Company co-invests with the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund OPERF in three real estate partnerships two of which the Company has ownership interests of

20% Columbia and Columbia II and one in which the Company has an ownership interest of 30% Cameron The Companys investment in these three real estate

partnerships totals $57.8 million and
represents

1.5% of the Companys total assets at December31 2009 At December31 2009 the OPERF
joint ventures had total assets

of $743.3 million and net income of $5.4 million for the year ended and the Companys share of its total assets and net income was $1 60.5 million and approximately

$506000 respectively

As of December 31 2009 Columbia owned 14 shopping centers had total assets of $320.4 million and net income of $6.7 million for the year ended The partnership

agreement has unilateral right to elect to dissolve the
partnership

and receive 01K upon liquidation therefore the Company has applied the Restricted Gain Method to

determine the amount of gain recognized on property sales to Columbia During 2009 the Company did not sell any properties to Columbia Since the
inception

of Columbia

in 2001 the Company has recognized gain of $2.0 million on partial
sales to Columbia and deferred gain of $4.3 million In December 2008 the Company earned and

recognized $19.7 million Portfolio Incentive Return fee from OPERF based on Columbias outperformance of the cumulative National Council of Real Estate Investment

Fiduciaries NCREIF index since the inception of the
partnership

and cumulative hurdle rate as outlined in the partnership agreement which was reflected in other receivables

as of December31 2008 The Company collected the receivable in full in April 2009

As of December31 2009 Columbia II owned 16 shopping centers had total assets of $31 3.3 million and net income of approximately $159000 for the year ended The

partnership agreement has unilateral right to elect to dissolve the
partnership and receive DIK upon liquidation therefore the Company has

applied
the Restricted Gain

Method to determine the amount of gain recognized on property sales to Columbia II During 2009 the Company did not sell any properties to Columbia II Since the
inception of

Columbia II in 2004 the Company has recognized gain
of $9.1 million on partial sales to Columbia II and deferred gain of $1 5.7 million

As of December 31 2009 Cameron owned one shopping center had total assets of $1 09.6 million and net loss of $1.4 million for the year ended The partnership

agreement does not contain any DIK provisions that would require the Company to apply the Restricted Gain Method Since the
inception of Cameron in 2004 the Company has

not sold any properties to Cameron

The Company co-invests with the California State Teachers Retirement System CaISTRS in joint venture RegCal in which the Company has 25% ownership interest

As of December31 2009 RegCaI owned seven shopping centers had total assets of $1 55.1 million and net income of approximately $493000 for the year ended and the

Companys share of its total assets and net income was $38.8 million and approximately $1 23000 respectively The partnership agreement has unilateral
right to elect to

dissolve the partnership and receive DIK upon liquidation therefore the Company has applied the Restricted Gain Method to determine the amount of gain recognized on

property
sales to RegCal During 2009 the Company did not sell any properties to RegCaI Since the

inception
of RegCal in 2004 the Company has recognized gain of $1 0.1

million on partial sales to RegCaI and deferred gain of $3.4 million

The Company co-invests with Macquarie CountryWide Trust of Australia MCW as the only other partner in three real estate partnerships one in which the Company had an

ownership interest of 25% MCWR which was liquidated during 2009 as discussed below one in which the Company has an ownership interest of 24.95% MCWR Ill and

one in which the Company has an ownership interest of 16.35% MCWR-DESCO The Companys investment with MCW totals $24.7 million and represents less than 1% of

the Companys total assets at December31 2009

On January 14 2009 under the terms of the MCWR
partnership agreement MOW elected to dissolve the partnership During 2009 the Company completed the liquidation of

the partnership through DIK which provided for distribution of the
properties to each partner under an alternating selection process in proportion to the value of each partners

respective capital account in the partnership as of the date of
liquidation

The total fair value of the properties was $467.3 million net of debt based on third
party appraisals As

result of the liquidation MCW received 34 properties and the Company received six properties through the DIK The six properties the Company received had fair value of

$131.9 million net of debt which represents return of the Companys investment and $13.1 million promote which was not recognized in net income in accordance with

the Restricted Gain Method Consistent with the Restricted Gain Method the properties that the Company received in liquidation were recorded at the net
carrying

value of its

investment of $29.9 million which is net of deferred
gain previously recorded of $40.8 million As result no gain or loss was recognized on the dissolution MCWR had net

income of $4.8 million for the year ended and the Companys share was $1.2 million During 2009 MCWR sold one shopping center to third party for $7.8 million and

recognized gain of $3.7 million

As of December31 2009 MCWR III owned four shopping centers had total assets of $65.1 million and net loss of approximately $436000 for the year ended and the

Companys share of its total assets and net loss was $16.2 million and net income of approximately $1 50000 respectively which includes the Companys share of the net loss

offset by the accretion of the basis difference Effective January 2010 the
partnership agreement was amended to include unilateral right to elect to dissolve the partnership

and receive DIK upon liquidation therefore the Company will
apply

the Restricted Gain Method if properties are sold to MCWR Ill on or after January 2010 Accordingly the

Company will recognize gains on such future sales only when such
gains

exceed amounts required to be deferred under the Restricted Gain Method During 2009 the Company

did not sell any properties to MCWR Ill Since the inception of MCWR Ill in 2005 the Company has recognized gain of $14.1 million on partial sales to MCWR Ill and deferred

gain of $4.7 million
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As of December 31 2009 MCWFf-DESCO owned 32 shopping centers had total assets of $382.1 million and recorded net loss of $5.3 million for the year ended and the

Companys share of its total assets and net loss was $62.5 million and approximately $883000 respectively
The partnership agreement does not contain any DIK

provisions

that would require the Company to apply the Restricted Gain Method Since the inception of MCWR-DESCO in 2007 the Company has not sold any properties to the real estate

partnership

The Company co-invests with MCW and Global Retail Investors LLC GRI joint venture between the California Public Employees Retirement System CaIPERS and an

affiliate of First Washington Realty Inc in one real estate partnership
in which the Company has an ownership interest of 25% MCWR II The Companys investment in

MCWR II totals $154.4 million and represents 3.9% of the Companys total assets at December 31 2009

On
July 17 2009 the Company announced that MCW had agreed to sell 60% of its partnership interest in MCWR II to GRI in two closings The initial closing was completed on

July31 2009 with MCW selling 45% of its 75% interest to GRI As part of the closing the Company acquired Macquarie-Regency Management US Manager 0.1%

ownership of MCWR II US Manager was owned 50/50 by the Company and an affiliate of Macquarie Bank Limited The transaction increased the Companys ownership in

MCWR Ito 25% from 24.95% At the initial closing the Company received disposition fee of $7.8 million from MCW
equal to 1% of the gross sales price paid by GRI At the

second closing GAl will acquire from MCW an incremental 15% interest increasing its total ownership in MCWR II to 60% The Company expects this to occur once the existing

mortgage lenders consent to the transaction or MOW prepays the mortgage loans The Company will retain asset management property management and leasing

responsibilities
The Company will receive an additional disposition

fee equal to 1% of gross sales price paid by GAl at future closings As part of the agreement the Company

negotiated two separate options to acquire additional interests in the partnership at 7.7% discount If both options were exercised Regency would acquire MCWs then

remaining 15% interest in MCWR II increasing Regencys total ownership to 40% In November 2009 the Company exercised its two options to acquire
the additional 15%

interest in MCWR II Closing is contingent upon obtaining lender consents and is expected in early 2010 The Company funded the purchase price of $16.0 million on

December 23 2009 which will be held in escrow until closing and the deposit is recorded in other assets in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December31 2009 MCWR II owned 86 shopping centers had total assets of $2.2 billion and net loss of $112.4 million for the year ended and the Companys share of

its total assets and net loss was $550.8 million and $28.3 million respectively The net loss was primarily related to the provision
for impairment recorded during 2009 as

result of MCWs decision to sell its interest in MCWR II which resulted in change in holding period for certain properties As part of the sales
negotiation

the joint venture

identified 14 properties that it would target for sale over the next three years These properties were previously expected to be held and used
long term and this change in the

holding period
resulted in provision for impairment of $104.4 million Effective January 2010 the partnership agreement was amended to include unilateral right to elect

to dissolve the
partnership

and receive DIK upon liquidation therefore the Company will apply the Restricted Gain Method if

properties are sold to MCWR II on or after

January 2010 Accordingly the Company will recognize gains on such future sales only when such gains exceed amounts required to be deferred under the Restricted Gain

Method During 2009 the Company did not sell any properties to MCWR II Since the inception of MCWR II in 2005 the Company has recognized gain of $2.3 million on partial

sales to MCWR II and deferred gain of approximately $766000

The Company co-invests with Regency Retail Partners the Fund an open-ended infinite life investment fund in which the Company has an ownership interest of 20% As of

December31 2009 the Fund owned nine shopping centers had total assets of $367.4 million and recorded net loss of $3.4 million for the year ended and the Companys

share of its total assets and net loss was $73.4 million and approximately $464000 respectively The partnership agreement does not contain any 01K provisions that would

require
the Company to apply the Restricted Gain Method During 2009 the Company did not sell any properties to the Fund Since the inception of the Fund in 2006 the

Company has recognized gains of $71.6 million on partial sales to the Fund and deferred gain of $1 7.9 million

On October 27 2009 the Company finalized the formation of new real estate partnership US Regency Retail with United Services Automobile Association the USM

partnership in which the Company has an ownership interest of 20.01% and sold seven shopping centers to the real estate partnership One additional property was sold to

the USAA partnership on November 2009 The eight properties were sold for $1 33.9 million and net proceeds to the Company from the sale were $1 03.3 million The

partnership agreement has unilateral right to elect to dissolve the
partnership

and receive 01K upon liquidation therefore the Company applied
the Restricted Gain Method to

determine the amount of gain recognized The Company recognized gain
of $19.1 million and deferred gain of $8.1 million on partial sales to the USM partnership

Summarized financial information for the investments in real estate partnerships on combined basis is as follows in thousands

DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER31

2009 2008

Investment in real estate net $3900277 451 8783

Acquired lease intangible assets net 147151 186141

Otherassets 137753 157806

Total assets $4185181 4862730

Notes payable $2477928 2792450

Acquired lease intangible liabilities net 87009 97146

Other liabilities 80011 83814

Members or Partners capital
1540233 1889320

Total liabilities and capital
$4185181 4862730
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Investments in real estate partnerships
had notes payable of $2.5 billion and $2.8 billion as of December31 2009 and 2008 respectively and the Companys proportionate

share of these loans was $585.5 million and $664.1 million respectively The Company does not guarantee these loans with the exception of an $8.5 million loan related to its

50% ownership interest in single asset real estate partnership where the loan agreement contains several guarantees from each partner

As of December31 2009 scheduled principal repayments on notes payable of the investments in real estate partnerships were as follows in thousands

NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Company had notes receivable outstanding of $37.8 million and $31.4 million at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively The notes receivable have fixed interest rates

ranging from 6.0% to 10.0% with maturity dates through January 2019 During the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 impairment losses of approximately $465000

related to an $879000 note receivable and $1 .1 million related to $3.6 million note receivable respectively were recorded in provision
for impairment in the accompanying

Consolidated Statements of Operations During the years ended December31 2009 and 2008 the Company recorded approximately $50000 and $41 7000 in interest

income related to these impaired loans of which $296000 was recognized on cash basis during the year ended December31 2008

On December 18 2009 the Company provided $11.4 million note receivable maturing in January 2019 with fixed interest rate of 7% in connection with property sale to

third party On February 20 2009 the Company received repayment of $3.2 million note receivable originally maturing in December2010

SCHEDULED

PRINCIPAL

PAYMENTS

MORTGAGE LOAN

MATURITIES

UNSECURED

MATURITIES TOTAL

REGENCYS

PRO-RATA

SHARESCHEDULED PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS BY YEAR

2010 3642 613310 26858 643810 160173

2011 3578 448787 452365 112037

2012 4396 244418 248814 61551

2013 4226 32447 36673 8982

2014 4213 77290 81503 21540

Beyond Years 25555 983875 1009430 220159

Unamortized debt premiums net 5333 5333 1030

Total $45610 2405460 26858 2477928 585472

The revenues and expenses for the investments in real estate partnerships on combined basis are summarized as follows in thousands

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

2009 2008 2007

Total revenues 434050 491246 453580

Operating expenses

Depreciation and amortization 160484 82844 176597

Operating and maintenance 63855 70158 64917

General and administrative 8247 8860 9589

Real estate taxes 59339 63393 53845

Provision for doubtful accounts 10062 2765 1512

Other expenses 2098 658 304

Total operating expenses 304085 328678 306764

Other expense income

Interest expense net 137794 146765 135760

Gain on sale of real estate 6141 14461 38165

Provision for impairment 104416

Other income 72 139 138

Total other expense income 236141 132443 97733

Net income loss $106176 30125 49083
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ACQUIRED LEASE INTANGIBLES

The Company had acquired lease intangible assets net of amortization of $1 0.0 million and $1 2.9 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
of which $9.7 million

and $1 2.5 million respectively relates to in-place leases These in-place leases had remaining weighted average amortization
period

of 5.6 years and the aggregate

amortization expense recorded for these in-place leases was approximately $2.7 million $4.2 million and $4.3 million for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively The Company had above-market lease intangible assets net of amortization of approximately $341000 and $442000 at December31 2009 and 2008

respectively The remaining weighted average amortization period was 3.4 years and the aggregate amortization expense recorded as reduction to minimum rent for these

above-market leases was approximately $1 02000 $113000 and $115000 for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Company had acquired lease intangible liabilities net of accretion of $5.9 million and $7.9 million as of December31 2009 and 2008 respectively The remaining

weighted average accretion
period

is 4.0 years and the aggregate amount recorded as an increase to minimum rent for these below-market rents was approximately $1 .9

million $2.5 million and $2.0 million for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The estimated aggregate amortization and net accretion amounts from acquired lease intangibles for the next five years are as follows in thousands

AMORTIZATION MINIMUM

EXPENSE RENT NETYEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31

2010 $2100 752

2011 1614 676

2012 1203 607

2013 1049 598

2014 851 581

INCOME TAXES

The net book basis of the Companys real estate assets exceeds the tax basis by approximately $78.7 million and $97.5 million at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively

primarily due to the difference between the cost basis of the assets acquired and their carryover basis recorded for tax purposes

The following
summarizes the tax status of dividends paid during the respective years

2009 2008 2007

Dividend
per

share $2.11 2.90 2.64

Ordinary income 54% 73% 85%

Capital gain
14% 22% 15%

Return of capital 32% 5%

RRG is
subject

to federal and state income taxes and files separate tax returns Income tax expense is included in other expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements

of Operations and consists of the following for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Income tax benefit expense

Current 4692 88 5669

Deferred 4894 688 530

Total income tax benefit expense 202 1600 6199

Income tax expense benefit is included in either other expenses if the related income is from continuing operations or discontinued operations on the Consolidated Statements

of Operations as follows for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Income tax expense benefit from

Continuing operations 1883 1600 4197

Discontinued operations 2085 2002

Total income tax expense benefit 202 1600 6199
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Income tax expense benefit differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S Federal income tax rate of 34% to pretax income of RRG for the years ended

December31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively as follows in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Computed expected tax expense benefit $4791 2324 3974

Increase in income tax resulting from state taxes 558 197 443

Provision for valuation allowance 4755

All other items 392 921 1782

Total income tax expense benefit 202 1600 6199

All other items principally represent
the tax effect of gains associated with the sale of properties to joint ventures Included in the income tax expense benefit disclosed above

the Company has approximately $600000 of state income tax expense at the Operating Partnership
for the Texas Gross Margin Tax recorded in other expenses in the

accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

To the extent of any taxable losses of the TRS RRG could elect to carryback the loss up to five years under the Worker Homeownership and Business Assistance Act of 2009

The following
table

represents
the Companys net deferred tax assets as of December31 2009 and 2008 recorded in other assets in the accompanying Consolidated Balance

Sheets in thousands

2009 2008

Deferred tax assets $19802 17887

Deferred tax liabilities 1057 825

Provision for valuation allowance 4755

Total $13990 17062

During 2009 valuation allowance of $4.8 million was established representing 100% of the disallowed interest under Section 63 of the Code included in the deferred tax

assets It was determined to be more likely than not that it will not be realized Other deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate primarily to differences in the timing of

the recognition
of income or loss between U.S GMP and tax basis of accounting Excluding the provision

for valuation allowance significant portions of the deferred tax assets

and deferred tax liabilities include $5.6 million deferred tax asset for capitalized costs under Section 263A of the Code an $8.0 million deferred tax asset related to the

provision
for impairment and approximately $811000 deferred tax liability for other differences

The Company accounts for uncertainties in income tax law in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 740 Under FASB ASC Topic 740 tax positions shall initially
be recognized in the

financial statements when it is more likely than not the
position

will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities Such tax positions shall initially
and subsequently be

measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has greater
than 50% likelihood of

being
realized upon ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of

the position and relevant facts The Company believes that it has
appropriate support for the income tax positions taken and to be taken on its tax returns and that its accruals for

tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on an assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax laws applied to the facts of each

matter Federal and state tax returns are open from 2006 and forward for the Company and federal returns are open from 2008 and forward for the TRS

During 2008 the Internal Revenue Service IRS commenced an examination of RRGs U.S income tax returns for 2006 and 2007 which was completed in June 2009 The

IRS did not propose any adjustments to the open tax years under audit

NOTES PAYABLE AND UNSECURED CREDIT FACILITIES

The Parent Company does not hold any indebtedness but guarantees all of the unsecured public debt and less than 10% of the secured debt of the Operating Partnership

Secured debt

On October 23 2009 the Company closed on an amendment of its only variable rate mortgage loan in the amount of $5.0 million with an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 350

basis points originally maturing on October 2009 extending the loan maturity to October 2014 with an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 380 basis points

On September 2009 the Company closed on $10.7 million two-year construction loan for development project with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 300 basis points The

balance was approximately $992000 at December31 2009

On July 2009 the Company closed on mortgage loans of $106.0 million secured by eight properties with an interest rate of 7.75% and ten-year term

In conjunction with properties
distributed to the Company as part of the liquidation of MCWR the Company assumed four mortgage loans In January 2009 the Company

assumed two mortgage loans with carrying values of $1 7.0 million and $42.1 million with
ten-year terms and interest rates of 6.13% and 6.38% respectively and in December

2009 the Company assumed two mortgage loans with carrying values of $4.5 million and $7.0 million maturing on May 2010 with interest rates of 4.44%
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Unsecured debt

The Line commitment is currently $600.0 million under an agreement with Wells Fargo Bank and syndicate of other banks that matures in February 2011 with one-year

extension at the Companys option The Company has the right to expand the Line commitment by an additional $1 50.0 million subject to additional lender syndication The Line

has current interest rate of LIBOR
plus

55 basis
points

and an annual facility fee of 15 basis points subject to maintaining its corporate credit and senior unsecured ratings at

BBB In April 2009 the Company paid
down the Line balance to zero and there was no balance at December31 2009 The balance on the Line was $70.0 million at

December31 2008 with contractual interest rate of 1.34% based on LIBOR plus 40 basis points

During 2008 the Company entered into $341 .5 million term loan facility the Term Facility under an agreement with Wells Fargo Bank and syndicate of other banks that

matures in February 2011 The Term Facility originally included term loan of $227.7 million plus $113.8 million revolving credit facility In December 2009 the Company

paid
off the balance of the term loan and it is no longer available however the revolving credit facility remains available to the Company at its discretion At December31 2009

and 2008 the balance on the Term Facility was zero and $227.7 million respectively At December31 2009 the revolving credit facility had variable interest rate equal to

LIBOR plus 100 basis points as compared to LIBOR plus 90 basis points at December31 2008 and an annual facility fee of 20 basis points subject to maintaining its corporate

credit and senior unsecured ratings at BBB At December31 2008 the term loan had variable interest rate of 3.30% or LIBOR plus 105 basis points

On September 30 2009 Standard and Poors Rating Services lowered the Companys corporate credit rating and senior unsecured debt rating to BBB from BBB primarily

related to the reduction in its fixed charge coverage ratio in 2009 As result of this downgrade the interest rate on the Line increased to LIBOR
plus

55 basis
points

and the

interest rate on the
revolving portion

of the Term
Facility

increased to LIBOR plus 100 basis points effective October 2009

Including
both the Line commitment and the Term Facility collectively

Unsecured credit facilities the Company currently has $71 3.8 million of total capacity and the spread

paid is dependent upon the Company maintaining specific investment-grade ratings The Company is also required to comply with certain financial covenants as defined in the

Credit Agreement such as Minimum Net Worth Ratio of Total Liabilities to Gross Asset Value GAV and Ratio of Recourse Secured Indebtedness to GAy Ratio of Earnings

Before Interest Taxes Depreciation and Amortization EBITDA to Fixed Charges and other covenants customary with this type of unsecured financing As of December 31

2009 management of the Company believes it is in compliance with all financial covenants for the Unsecured credit facilities The Unsecured credit facilities are used to finance

the acquisition and development of real estate and for general working-capital purposes

Notes payable consist of mortgage loans secured by properties and unsecured public debt Mortgage loans may be prepaid but could be subject to yield maintenance

premiums Mortgage loans are generally due in monthly installments of principal and interest or interest only and mature over various terms through 2019 whereas interest on

unsecured public debt is payable semi-annually and the debt matures over various terms through 2017 Fixed interest rates on mortgage loans range from 4.44% to 8.40% and

average 6.63% As of December31 2009 the Company had one variable rate mortgage loan in the amount of $4.6 million with an interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 380 basis

points maturing on October 2014 The Company has variable rate construction loan in the amount of approximately $992000 with an interest rate of LIBOR
plus

300 basis

points maturing on September 2011

On August 18 2009 the Company completed cash tender offer and purchased $19.5 million in principal of its $1 50.0 million 8.45% unsecured notes due September

2010 and $46.5 million in principal of its $220.0 million 7.95% unsecured notes due January 15 2011 the Notes The total consideration paid for the Notes was $69.5

million or $1035 per $1000 in principal plus accrued interest The payment was funded from available cash and the Company recorded $2.8 million expense for loss on

early extinguishment of debt in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations

The Companys outstanding debt at December31 2009 and 2008 consists of the following in thousands

2009 2008

Notes payable

Fixed rate mortgage loans 398820 235150

Variable rate mortgage loans 5596 5130

Fixed rate unsecured loans 1481964 1597624

Total notes payable 1886380 1837904

Unsecured credit facilities 297667

Total $1886380 2135571
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As of December 31 2009 scheduled principal repayments on notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities were as follows in thousands

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SCHEDULED

PRINCIPAL

PAYMENTS

MORTGAGE

LOAN

MATURITIES

UNSECURED

PUBLIC DEBT

Risk Management Objective of Using Derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations
and economic conditions The Company principally manages its exposures to wide variety of

business and operational
risks through management of its core business activities The Company manages economic risks including interest rate liquidity and credit risk

primarily by managing the amount sources and duration of its debt funding and the use of derivative financial instruments Specifically the Company enters into derivative

financial instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activities that result in the receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash amounts the value of

which are determined by interest rates The Companys derivative financial instruments are used to manage differences in the amount timing and duration of the Companys

known or expected cash payments principally related to the Companys borrowings

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

The Companys objectives
in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate movements To accomplish this

objective the Company primarily uses interest rate swaps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the

receipt of variable-rate amounts from counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the

underlying notional amount

The effective portion
of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated that quality as cash flow hedges is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss and

subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period that the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings During 2009 such derivatives were used to hedge the variable

cash flows associated with forecasted issuances of debt see Objectives and Strategies below for further discussion The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the

derivatives is recognized directly in earnings as loss on derivative instruments During the year ended December31 2009 the Company had $3.3 million of hedge

ineffectiveness recognized in earnings attributable to the Companys revised assumptions of future debt issuances

On
April 16 2009 the Company paid $20.0 million to settle and

partially
settle $1 06.0 million of its $396.7 million of interest rate swaps in place to hedge forecasted debt On

July 2009 the Company closed on mortgage loans of $106.0 million secured by eight properties with fixed interest rate of 7.75% and ten-year term The $20.0 million

loss realized from the swap settlement began amortization over ten year period in July 2009 therefore the effective interest rate on these mortgage loans is 9.63%

Realized losses associated with the interest rate swaps settled in 2004 2005 and 2009 and unrealized gains or losses associated with the swaps entered into in 2006 have

been included in accumulated other comprehensive loss in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Equity
and Comprehensive Income Loss of the Parent Company and

the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Capital

and Comprehensive Income Loss of the Operating Partnership Unrealized gains or losses will not be

amortized until such time that the probable debt issuances are completed as long as the interest rate swaps continue to quality
for hedge accounting

The tables below represent the effect of the derivative financial instruments on the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the years ended in thousands

AMOUNT OF GAIN LOSS

RECOGNIZED IN OCI ON

DERIVATIVE EFFECTIVE

PORTION

AMOUNT OF GAIN LOSS

RECLASSIFIED FROM

ACCUMULATED OCI INTO

INCOME EFFECTIVE

PORTION

SCHEDULED PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS BY YEAH

2010 4986 28523 140461 173970

2011 4837 12268 193486 210591

2012 5105 250000 255105

2013 4979 16348 21327

2014 8168 11916 150000 170084

Beyond Years 8853 299280 750000 1058133

Unamortized debt discounts net 847 1983 2830

Total $36928 367488 1481964 1886380

TOTAL

DERIVATIVES IN FASB ASC TOPIC 815 CASH FLOW

HEDGING RELATIONSHIPS

LOCATION OF GAIN LOSS RECLASSIFIED FROM

ACCUMULATED OCI INTO INCOME

EFFECTIVE PORTION

DECEMBER31 DECEMBER31

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Interest rate products $17672 1306 1306 Interest expense $2305 1306 1306
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The unamortized balance of the settled interest rate swaps at December31 2DD9 and 2DD8 was $25.4 million and $7.8 million respectively

As of December31 2DD9 the Company had the following outstanding interest rate derivatives that were designated as cash tiow hedges of interest rate risk
dollars in

thousands

NOTIONAL VALUE INTEREST RATE MATURITY FAIR VALUE

$1 DDDDD 5.415% D9/1 5/2D 8805
9D7DD 5.399% Di/l 5/2D 10802

1DDDDD 5.415% D9/15/2D 8756

$29D7DD $28363

The table below presents the fair value ot the Companys derivative financial instruments as well as their classification on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as ot December31

2DD9 and 2DDB in thousands

LIABILITY DERIVATIVES

2009 2008

BALANCE SHEET LOCATION FAIR VALUE BALANCE SHEET LOCATION FAIR VALUE

Derivative instruments $28363 Derivative instruments $B3691

Non-designated Hedges

The Company does not use derivatives tor
trading or speculative purposes and currently does not have any derivatives that are not designated as hedges

Objectives and Strategies

For $9D.7 million of the remaining Swaps the Company continues to expect to issue new secured or unsecured debt for term of to 12 years prior to July 2D1 For

$2DD.D million of the remaining Swaps the Company continues to expect to issue new debt for term ot to 12 years during
the

period
between March 31 2D1 and

March 31 2D1 The Company continuously monitors the capital markets and evaluates its ability to issue new debt to repay maturing debt or tund its commitments Based

upon the current capital markets the Companys current credit ratings and the number of high quality unencumbered properties that
it owns which could collateralize

borrowings the Company expects that it will successfully issue new secured or unsecured debt to tund its obligations However in the current environment interest rates on

new loans are expected to be
significantly higher than on historical issuances An increase of .D% in the interest rate ot new debt issued above that of maturing debt would

result in additional annual interest expense ot $3.3 million in addition to the impact of the annual amortization that would be incurred as result of
settling the respective interest

rate swaps

10 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Derivative Financial Instruments

The valuation ot these instruments is determined
using widely accepted valuation techniques including discounted cash tiow

analysis on the expected cash flows of each

derivative This analysis reflects the contractual terms ot the derivatives including the period to maturity and uses observable market-based inputs including interest rate

curves and implied volatilities The Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the respective

counterpartys nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives tall within Level ot the tair value hierarchy the credit valuation adjustments

associated with its derivatives utilize Level inputs such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood ot detault by the Company and its counterparties

As ot December31 2DD9 the Companys liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those

measurements tall were as follows in thousands

Changes in Level inputs are not considered significant enough to warrant reconciliation tor the year ended December31 2DD9

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING

LIABILITIES BALANCE

QUOTED PRICES IN SIGNIFICANT

ACTIVE MARKETS OTHER SIGNIFICANT

FOR IDENTICAL OBSERVABLE UNOBSERVABLE

LIABILITIES INPUTS INPUTS

LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL

Derivative instruments $28363 29D4D 677 55328

TOTAL

GAINS
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets held and used are comprised primarily
of real estate During the years ended December31 2009 and 2008 the Company established

provisions for

impairment as follows

2009 2008

Land held for future development or sale
93710 7216

Dperating and development properties 10227 20527

Total
$103937 27743

The principal triggering event that led to the impairment charges during 2009 related to prospective anchor tenant for several development sites that expressed considerable

uncertainty about the timing and location of future stores given the continuation of the weak economy and reductions in consumer spending As result the Company

reevaluated its development plans incorporating revisions to its assumptions such as declines in lease up periods lower rental rates rising vacancies and higher capitalization

rates The Company also reduced its overall
probability

of future development at some of the sites as well as its estimated holding period and corresponding future cash flows on

several operating and development properties as result of weaker operating environments in the markets in which these properties are located Additional impairments may be

necessary in the future in the event that market conditions continue to deteriorate and impact the factors used to estimate fair value the Company reduces the
holding period on

properties held and used or it decides to classify properties as held for sale where they were previously classified as held and used See Note 1c for discussion of the inputs

used in determining the fair value of long-lived assets The Company has determined that the inputs used to value its long-lived assets fall within Levels and of the fair value

hierarchy

The Companys assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis are those assets for which the Company has recorded
provision

for impairment during 2009 The assets

measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis are as follows

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING

ASSETS BALANCE

QUOTED PRICES IN SIGNIFICANT

ACTIVE MARKETS OTHER SIGNIFICANT

FOR IDENTICAL OBSERVABLE UNOBSERVABLE

ASSETS INPUTS INPUTS TOTAL

LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL LOSSES

Long-lived assets held and used

Land held for future development or sale 76879 9796 57083 93710

Operating and development properties 49222 27955 21267 10227
Notes receivable 414 414 465

Total $126515 47751 78764 104402

The following represent additional fair value disclosures for other assets and liabilities that are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements

Notes Payable

The carrying value of the Companys Unsecured credit facilities are based upon spread above LIBOR which is lower than the spreads available in the current credit markets

causing the fair value of such variable rate debt to be below its carrying value The other variable rate loans approximate fair value as they were refinanced or entered into during

2009 The fair value of fixed rate loans are estimated
using cash flows discounted at current market rates available to the Company for debt with similar terms and maturities

Fixed rate loans assumed in connection with real estate acquisitions are recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial statements at fair value at the time of acquisition

excluding those loans assumed in DIK liquidations Based on the estimates used by the Company the fair value of notes payable and the Unsecured credit facilities was

approximately $1 .4 billion and $1.3 billion at December 31 2009 and 2008

Noncontrolling Interests of the Parent Company and Partners Capital

As of December31 2009 and 2008 the Operating Partnership had 468211 limited Partnership Units outstanding The limited
Partnership

Units are exchangeable for the

Parent Companys common stock The redemption value of the limited Partnership Units are based on the closing market price of the Parent Companys common stock which

was $35.06 and $46.70 per
share as of December31 2009 and 2008 respectively and the aggregate redemption value was $16.4 million and $21.9 million respectively

Noncontrolling Interests of the Parent Company and the Operating Partnership

At December31 2009 the Company held majority interest in four consolidated entities with specified termination dates through 2049 The
noncontrolling

interests in these

entities will be settled upon termination by distribution or transfer of either cash or specific assets of the underlying entities The estimated fair value of the noncontrolling

interests in entities with specified termination dates was approximately $9.1 million and $9.5 million at December31 2009 and 2008 respectively Their related carrying value

was $6.6 million and $6.3 million as of December31 2009 and 2008 respectively which is included within
noncontrolling

interests of Limited partners interests in

consolidated
partnerships in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets
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11 EQUITY AND CAPITAL

Equity of the Parent Company

Preferred Stock

The Series and preferred shares are perpetual are not convertible into common stock of the Parent Company and are redeemable at par upon the Companys election

beginning five years after the issuance date None of the terms of the preferred stock contain any unconditional obligations that would require the Company to redeem the

securities at any time or for any purpose and the Company does not currently anticipate redeeming any preferred stock Terms and conditions of the three series of preferred

stock outstanding as of December 31 2009 are summarized as follows

SHARES LIQUIDATION DISTRIBUTION CALLABLE

OUTSTANDING PREFERENCE RATE BY COMPANY
SERIES

Series 3000000 75000000 7.45% 04/03/08

Series
5000000 125000000 7.25% 08/31/09

Series
3000000 75000000 6.70% 08/02/10

11000000 $275000000

Common Stock

On December 2009 the Parent Company completed public offering
of 8.0 million shares of common stock at $30.75 per

share which will result in net proceeds of $235.8

million net of issuance costs In connection with this offering the Parent Company entered into forward sale agreements with affiliates of J.P Morgan and Wells Fargo

Securities as forward purchasers The Company intends to use the proceeds it receives upon settlement of the forward sale agreements to repay maturing or outstanding debt

balances This
offering

also included an over-allotment option
of 1.2 million shares which closed simultaneously with the offering providing the Company with net proceeds of

$35.4 million

On April24 2009 the Parent Company completed public offering of 10.0 million common shares at $32.50 per share resulting in proceeds of $310.9 million net of issuance

costs The funds were used to pay off the balance of the Line which had balance of $1 80.0 million and the remaining amount of approximately $1 300 million was deposited

in the Companys cash accounts and was used for general working capital needs including repayment of maturing debt capital calls from real estate partnerships
to the extent

required based on the Companys respective ownership interest in such real estate partnership and costs to complete in-process development projects

Treasury Stock

On December 31 2009 the Parent Company cancelled the 5661520 treasury shares outstanding

Noncontrolling Interest of Preferred Units

At December 31 2009 and 2008 the face value of the Series preferred units was $50.0 million with fixed distribution rate of 745% and recorded in the accompanying

Consolidated Balance Sheets net of original issuance costs of approximately $842000 which will be expensed if redeemed in the future

Terms and conditions for the Series preferred units outstanding as of December 31 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows

UNITS AMOUNT DISTRIBUTION CALLABLE EXCHANGEABLE

OUTSTANDING RATE BY COMPANY BY UNIT HOLDEROUTSTANDING

500000 $50000000 7.45% 09/29/09 01/01/14

The Series preferred units which could be called by the Operating Partnership at par beginning September 29 2009 have no stated maturity or mandatory redemption and

pay cumulative quarterly dividend at fixed rate The Series preferred units may be exchanged by the holder for cumulative redeemable preferred stock of the Parent

Company at an exchange rate of one unit for one share The Series preferred units and the related preferred stock are not convertible into common stock of the Parent

Company

Noncontrolling Interest of Exchangeable Operating Partnership Units

As of December31 2009 and 2008 the Operating Partnership had 468211 limited Partnership Units outstanding See Note 10 for further discussion

Noncontrolling Interests of Limited Partners Interests in Consolidated Partnerships

Limited partners interests in consolidated partnerships
not owned by the Company are classified as noncontrolling interests on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets

of the Parent Company Subject to certain conditions and pursuant to the conditions of the agreement the Company has the right but not the obligation to purchase the other

members interest or sell its own interest in these consolidated partnerships At December 31 2009 and 2008 the Companys noncontrolling interest in these consolidated

partnerships was $11.7 million and $8.0 million respectively

REGENCY CENTERS 2009 ANNUAL REPORT 66



Capital of the Operating Partnership

Preferred Units

The Series Preferred Units are owned by institutional investors At December31 2009 and 2008 the face value of the Series Preferred Units was $50.0 million with fixed

distribution rate of 7.45% and recorded in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets net of original issuance costs of approximately $842000 that will be expensed if

redeemed in the future See above for further discussion

Preferred Units of General Partner

The Parent Company as general partner owns corresponding Series and preferred unit interests Series and Preferred Units in the Operating Partnership See

above for further discussion

General Partner

As of December 31 2009 the Parent Company as general partner owned approximately 99% or 81539296 of the total 82007507 Partnership Units outstanding

Limited Partners

As of December31 2009 and 2008 the Operating Partnership had 468211 limited Partnership Units outstanding See Note 10 for further discussion

Noncontrofling Interests of Limited Partners Interests in Consolidated Partnerships

See above for further discussion

12 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company recorded stock-based compensation in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations the components of

which are further described below in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Restricted stock $5227 8193 7725

Stock options 988 1024

Directors fees paid in common stock 279 375 389

Total $5506 9556 19138

The recorded amounts of stock-based compensation expense represent amortization of deferred compensation related to share-based payments During 2009 and 2008

compensation expense declined as result of the Company reducing estimated payout amounts related to incentive compensation tied directly to Company performance

Compensation expense specifically identifiable to development and leasing activities is capitalized and included above During the years ended December31 2009 2008 and

2007 compensation expense of approximately $1 .6 million $3.6 million and $7.6 million respectively was capitalized

The Company established the Plan under which the Board of Directors may grant stock options and other stock-based awards to officers directors and other key employees

The Plan allows the Company to issue up to 5.0 million shares in the form of the Parent Companys common stock or stock options The
plan permits

the
grant

of any type
of

stock-based award but limits non-option awards to no more than 2.75 million shares At December31 2009 there were approximately 2.4 million shares available for
grant

under the Plan either through options or restricted stock The Plan also limits outstanding awards to no more than 12% of the Parent Companys outstanding common stock

Stock
options are granted under the Plan with an exercise price equal to the Parent Companys stocks

price at the date of grant All stock
options granted have ten-year lives

contain
vesting terms of one to five years from the date of

grant
and some have dividend

equivalent rights
Stock

options granted prior to 2005 also contained reload
rights

which allowed an option holder the right to receive new options each time existing options were exercised if the
existing options were exercised under

specific
criteria

provided

for in the Plan In 2005 and 2007 the Parent Company acquired the reload rights of existing employees and directors stock options from the option holders substantially

canceling all of the reload rights on existing stock options in exchange for new options These new stock options vest 25%
per year and are expensed ratably over four-year

period beginning in year of grant Options granted under the reload buy-out plan do not earn dividend equivalents

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton closed-form Black-Scholes option valuation model Expected volatilities

are based on historical volatility of the Parent Companys stock and other factors The Company uses historical data and other factors to estimate option exercises and employee

terminations within the valuation model The expected term of options granted is derived from the output of the option valuation model and represents the period of time that

options granted are expected to be outstanding The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the

time of grant The Company believes that the use of the Black-Scholes model meets the fair value measurement objectives
of FASB ASC Topic 718 and reflects all substantive

characteristics of the instruments being valued
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The
following

table reports stock option activity during the year ended December31 2009

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

NUMBER OF EXERCISE

OPTIONS PRICE

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

REMAINING

CONTRACTUAL

TERM

IN YEARS

AGGREGATE

INTRINSIC

VALUE

IN THOUSANDS

Outstanding December31 2008 574027 $51 .24

Less Exercised 9032 30.28

Less Forfeited 36113 54.33

Less
Expired

75419 48.25

Outstanding December 31 2009 453463 $51.90 4.5 7638

Vested and expected to vest December 31 2009 453463 $51.90 4.5 7638

Exercisable December31 2009 449094 $51.55 4.4 7404

There were no stock options granted in 2009 or 2008 The weighted-average grant price
for stock options granted during 2007 was $88.49 The total intrinsic value of

options

exercised during
the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 was approximately $19000 $2.3 million and $20.2 million respectively

The Company received cash

proceeds for stock option exercises of $1 .0 million and $2.4 million
during

2008 and 2007 respectively The Company issues new shares to fulfill
option

exercises from its

authorized shares available

The following table presents information regarding non-vested option activity during the year ended December31 2009

WEIGHTED

NON-VESTED AVERAGE

NUMBER OF GRANT-DATE

OPTIONS FAIR VALUE

Non-vested at December31 2008 80020 $6.04

Less Forfeited 2307 8.78

Less 2009 Vesting
73344 5.96

Non-vested at December 31 2009 4369 $8.78

The Company grants restricted stock under the Plan to its employees as form of long-term compensation and retention The terms of each grant vary depending upon the

participants responsibilities and position within the Company The Companys stock grants can be categorized into three types 4-year vesting ii performance-based vesting

and iii 8-year cliff vesting

The 4-year vesting grants vest 25% per year beginning on the date of grant These grants are not subject to future performance measures and if such vesting
criteria are not

met the compensation cost previously recognized would be reversed

Performance-based vesting grants are earned subject to future performance measurements which include individual goals annual growth in earnings compounded three-

year growth in earnings and three-year total shareholder return peer comparison TSR Grant Once the performance criteria are met and the actual number of shares

earned is determined certain shares will vest immediately while others will vest over an additional service period

The 8-year cliff vesting grants fully vest at the end of the eighth year from the date of grant however as result of the achievement of future performance primarily growth

in earnings the vesting of these grants may be accelerated over shorter term

Performance-based vesting grants and 8-year cliff vesting grants are currently only granted to the Companys senior management The Company considers the likelihood of

meeting the performance criteria based upon managements estimates and analysis of future earnings growth from which it determines the amounts recognized as expense on

periodic basis The Company determines the grant
date fair value of TSR Grants based upon Monte Carlo Simulation model Compensation expense is measured at the grant

date and recognized over the vesting period
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The following table
reports non-vested restricted stock activity during the year ended December31 2009

WEIGHTED

INTRINSIC AVERAGE

NUMBER OF VALUE GRANT

SHARES IN THOUSANDS PRICE

Non-vested at December31 2008 508773

Add Granted 285542 $38.91

Less Vested and Distributed 253723 $37.88

Less Forfeited 72930 $62.39

Non-vested at December31 2009 367662 $12890

The weighted-average grant price for restricted stock granted during the years 2009 2008 and 2007 was $38.91 $63.76 and $84.52 respectively The total intrinsic value

of restricted stock vested during the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 was $9.6 million $1 2.3 million and $29.7 million respectively As of December31

2009 there was 11.0 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock granted under the Plan when recognized is recorded in additional paid in

capital of the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Equity and Comprehensive Income Loss of the Parent Company and in General partner preferred and common units of

the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital and Comprehensive Income Loss of the Operating Partnership This unrecognized compensation cost is

expected to be recognized over the next four years through 2013 The Company issues new restricted stock from its authorized shares available at the date of grant

The Company maintains 401k retirement
plan covering substantially all employees which permits participants to defer up to the maximum allowable amount determined by

the IRS of their eligible compensation This deferred compensation together with Company matching contributions equal to 100% of employee deferrals up to maximum of

$3800 of their eligible compensation is fully vested and funded as of December31 2009 Costs related to the matching portion
of the

plan were approximately $1.4 million

$1.5 million and $1.3 million for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE AND UNIT

Parent Company Earnings per Share

The following summarizes the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively in thousands except

per share data

2009 2008 2007

Numerator

Income loss from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Net income loss

Less Preferred stock dividends

Less Noncontrolling interests

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders

Less Dividends paid on unvested restricted stock

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders basic

Add Dividends paid on Treasury Method restricted stock

3961

$38639 119570 176013

5896 21951 34003

32743 141521 210016

19675 19675 19675

5333 6365

56379 116513 183976

842

56867 115780 183134

49

488 733

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders diluted $56867 11 5780 183183

Denominator

Weighted average common shares outstanding for basic EPS 76829 69578 68954

Incremental shares to be issued under common stock options
84 244

Incremental shares to be issued under Forward Equity Offering
67

Weighted average common shares outstanding for diluted EPS 76896 69662 69198

Income loss per common share basic

Continuing operations
0.82 .35 2.16

Discontinued operations
0.08 0.31 0.49

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders per share 0J4 .66 2.65

Income loss per common share diluted

Continuing operations
0.82 1.35 2.16

Discontinued operations
0.08 0.31 0.49

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders
per

share 0.74 1.66 2.65
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Operating Partnership Earnings per Unit

The following summarizes the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per unit for the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively in thousands except per

unitdata

2009 2008 2007

Numerator

Income loss from
continuing operations $38639 119570 176013

Discontinued
operations 5896 21951 34003

Net income loss 32743 141521 210016
Less Preferred unit distributions 23400 23400 23400
Less Noncontrolling interests 452 701 990

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders 56595 117420 185626
Less Dividends paid on unvested restricted stock 488 733 842

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders basic $57083 116687 184784

Add Dividends paid on Treasury Method restricted stock
49

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders diluted $57083 116687 184833

Denominator

Weighted average common units outstanding for basic EPU 77297 70048 69540
Incremental units to be issued under common stock options 84 244

Incremental units to be issued under Forward Equity Offering 67

Weighted average common units outstanding for diluted EPU
77364 70132 69784

Income loss from
continuing operations basic

Continuing operations 0.82 1.35 216

Discontinued operations 0.08 0.31 0.49

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders per unit 0.74 1.66 2.65

Income loss from
continuing operations diluted

Continuing operations 0.82 1.35 2.16

Discontinued operations 0.08 0.31 0.49

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders per unit 0.74 1.66 2.65

14 OPERATING LEASES

The Companys properties are leased to tenants under operating leases with expiration dates extending to the year 2084 Future minimum rents under non-cancelable operating

leases as of December31 2009 excluding both tenant reimbursements of
operating expenses and additional percentage rent based on tenants sales volume are as follows in

thousands

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 AMOUNT

2010
320361

2011
299131

2012
255441

2013
211214

2014
174950

Thereafter
1046337

Total
$2307434

The shopping centers tenant base includes primarily national and
regional supermarkets drug stores discount department stores and other retailers and consequently the

credit risk is concentrated in the retail industry There were no tenants that
individually represented more than 5% of the Companys annualized future minimum rents
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has shopping centers that are subject
to non-cancelable long-term ground leases where third party owns and has leased the underlying land to the Company to

construct and/or operate shopping center Ground leases expire through the year 2085 and in most cases provide for renewal options In addition the Company has

non-cancelable operating leases pertaining to office space from which it conducts its business Office leases expire through the year 2017 and in most cases provide for renewal

options Leasehold improvements are capitalized
recorded as tenant improvements and depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the improvements or the lease term

Operating lease expense including capitalized ground lease payments on properties
in development was $7.9 million $8.1 million and $7.5 million for the years ended

December31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
The following table summarizes the future obligations under non-cancelable operating

leases as of December31 2009 in

thousands

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31
AMOUNT

2010
7098

2011
7021

2012
6823

2013
6926

2014
5990

Thereafter
118588

Total
$1 52446

15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in litigation on number of matters and is subject to certain claims which arise in the normal course of business none of which in the opinion of

management is expected to have material adverse effect on the Companys consolidated financial position
results of operations or liquidity

The Company is also subject to

numerous environmental laws and regulations as they apply
to real estate pertaining to chemicals used by the dry cleaning industry the existence of asbestos in older shopping

centers and underground petroleum storage tanks The Company believes that the tenants who currently operate dry cleaning plants or gas stations do so in accordance with

current laws and regulations The Company has placed environmental insurance when possible on specific properties with known contamination in order to mitigate its

environmental risk The Company monitors the shopping centers containing environmental issues and in certain cases voluntarily remediates the sites If an operating or

development property requires remediation to be performed by the Company prior to development or as condition of sale environmental remediation obligations are estimated

and are considered in the assessment of the propertys value In the event environmental remediation is required the Company adjusts the sales
price

of the property for the

environmental remediation to be performed funds the cash in escrow to remediate the environmental issues or agrees to remain responsible
for the future environmental

remediation expenses in which case the Company would accrue the estimated maximum potential liability If the Company is liable for remediation of environmental damage

relating to properties previously disposed the likelihood of material unfavorable outcome of that contingency is remote as thorough environmental assessment is performed

during
the due diligence required by sale of property The Company also has legal obligations to remediate certain sites and is in the process of doing so The Company

estimates the cost associated with remediating these environmental obligations to be approximately $3.2 million all of which has been reserved in accounts payable and other

liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets The Company believes that the ultimate disposition of currently known environmental matters will not have

material effect on its financial position liquidity or operations however it can give no assurance that existing environmental studies with respect to the shopping centers have

revealed all potential environmental liabilities that any previous owner occupant or tenant did not create any material environmental condition not known to it that the current

environmental condition of the shopping centers will not be affected by tenants and occupants by the condition of nearby properties or by unrelated third parties or that

changes in applicable environmental laws and
regulations or their interpretation will not result in additional environmental liability to the Company

The Company has the right to issue letters of credit under the Line discussed above up to an amount not to exceed $50.0 million that reduce the credit availability under the

Line The Company also has stand alone letters of credit with other banks These letters of credit are primarily issued as collateral to facilitate the construction of development

projects As of December31 2009 and 2008 the Company had $9.5 million and $1 6.2 million letters of credit outstanding respectively

REORGANIZATION AND RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

During 2009 and 2008 the Company announced restructuring plans designed to align employee headcount with projected workload During 2009 the Company severed 103

employees with no future service requirement and recorded restructuring charges of $7.5 million for employee severance benefits During 2008 the Company severed 50

employees and recorded restructuring charges of $2.4 million for employee severance benefits Restructuring charges are included in general and administrative expenses in the

accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations All severance payouts were completed by January 2010 and funded using cash from operations The component charges

of the restructuring program for the years ended December31 2009 and 2008 follows in thousands

2009 2008

Severance $5966 2086

Health insurance 1092 150

Placement services
431 187

Total
$7489 2423
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As of December31 2009 and 2008 the remaining accrued liabilities are as follows

Accrued Liabilities

2009 2008

Compensation

Insurance

Other

Total

17 SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

$1160 1046

150

51

$1160 1247

The following table sets forth selected Quarterly Financial Data for the Company on historical basis for each of the years ended December31 2009 and 2008 and has been
derived from the accompanying consolidated financial statements as reclassified for discontinued operations

FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH

QUARTER QUARTER QUARTERQUARTER

2009

Operating Data

Revenues as originally reported
$120159 11 6461 133742 121625

Reclassified to discontinued operations
445 1167 1143

Adjusted Revenues
$119714 115294 132599 121625

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders
9563 71 80 84092 25329

Net income loss of limited partners
164 92 462 174

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders
9727 17272 84554 25503

Net income loss attributable to common stock and unit holders per share

Basic
0.28 0.23 1.05 0.31

Diluted
0.28 0.23 1.05 0.31

2008

Operating Data

Revenues as originally reported
$11 9647 123456 22798 138683

Reclassified to discontinued
operations 4421 3608 2626 1966

Adjusted Revenues
$115226 119848 120172 140649

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders
26719 31866 43900 14028

Net income loss of limited partners
213 245 328 121

Net income loss attributable to common unit holders
26932 32111 44228 14149

Net income loss attributable to common stock and unit holders
per share

Basic
0.38 0.45 0.63 020

Diluted
0.38 0.45 0.63 0.20

Market and Dividend Information unaudited

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE under the symbol REG As of February 16 2010 we had approximately 17700 holders of common
equity The following table sets forth the

high and low prices and the cash dividends declared on our common stock by quarter for 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

CASH CASH

HIGH LOW DIVIDENDS HIGH LOW DIVIDENDS

PRICE PRICE DECLARED PRICE PRICE DECLARED

$46.54 22.02 .7250 67.08 52.86 .7250

38.63 26.55 .4625 73.52 58.13 .7250

41.05 28.50 .4625 73.10 51.67 .7250

36.24 31.62 .4625 66.19 23.36 .7250

QUARTER ENDED

March 31

June30

September30

December31
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The performance graph furnished below compares Regencys cumulative total stockholder return since December31 2004 The stock performance graph should not be

deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any other filing made by us under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to the extent that we

specifically incorporate the stock performance graph by reference in another filing

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Regency Centers Corporation The SP 500 Index

And The FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs Index

Regency Centers Corporation
SP500 FTSE NAIREIT Equity REITs

$100 invested on 12/31/04 in stock or index including reinvestment of dividends Fiscal year ending December 31

Copyright 2010 SP division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc All
rights

reserved
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RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO COMMON STOCKHOLDERS TO FUNDS FROM
OPERATIONS

For the Periods Ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007

in thousands
2009 2008 2007

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders $56379 $116513 $1 83976
Adjustments to reconcile to Funds from Operations

Depreciation expense consolidated properties 97963 89534 77308
Depreciation and amortization expense unconsolidated

properties 37736 42380 42548
Consolidated JV partners share of depreciation 540 540 482
Amortization of leasing commissions and intangibles 15678 14018 12106
Gain on sale of

operating properties including JVs 21619 11709 23215
Income deferrals under the Restricted Gain Method for GAAP

13135 12745
Non-controlling interest of exchangeable partnership units 216 907 1650

Funds From Operations
85758 263848 293891

Dilutive effect of share-based awards 488 733 791

Funds From Operations for calculating Diluted FF0 per Share
85270 $263115 $293100

Weighted Average Shares For Diluted FF0 per Share
77365 70132 69809
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GENERAL INFORMATION Operating Committee John Schweitzer 2a

President

Registrar and Stock Transfer Agent
Martin Stein Jr

Westgate Corporation

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

American Stock Transfer Trust Company

Brian Smith

New York New York Brian Smith
President and Chief Operating Officer

President and Chief Operating Officer
Regency Centers

Independent Auditors

Bruce Johnson
Thomas Wattles1 3a

KPMG LLP
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Chairman

Certified Public Accountants

OCT Industrial Trust

Jacksonville Florida
Dan Chandler

Managing Oirector Operations West
Audit Committee

General Counsel

Compensation Committee

John Delatour

Investment Committee

Foley Lardner LLP
Managing Oirector Operations Central

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Jacksonville Florida

Lead Oirector

Committee Chairman

James Thompson

Stock Listing
Managing Oirector Operations East

New York Stock Exchange
Board of Directors

Symbol REG

Martin Stein Jr

The companys Form 10-K filing with the Securities and
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Exchange Commission is available upon request from the
Regency Centers

company or from the companys webs ite

Raymond Bank

The company offers dividend reinvestment plan ORIP that
President

enables its shareholders to reinvest dividends automatically
Raymond Bank Associates

as well as to make voluntaiy cash payments toward the

purchase of additional shares For more information contact Ronald Blankenship

American Stock Transfer Trust Companys Shareholder President and Chief Executive Officer

Senjices Group toll free at 1.B66.668.655O or the companys Verde Realty

shareholder Relations Oepartment

AR Pete Carpenter
4a

Regency Centers
Former Vice Chairman

CSX Corporation
Inc

One Independent Drive Suite 114

Jacksonville Florida 32202 Dix Druce Jr la

Phone 904.598.7000 President and Chairman

regencycenters.com
National P.E Scan LLC

Annual Meeting Mary Lou Fiala

Former President and Chief Operating Officer

Regencys annual meeting will be held at The River Club One Regency Centers

Independent Drive
35th Floor Jacksonville Florida in the

Florida Room at 1100 am on Tuesday May 2010 Bruce Johnson

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Regency has included as Exhibit 31 to its Annual Report on Regency Centers

Form 10-K for 2009 certifications of its Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer verifying the quality of the Douglas Luke

companys pubilc disclosures that were filed with the President and Chief Executive Officer

Securities and Exchange Commission In addition Regencys HL Capital
Inc

Chief Executive Officer has certified to the New York Stock

Exchange that he is not aware of any violations by Regency of

the Exchanges corporate governance ilsting standards as of

the date of the certification
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